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fairly presented te a jury, so the jury can decide the
evidence?

PROSPECTIVE JURCER RO, 002: I think police officers
should probably de their best to gather any potential
evidence. 1 guess it would depend on the situation for them
to know whether or not something is potential evidence or not.
I'm not a police axpert, so I don't know what they would view
a&s evidence, but I would assume that they should do their best
to collect anything that could possibly be used as evidence.

MR. QO'KEEFE: Okay. Let me kind of like rephrase it
a little bit more., You did kipd of get the gist of what I'm
getting at. But as a police officer -- to properly screen the
Jurors, and to pick jurors that think more like me, is my
basis of doing this, do you feel a police officer —- hHe's not
to act as a judge, is what I'm getting at.

He's teo collect any evidence as possible, and it
could be exculpatory or inculpatory, basically, used for both
sides. They're not to do -- be a judge. You know what I*m
trying te say? It's their -- do you feel they have a
responsiblility to collect that evidence as part of their jeb?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO, 002: I guess it depends on
the type of -- I'm assuming a regular officer that wouid
respond teo & regular event, they may not be expected to
collect as much evidence as maybe a homicide detective, or an

arson detective. So, I'm not sure if the expectation is the
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same, depending on what type of officer you are.

S0, I'm —- you know, when an officer responds to a
scene, I'm hoping that they would think of any possible
evidence., But I weould assume that a regular officer who would
respond ta a 9-11 call, that may not be something that they
are expected to do. I don't know if I'm making any sense,
but --

MR. O'KEEFE: No, you're making perfect sense.
Clearly, you —

FROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: Okay.

ME. O'KEEFE: -- [inaudible]. There is a difference

betwaen 8§ regular street officer: a detective, so to speak,

for homicide, or for this, that. Can you agree with me -- or
would you agree, sheould I say -- do you feel that just because
pelice come te a —- are celled and come to a scene, do you

feel that every call, there's got to be a crime committed,
just because the police are there?

My point heing, is, you know how people talk, the
community. Wow, the cops are over there at the Joneses. Wow,
1 wonder what he did, or she did; or do you know what I'm
sayipa? Are you --

FPROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 002: Just because an officer
is called cut doesn't necessarily mean that there has been a
crime committed. I'm assuming that the person who has called

maybe believes that there is a possible crime taking place, or
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has taken place. But that doesn't necessarily mean that Jusk
because an cofficer respands, there is a crime that is in
progress, or has taken place.

MR. O'KEEFE: Exactly my paint. No further
guestions, Thank you. 1I'd pass for —-

THE COURT: Pass for cause, Mr. 0'Keafe?

MR. Q'EEEFE: Yes, sir. I da, Your llonor.

THE COURT: Thank youw, sir.

MR, Q'KEEFE: Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you. By the way, anybody wants to
use the restroom -- don't go all at once, now. Just go, and
come back. Go ahead if you need £o use the restroom, all
right? Then come right -- cone at 2 Lime though. You don't geo
crazy. Yesh, you can go. Yeah, two is all right. Three is
all right.

Magan -- is it Stutz?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: Stutz.

THE COURT: What is it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MNO. 003: Scutz,

THE COURT: Stutz. all right. How long you been in
this area®

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 003: Five years.

THE COURT: Where did you come from?

FROSPECTIVE JURDR NO. 003: California.

THE COURT: What did you do in Califernia as far as
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JUROR NG I was a medical

D03
And what do you do here?

JUROR WO, 003: I'm a medical assistant

THE COURT: Okay. And what type of student?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: I'm going for my
pPre-reqgs for nursing.

THE CCOURT: All right. Good. Are you married?

PRCSPECTIVE JUROR HO. 003: Yes,

THE COURT: Does your hushand work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: He 13 currently a
full-time student right now, so he's net working.

THE COURT: All right, Children?

EROSPECTIVE JUROR ND. [D03: One.

THE CQURT: How old?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NOQ. 003: Severn moenths.

THE LOURT: ALl right. Have you ever been in the
military?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR HO. 003: Mo,

THE COURT: Are you acquainted with anybody in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: Ho,

THE COURT: Have you ar anyone closely associated
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with you ever hkeaen the victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 003: No.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely associated
with you ever been arrested for a crime?

PROSFECTIVE JUROR WO, 003: HHo.

THE COURT: Have you ever served on a jury?

FROSFECTIVE JURQR HO. D03: MNHo.

THE COURT: Are you going to be able to follow my
instructigns of law?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: Yes.

THE COURT: And you'zre going to be fair and
impartial, both to the State and to the defense?

PROSEECTIVE JURQR NO. 003: Yes,

THE COURT: Thank you very much. Questions; pass
for cause, Mr. Lalli?

MR. LALLI: & few guestions, Your Honor. Thank you.
Ms, Stutz, can you tell us how frequently or how often you
currently are devcted to going teo school? Do you -- are you
enrolled Iin classes now?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: T am enrolled online
right now. Since I had my baby, I haven't been a2t like
regqular courses at school.

ME. LALLI: Apnd how does online -- how does cnline
work? Do you -- can you study as time permits? Or -—-

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: Usually, yeah. There's
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tests and guizzes that are that due at like specific times.
But they give you a date range, and time to start that and
cemplete it

MR. TALLI: 1Is5 -- being a juror on this casa, would

that interfere with your ability rte --

PROSPFECTIVE JUROR NO. Q03: HNo.

ME. LALLI: -- attend your online classes? (kay.
angd those are nursing type classes?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: They just general
pré-reqs right now. I have a few before I can apply.

MR. LALLI: &nd you're currently a nursing
assistant?

FROSPFECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: 2 medical assistant.

MR. LALLI: Medical assistant. Can you give us a
sense of what's & day in the life of a medical assistant?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 003: I work in the doctor's
office. I'm the one that puts you in the room, and talks to
you before the doctor sees you.

ME. LALLI: What type of doctor?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 003: Orthopedic surgeon.

MR. LALLI: How leng have you done that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WO. 003: Five years here, two
years in California.

MR. LALLI: 3o, I take it you have some level —-

some familiarity with medical jarqon, vocabulary?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR HO. 003: Yes.

MR. LALLI: You have some gomfort level with that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 003: Yes.

MR. BALLI: ESo, 1if we were to call a forensic
pathclogisr, a person who does autopsies, would you feel
comfortable listening to that testimony and understanding it?

FROSPECTIVE JURDE NO. Q03: The basic stuff, I
understand,

MR. LALLI: ALl right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ, 003: Yes.

MR. LALLI: What is your husband studying? You said
he's a full-time student.

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 00D3: He's applying for dental

school next year, so a few pre-req's before that.

MR. LALLI: Is he studying -- where? Through UNLY,
or --

PROSFECTIVE JURCR NO. 003: UHLV,

MR. LALLI: And would the plan be for him to go to
the UNLY ——

PROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: VYes.

MR. LALLT: -- dental school there? Have you -- how
do you feel about this idea of domestic violence? Some pecple
think it's a very private matter, and the government --
society really has no bisiness in it. It's between two

people, it's private, and --
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. Q03: Ro.

MR. LALLI: =-- nobody else should get invelwved.

What do you think about that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: I think that people
should be involved if somebody knows somebody's being abused,
oxr what -- they should speak for them. Ard it's not private.
It's something that needs attention.

ME. EALLI: Why do you -- why do you believe that?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR HO. 003: I was in a verbal
2busive relationship, so T can ynderstand where @t comes from,

MR. LALLI; When was that relationship?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR RO. 003; 2003,

MR. LALLI: 8o, I guess -+ was it physical at all?

FROSPFECTIVE JURQE NO, 003: Minor.

MR. LALLI: All right. Wetfe the police esver called?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR No. 003: No.

ME. LALLT: 3o, I -- from your guesticn -- and I
den't mzar to pry. But you seem to have experience in knowing
that domestic violence can be psychological abuse, as well as
physical abuse?

FROSPECTIVE JURGR RO. 003: Yes.

MR. LALLI: Do ¥ou think one is more serious than
the other?

FROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: Ho. Becausé T think

eventually, if it's bad, it will end in one spot.
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MR. LALLT: I -- fartunately, you were able to get
yourself out of that relationship, it scounds like.

PROSPECTIVE JURQE NO. 003: Yes,

MR. LALLI: Was that difficult for you?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR MO. 003: Yeah.

MR. LALLI: Did you -- there's a lot of community
resources availeble; shelters, advocates, And again, I don't
want to go toe much into your perscnal life, other than to get
some sense of where your head's at. How were you able to get
ot of the relationship?

FROSPECTIVE JURCR NO., 003: My family.

MR. LALLI: Dopes your family -- was that here in Las
Vegas?

PROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. QQ3: That was in California,

MR. LALLI: 1In California. Was your family in
California with vou?

FROSPECTIVE JURDR NO., 003: Yes,

MR. LALLI: So, you maintained a relationship with
your family?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 003: Yes,

MR, LALLI: Do you believe that some batterers try
to sever the relationship that a victim has with their family,
ar other support?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ. 003: Yes,

MR. LALLT: Do you think that that happens?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. O03:; Um~hum.

MR. LALLI: Did you —- as part of getbing yourself
out of that relationship, did you educate yourself about
domestic viglance?

PROSFECTIVE JURQE NO. 003: HNo.

MR. LALLI: Just your own experience?

FROSPECTIVE JURCR MO, 003: Yeah.

MR. LALLI: A le¢t of times, in cases of domestic
viclence, you have one spousal partner saying something
happened, and another spousal partner saying something else
happened, It's a he said, she said. What would you think is
important t¢ understanding who's telling the truth, or whose
credibility are you to give more wesight?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR WO. 003: It would be hard, unless
ycu had some type of evidence, to see what's going on. It
would be hard.

MR. LALLI: What would ygu -- what scrts of other
evidence would you think is impartant?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR NO. 003: Like, if they have any
witnesses, or anything along those lines. 1It's always kind of
a he said, she said.

MR. LALLI: All right. Would you think physical
evidence would be important? So, maybe there's 3 broken
chair, or maybe there's redness, evidence af --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. DO03: Yeah.
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MR. LALLI: -- physical injury. Would that be
important to you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: Yes.

MR. LALLI: What about & history of abuse? Is that
impartant?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: Yeah.

MR. LALLI: Why do you think a history of abuse
would be important?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: Because I think some ——
like, some pecple don’t change to where, if you're in an
abusive relationship, and you can end up in another one.

MR. LALLI: Do you think that sometimes an abusive
history could provide a motivation for committing abuse in the
future? 50, I've got this history with this person, and this
person said things to me, and it made me mad, and ! can't get
it out of my head. And maybe they called the police, and it's
a motivation for me to commit wiolence in the future. Oo you
think that happens?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: Could be.

MR. LALLI: Do you know people with mental illness?

PROSPFECTIVE JURCR HGO. D03: Ho.

MR. LALLI: Have you ever had any experience -- and
I knew you wark for an ortheopedic surgeon, so you might hava
some people with mental illness that happen to come in, But

de you have any professional experience as a medical assistant
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with mental --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: No.

MR. LALLI: —- mental illness? QCkay. What about
the idea that the defendant represents himself? Do you
understand that's a constitutienal right that we would all
have? Do you have a problem with that?

PROSPFECTIVE JUROR NOQ. 003: HNo,

ME. LALLI: During the course of a trial, would you
have any difficulty assessing the evidence against a person
who represents himself?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR No. Q03: Mo,

MR. LALLI: Do you belisve that you're a fair
person’?

BROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 003: Yes,

MR. LALLI: Do you believe that pegple cught to be
held accountable for their actions?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR Wy, 002: Yes.

MR. LALLI: All right. If we prove ta you beyond s
reasonable doubt that Mr. O'Keefe is quilty of second degree
murder, would you conviet him?

FROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 003: Yes.

MR. LALLI: Thank you. Your Honor, we'll pass for
cauge.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Lalli, Mr. O'Keefe, do

you have any questions; pass for cause?
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MR. QO'KEEFE: Yes, Your Honor, I have some. Thank
you.

THE COURT: ‘Thank you.

MRE. Q'KEEFE: 1It's Pamela?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MO, 003: Megan.

MR. O'KEEFE: 1 apologize. Do you have a family
member or anybady that's in MA, or AA? Mo offense, don't take
that wrong., Or hasically,'are you experienced with anyone
Lhat's invelved in N& gr An?

PROSFPECTIVE JURDR NO, 003: Na.

ME. O'KEEFE: Da yon feel that someone is
[inaudible! that seeks help for maybe a drinking problem, or
MAZ

PROSPECTIVE JURCR MO, 003: HNo,

MR, C'KEEFE: You wouldn't hold that against anyone?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ, 0D2: No.

MR. O'HEEFE: BActually, I believe -- tell me if you
agree with me. What I'm trying to get at is, do you think
that scmebody wvoluntarily seeks help before the court yets
them and tells them to, but seeks help on their own, is that a
good thing, or bad, or?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: Yesh, some people can,
and that's good that you're trying.

MR. Q'KEEFE: Okay. I guess this can kind of —-

everyone can hear, and I'm sure everyone's listening very
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carefully. Do you realize that actually in a trial,
sometimes, for reasoning determined by the Court, the Court
being the Judge of course, you don't hear all the evidence.

ME. LARLLI: Objecticn, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: Yeah. That's not trying to pick a fair
and impartial jurer, whether -- the evidence presented is the
evidence presented, And we don't want te geo into, they don't
hear all the evidence. That's not a praper voir dire
guestien. So, I'm going to respectfully sustain the
gbjection. Go on to something else, Mr, --

MR. O'KEEEE: Yes, sir, Your Honor. Thank you. I
guess I gar say, a3 a regular person, I never knew befare the
true definition of homicide. And of course rhe Judge, and I'm
sure the State will clearly give that definition of homicide.
But do you know yourself, or can you tell me what you feel you
think is the true definition of homicide?

PRUSFECTIVE JURDR MO, 003: I would just -- I guess
a murder. MNot really sure.

ME. O'KEEFE: Okay. Do you know in the State of
Nevada, a homicide is actually considered a death, an
interaction betwean two people, and it's actually the opposite
of what you just said. It doesn't necessarily mean it's
murder.

ME. LALLI: Your Honocrk, I'm sorry. I have to

intecrpose an objection. Under the district court rules, it's
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& viplation during veoir dire to discuss anticipated
instructicons of law,

THE COURT: Yeah. That is true, Mr. O'EKeefe. I'm
the only one, and I'm geoing to give instructions to the jury
at the particular time. We can't go in now —- I've went into
@ few instructions, presumption of innccence, guilt beyond a
reasgnable doubt, the information is a mere charging document:
and I den't go into enymore instructions.

£o, in all due respect, I'm going to sustain the
objection. You really can't get inko any jury instructions.
That will be something that I'll instruct the jury at the
appropriate time exactly what the definition of all the legal
terms are, all right? Thank you. %50 on to something else.

MR. O'KEEFE: Thank you, Your Honer. Have you ever
experienced -- been arcund anyone that's been extremely
intoxicated? A loud drunk, very loud?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. Q03: Yes.

MR. O'KEEFE: Would you agree that generally —— a
drunk person is generally exactly that, a very loud person;
obrnoxicus, loud?

PROSFECTIVE JUROR NOQ. 003: They can be. MNot all of
them are.

MR. O'EEEFE: The majority?

PROSFPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003; Yeah.

ME. O'HKEEFE: 5o, it would be very apparent
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that -- or it could be easily assessed that somehady

was intoxicated by a person’'s actions, or voplce, the smell?
B

yeah, If

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0Q03: Yeah.

MR. G'KEEFE: Easily detectable, yiau feel?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 003: If you're really drunk,
it's a drink or tws, probably not.

MR. Q'KEEFE: What if somebody was extremely drunk?
FROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 063: Usually, you can call.

MR. Q'KEEFE: Easily recognizable, correct? Wauld

you believe --

ever heesn

PROSEBECTIVE JUROR MO. 003: Yes.

MR, O'KEEFE: Has anybody in your family or yourself
blamed for scmething wrongfully?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR ND. 002: Ho.

MR. C'EKEEFE: In high school, college, a jor?
PROSPECTIVE JURCR MNO. 003: Not that 1 can recall.

MA. C'KEEFE: Do you have anybody in the family that

iz an attorney?

I'll pass

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0OD3; No.
MR. O'KEEFE: Neo further questions, Yaur Honor.
for cause,

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. O'Eeefe. Pam

Guzman= Mollinedo.

PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 004: Mallinedo,

THE COURT: All right. .How long you been in this
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area?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 004: Fgor ten years.

THE COURT: For -- what do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. D04: I work at the Wynn.

THE COUBT: Doing what?

FREOQSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 004: 1In the bakery.

THE COURT: Bakery,

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 00d4: Yeah,

THE COURT: That's good. You make [inaudible]?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 004: No.

THE COURT: [Inauvdible]? Hothing?

BERGSPECTIVE JURCR HO. 004:r Mo, We make like French
sandwich, and --

THE COURT: Oh. All right, all right. That's all
right. That's good. Are you married?

FROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 004: Yes,

THE COURT: What does your husband da?

PROSPECTIVE JURDR NO. 004: He wWorks in
censtruction.

THE CQURT: Children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 004: Two.

THE COURT: Too young to work, right?

PROSEECTIVE JUROR NO. 004: Yes,

THE COURT: Yeah. Have you ever been in the
military?
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FROSPECTIVE JOROR NO. 004: HNo,

THE COURT: Are you acguainted with anybody in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 004: No.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone close to you ever
been the victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JURDR NO. 004: No.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone close to you ever
bean arrested for a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 004: WHo.

THE COURT: Have you ever served on a jury before?

BROSPECTIVE JUROR 1H0‘ 004: HNo.

THE COURT: BAre you golng to be able to be fair and
impartial, both to the State and to the defendant?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR RO. 004;: Yas.

THE COURT: A&nd at the conclusion of this case, if
you're picked as & jurcr, I'm going to instruct you as what
the law is. You understand that?

FROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 004: Yeah.

THE COURT: It would be a violation of your cath not
to follow my instructions. You understand that?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. QD4: Yes,

THE COURT: All right. W®Well, thank you so much.
Questions; pass for cause, Ms, Marcer?

M5. MERCER: Thank you, Your Hanor. Good morning,
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ma'am.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ. 004: Goeod merning.

MS. MERCER: Do you know anyone that's ever been the
victim of domesztic viglence?

PROSPECTIVE JUROB NO. 004: No.

M5. MERCER: Mo, never?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 004: HNever.

M5. MERCER: Okay. Do you have any strong feelings
about domestic viclence that would prevent you from heing fair
and impartial in this case?

EROSPECTIVE JUROCR NO. €04: HNo.

M5. MERCER: Do you think that it's ever appropriate
to use violence to sclve a verbal dispute?

PROSPECTIVE JURDR NO. 004: HNo.

M3. MEECER: Are you —- do you think thac it's
something that should be deslt with within a family, or are
you okay with the State becoming involwved?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 004: Can you repeat the
question again?

MS. MERCER: D¢ you think that domestic violence is

a private issue that should be dealt with in the home, or are

you pkay with the fact that the S5tate becomes involved, and

prosecutes cases of domestic vielence, regardless of what a
victim may want?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 004: Like, I don't
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understand. I need like translation, or --

M3. MERCER: Are you havimg a hard time --

FROGPECTIVE JURQR MO, 004:;: Yeah.

M5. MERCER: I3 English not your native language?

ERQSBECTIVE JURCR NG. 004: Ho.

M5, MERCER: Do you think that that might impede
your ability to understand what's going on in this case?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NHO. 004: 1 kind of understand
like a litcle bir.

M3. MERCER: You understand a litrle bit.

PROSEECTIVE JUROR NQ., 004: Yeah.

M53. MERCER: Are you going to be ahle to understand
the witnesses when they testify?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR NO. 0C4: Yeah.

M5. MERCER: Do you think you would need the
assistance of an interpreter --

PROSPECTIVE JURCH WQ. D04: Ysah.

M5. MERCER: =-- to fully understand the proceedings?
Couri's indulgence.

{Pause in the proceedings)

M3. MERCER: Have you understood everything that's
gone on in the courtraom so far?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NC. 084: Um-hum.

MS. MERCER: You have? And you know that the

allggation in this case is that the defendant committed rhe
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crime of second degree murder; yeou understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCE NO. @Q4: Yes.

M:. MERCER: Do you understand that some of the
evidence that may be brought before you will be a little bit
difficult to understand? In other words, you'll be hearing
from doctors that will use medical terminology, and ether
experts, DMA analysts, fingerprint experts. Are yau going to
be comfortable with their testimony? Will you be able to
understand it sufficiently?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 004: Yeah, I will understand
a little bit,

MS. MERCER: How long hawve you been speaking
English?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MO. 004: Like for five years.

M53. MERCER: Five years? Is there any reason -- any
persenal reason that might prevent you from sitting in
judgment of the defendant in thiz casze?

PROZEECTIVE JURCR NO. 004: HNo.

MZ. MERCER: HNo? If you beliewve that the State has
met it's burden of proof at the end of the case, will you he
able to returp a verdict of guilty? Do you understand what
I'm asking you?

PROSPECTIVE JURCQR NG, 004: HNo.

M5. MERCER: Well, you understand that after you've

heard all the evidence in thig case, you're going to be asked
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te deliberate, corrsct?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR MO. 004: Ckay.

MS. MERCER: If you believe that the State has met
it's burden of proving the allegation in this case, can YO
return a verdict of guilty? Or would that be hard for you to
do? Are you still not understanding my question?

THE COURT: Pardon?

M5. MERCER: Your Honor, may we appraach, please?

{Cff-record bench conference)

THE COURT: &ll right. Pamela, you know, we're
getting a little impressicn, you know. And ir’s not FOUur
faunlt, but you know, maybe you have trouble with some English
language, and you might not -- we need a jurer te really
understand everything that's said., You understand thar?

PROSFECTIVE JURCQR HG., 004: Yes., Yes,

THE COURT: Okay. 5o, I think, with the pETmission
of the State and Mr. O'Heefe, 1I'm going to excuse ¥ou. Maybe
== go back to the jury commissioner. Maybe they have a day or
twe trial that really won't have this technical testimony that
you'd be better at, all right? 5o, thank you so much, and
report back to the jury commissioner. Thank you wery much,

The clerk will call another praspective juror number

THE CLERK: Denyce Brown,

THE COURT: Danyce?

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

np4371




Wy ot = m

10
-
12
13
14
15
16
p i
18
15
210
21
22
23
24
25

PROSFECTIVE
ME. G'KEEFE:
THE COURT:
FROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
FROSFECTIVE
THE COURT:

FROSFECTIVE

a5
JUERDR NG, OLl7: Yes.
Thank you.
How long you been in this asrea?
JUROR NO, 317: Eight years, Your Honor.
What do you do for a living?
JUROR NO., Q017: PRetired.
What did you do when you worked?

JURGR NO. 017: Mostly -- oh, excuse me.

Thank you. Administrative. I've worked in retail. I worked

on the B-1B when it was operating in California. But the

latter part is mostliy

THE COURT:

retail.

All right. You look teo young to

retire, but you're enjoying it?

PROSEPECTIVE

THE COURT:
been retired?

PROSPECTIVE
'9%.

THE COURT:

EROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:

FROSPECTIVE
noved hers.

THE COURT:

FRCSPECTIVE

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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JUROR WO, 017: When I =--
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Your health's all rigqht --
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THE COURT: -~ as you sit here? Okay, good.

yau married?

area, and

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NG. 017: No.
THE CGQURT: Children?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. C017: Two boys.

“HE COURT: What do they do for a living?

PROEFECTIVE JUROR MO, 017: My son lives hers in the

he works for Clark County,
THE COURT: What does he do in Clark County?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 01i7: Rorks for

transportation, traffic,

THE COURT: oOkay. And what about the ather child?

PROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: He's in Michigan.
THE COURT: What deoes ha do?

PROSFPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: He's a teacher.

schoel teacher.

THE COQURT: Grandchildren, I hope?
FROSPECTIVE JURCR WOQ. 017: Cne.

THE COURT: Ckay, good.

PROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: A grandson.

THE COURT: I dom't have any, you ses.

PROSGPECTIVE JUROR NC. 017: He's eight years-old,

going on 30,

THE COURT: VYeah. I know what you mean. Have you

ever been in the military?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Mo,

THE COURT: Are you acguainted with anybedy in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JURDR NG. 017: When I was living in
Michigan, where I grew up, we had a family member -- well, a
friend of my father's was a police officer.

THE COURT: Yeah. A lot of people whao have
neighbors as a police officer —-

FROSPECTIVE JUROR WO. 017: FEight.

THE COURT: =-- or go bowling —— mavybe go to the same
church, But the follow up guestion is, you understand you're
not to give greater weight or lesser weight to a police
afficer's testimony; give it the weight you deem appropriate.
You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JURJR NO. O17: Correcr, Yes, I --

THE CCURT: All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUBOR NO. 017:; -- undercstand.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely associated
with you aver been the victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Mandalism.

THE COQURT: Yourself?

PROSFECTIVE JURGR NO, 017: Perscnally, yes.

THE COURT: Somebody vandalized you?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 017: My car.

THE COUKET: Oh, okay. B2ll right. How long ago was
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that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCE NG. 017: Since I1've been here,

About [ive years ago.

THE COURT: Did they ever catch the individual?

FROSPECTIVE JURORE NO. 017: Mo, we == the officer

said probably it was children, beravse they --
THE CQDET: Yeah.

PROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: -- fut my top.

THE COURT: All right. You did report it, but they

naver =-=

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MO. 017: Oh, ir was reported,

¥es.

THE COQURT: That's not going to affect your

deliberation here?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO, 017: <Yeah. Insurance took

care of irn.

THE COURT: You don't hold that against the State or

the police for not catching the individual, do you?
PROSFECTIVE JUROR NO, 017: No.
THE COQURT: &And you certainly den't held that
against the defendant?

FROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 0l7: Correct, no.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely associated

with you ever been arrested for a crime?

EROSFECTIVE JURCR NO. 6l17: Ng, I have not.
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99

fAnyone closely asscociated, like --

PROSPECTIVE JUROCR MO. 017: MHo.

THE COURT: ©No. Have you ever served on a jury
before?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR HO. 017: Not here, but in
Connecticut,

THE COURT: How many times?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 017: Once.

THE COURT: How long ago?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR NO. 017: BA good 15 years.

THE COURT: Was it a criminal case, or a civil case?

PROSPFECTIVE JUROR No. 817: Civil.

THE COURT: 5o, somebody wanted money [inaudible] --

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 017: Damages.

THE COURT: Yeah. Damages, right. And you were
picked as a jurer?

PROZPECTIVE JURDR NO. 017: Yes, I was.

THE COURT: Were you picked as foreperson?

FROZPECTIVE JURCR NO. 017: No.

THE COURT: Y¥You did deliberate the case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Yes, we did.

THE COURT: Without telling me what the verdict was,
did your jury reach a verdict?

PROSPECTEIVE JURCR MO, D17: Yes, we did.

THE COURT: Different burden of proof between a
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criminal case and a civil case. &And again, I don't like
people going into instructigns. PBut once in a while, I'}l
instruet you that in a criminal case, 2s I indicated, the
State -- it's incumbent uvpon the State te prove the deferdant

guiley beyond a reasonable doubt. Do you wvnderstand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Yes, 1 do.

THE COURT: 1In a civil case, it's what they call =
preponderance of the evidence. You have to tip the scale,
that the plaintiff -- 51 percent, or whatever it is. 1It's
called a preponderance of the evidence. But I'll instruct you
85 what the law is, and you have to promise me you'll follow
my instructions.

PROSFECTIVE JUROR NC. (17: I will. Yes.

THE COURT: And you'll be fair and impartial in this
cage?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NC. 017: Fair and impartial.

THE COURT: Thank you so much, State, guestions;
pass for cause?

MR. LALLI: Thark you, Your Hopor. Good morning,
Ms. Brown.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 017: Hello.

MR. LALLI: You indicated that you are now retired.
Congratulations on that.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NG, 017: Thank you.

ME. LALLI: But you indicated that you had
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experience in administration?

FROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 017: Tt was like a church
crganization. HNot like; it was a church organization, and I
was the office manager for about nine years. And it
encompassed a lot of things. 5S¢, interaction with the
community, and interaction with government. It was a leaning
gxperience, yos.

MR. LALLI: Where was that?

PROSFECTIVE JURCR MNO. Q17: Hartford, Connecuicut.

ME. LALLI: Okay. Did you -- did you supervise
employees?

FROZPECTIVE JURCR NG, 01l7: Yes. A&As a matter of
feet, four people.

ME. LALLI: And what did they do? What were their
rzesponsibilities?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Majority was like making
sure letters went gut praperly, meiling. We had different
organizatien came in as meeting rooms. Setting up mestings,
make sure that went smoothly. Donations.

MR. LALLI: I'm sure because it was a --

FROSFECTIVE JURCR NO. 017: Soliciting, rather.

MR. LALLI: I'm sure because it was a church, there
were never disagresments between anybody?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR D, 017: Oh, sure. No. HNot
hardly.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

nQ4378




L kD

m ]

1d
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
232
23
24
25

102

MR. LALLI: Did you feel comfartable sorting through
those disagreements that folks that you supervised had, and
reaching a resolution on that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017; I think I know what you
mean. Like listening to everyone's opinion?

ME. LALLI: Yes, ma'am.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 017:; And -- yes, We sorted
it out asmong ourselwves, and it usually turned out for the
better when we all talked about whatever the problem was.

MR. LALLI: Did I also hear you correctly that vou
worked for the -- did you say B-1B?

PROSPECTIVE JURQOR MNO. 0l17: Rockwell --

MR. LALLI: Okay.

FROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: -- as a matter of fact.

MR. LALLI: The B-1 Bomber?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR N, 017: Correct.

HF. LALLI: What —-

PROSPECTIVE JURCR WQ. £17: It was in the BO's.

ME. LALLI: What was your involwvement in that
program?

PROUSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Mostly, working en the
computer. Procurement. Putting numbers in, and making sure
they were right, regarding the production of the airplane.

MR. LALLI: Regarding the production?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 017: Of the airplane, Yes.
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MR. LALLI: That was with Rockwsll?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ, 017: Correct,

MR. LALLI: Was that in Southern California?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Yes, it was.

MR. LALLI: Did you have any specialized training
for that position?

FROSPECTIVE JURGR NG, 017: As long as I understood
computer and knew numbers, I passed the test ard got the job.

ME. LALLI: MWaz it mainframe techrology; that sort
of -- a computer? Or was it special -- I don't want you ta --

PROSPECTIVE JURQR KO, 017: No, it was mainframe.
Yes.

MR. LALLI: All right. 3o, did you wark in -- would
it be in the accounting department, ar --

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Avionics,

MR. LALLI: Okay. And how long did you de that for?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NOQ. 017: I think it lasted five
and-a-half years, until the last bomber was —-.

MR. LALLI: Y¥You mentioned that you have children.
Did -- wers you ever -- have you ever been married?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Their father's deceased.

MR. LALLI: Okay.

PROSFECTIVE JUROR MO. 017: But no, I've never been
married.

MR. LALLI: Do you ever have any personal or
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firsthand experience with domestic vieolence?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR MNO. 0I7: 1I've had like -- as a
matter of fact, my sister in-law. You know. So ——

MR. LALLI: <Can you tell us about --

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 017: She was the aggressor.

MR. LALLI: All right.

FROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 017: In my opinion. In
everyone's opinion, even the court’s. But it was never where
anyone went to trial, but police were called in.

MR. LALLI: D¢ you -- you think everybody helieved
that she was the aggressor, even the court?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR NO. 017: Yeah. Yes,

MR. LALLI: BSo, c<an you give us some sense of the
extent to which the authorities were involved with your sister
in-law?

FROSPECTIVE JURQR WO. 017: She was put into a
program for 2 while, you know, hecause it had to do wikh —-
she was 3 drug user also. So, that was the decision of the
court, rehabilitation, which brought on the domestic part.

MR. LALLI: How close were you to her?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR HO. 017: I loved her because she
loved my brother. But they have been diverced at least 10 to
12 years.

MR. LALLI: Al]l right. So, it's been quite a while

since you've had to deal with -—
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Correct.

MR. LALLI: -- an issue like that?

FROSPECTIVE JURDE WO. 017: Correct.

ME. LALLI: Were you living at the —— in the same
city that --

PROSFECTIVE JURDR NQ. 0l17: Yes.

MR. LALLI: -- wyour hrother was at the time?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Yes. We waere living all
in the same city.

MR. LALLI: Was that Connegticut?

FROSPECTIVE JURQR MWO. 017: That was Michigan.

ME. LALLI: ©Oh, back in Michigan?

PROSFECTIVE JUEDR NQ. 017: Correct.

MR. LALLI: Do you think that & community ought to
be involved in domestic violence issues?

FROSPECTIVE JURQR WO, 017: Communicy angd family.

¥es, I do.

MR. LALLI: What do you thiok the responsibility of
the community i1s? What do you think their responsibility
ought to be?

PROSFECTIVE JUROR NMO. 017: I mesn, if you're aware
of it, I think that you should try to give them -- or whoever
needs the support, to either get oub of the situatien, or you
know -- or see what they can do for the aggressor. Because

it’'s a two-way street. Both of them will need help, the one
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who's initiating it, and the one's that's tsking it. 8o --

MR. LALLI: 1 heard you 3ay scmething about how yaur
sister in-law, or your former sister in-law had either a drug
or an alcochel problem which contributed --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ. 017: Drug.

ME. LALLI: -- io the problem?

FROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. Q17: VYes,

MR. LALLI: To what extent do you think drugs or
alecohol cught to mitigate a person's responsibility? Do you
understand what I mean by that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 017: You mean, if it's okay
&5 to --

ME. LALLI: Yeah, or we cught to --

PROGSPECTIVE JURCR HO. Ql7: -- what they're daoing?

MR. LALLI: -- we ocught to say, well, you know, they
don't really deserve to be punished, or they're really not at
fault because they were high at the time that these things
happened, What do you think zgbout that?

EROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. G17: Na, T think they'll have
responsibility for their actions,

ME., LALLI: Dg you --

PROSPECTIVE JURDR MO, 017: Because it hurts —— notr
just -- like I will say, my brother. It hurt our whole
family, and their children. So, it drew us a1l in there,

trying to, like, better the situaticn. You know, get her
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rehabilitated, as they said.

MR. LALLTI: Was she able to get rehabilitated? wWas
ghe able to get cthe problem addressed?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 017: As far as I koow, it's
5till a struggle., I guess it's s daily struggle for her,
yeah.

ME. IALLI: Did she ever — wags she ever
incarcerated for her actions?

PECSPECTIVE JURQR MO, 017: I think she was like
given, like you say, probation type situations, but I've pever
heard of her being incarcerated., Yeah.

ME. LALLI: Do you know anyone who suffers the
gffects of mental illness?

FROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 0l7: Perscnally, no.

MR. LALLI: And mental illness comes in all forms.
I mean, there's depression. Somebody talked about I think
bipolar.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR MO. 017: HRight.

ME. LALLT: &nd you den't have any --

PROUSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 817: Personally --

MER. LALILI: -- experience with that?

FROSPECTIVE JURCR WO. 017: He. I do not.

MR. BALLI: Do you -- what went through your mind
when you learned that this was a murder case?

PROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: 1 just said, you know,
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somebody's hurting., Yau know, other pecple thar are left
are hurting, because a murder does something to everybody.
don't care what anycne says. When you hear about it, you
like, you know, well, somebody lost someone. A sister, a

mother, a brother, or whatever., So.

108
hera
I

feel

MR. LALLI: Do you think that you can be a falr and

impartial jurer in a murder casa?
FROSPECTIVE JURCR MO, 017: 1 think I c&n, yes.
MR. LALLI: Do you believe in holding people
accountable for their actions?

PROSFECTIVE JURCR NO. 017: Yes, I do.

MR. LALLI: If we convince you bevond a reasonable

doubt that Mr, O'Keefe iz quilty of second degree murder,
would you convict him?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR KO, 017: Yes.

MR. LALLI: All right. Thank ycu. Your Honor,
we'll paas Eor causge,

THE COURT; All right. Thank ¥ou. Mr. O'Heefe,
questions; pass for cause?

MR. D'KEEFE: Yes, Your Honor. First, can we
approach the bench?

THE COURT: Yes,

{Off-record bench conference)

ME. O"KEEFE: And yes, I had a few guestions also.

THE COURT: Thank you,

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

104385




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
18
20
21
22
23
24
25

MR, C'KEEFE;

108

If I could centinue an now.

THE COURT: Sure, absclutely.
MR. Q'KEEFE: Thank wyou.
PROSPECTIVE JURDR NO. 017: Yas,
MR. Q'KEEFE: Ckay, Denyce. Hi.

Denyce, and everybody.

Please understand,

It's Denvyce,

right?
it is.
Bear with me,

I'm under extreme

stress and very tired, and I'm not polished like Mr., Lalli is.

You know, my first time.
through anything like th

jurars.

And hopefully, I'll never have to go

is again. 5o,

again,

forgive me

You know, you wouldn't want to be in my shoes.

Do you have anybedy that works for -- in a law firm,

ma'am?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR HNO.

0l17:

ME. O'KEEFE: Yeah.
anybody in a law firm?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. C17: Na.

MR. O'KEEFE:

Law firm?

D¢ you have a family member,

And did I hear —-

family works -- or is related toc a palice

FROSPECTIVE

growing up, my father --

Okay.

MR. O'KEETE:

PROSPECTIVE JURDR

MR. QTKEEFE:

JURCR NGO, 017:

NO. O17:

FROBPECTIVE SUROR MO, 017:

Hot

Your father was a

No,

nobody in your
officex, are they?
related, Was

police offlcer?

he had & friepd —

Oh, he had a friend, ma'am.

~= that was a police
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cificer.

MR. O'EEEFE: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JURDR NO. Q17: Family -- I considered a
family membezr, but he was a friend of my father's.

ER. O'KEEFE: This is think is a very key question.
Do you think it's imperative to krow if somebody is diagneosed
with a mental illness —— multiple mental illnesses? Do you
think that that could add to a case, the facts?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MNO. 0l7: All the facts, and they
have mental problems, yes.

MR, Q'KEEFE: Qkay.

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NOD. 017: Yes,

MR. O'KEEFE: ©Need to be careful, here. I gdon't
want to —- have you been in Vegas long?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: HNine years November.

MR. O'KEEFE: WMNine years. Okay. Do you have a
computer?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 017: Mo,

MR. O'KEEFE: HNo?7

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NGZ. 017: I have every other
device, but not computer.

MR. O'KEEFE: Okay.

PRGSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: But I do use the one at
the libracy.

MR, O'EEEFE: You do use the one at the library®
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Ckay, s0 you're familiar with it. Aotually, you know, ar this
time, I have no further guesticns. I'il pass, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you very much, Mr. D'Keefe. You
know, it's a good time now to -- we didn't take 3 break. It's
a good time to take our lunch break now, all right, ladies and
gentlemen? But when you come back, make sure ¥you take the
same seats. GSee where you're seated, and make sure vou take
the same seats.

And we'll see everybody about —— you know, between —
- about a guarter after 1:00. All right? We'll see -- and
just wait outside. Don't come in. Just wait outside, and pur
marshal will bring you in all at once., Abour ten after 1:00,
gquarter after 1:00. All right?

THE MARSHAL: Held on just a second, guys. Hold on
Just a second.

{Fzuse in the procesedings)

THE COURT: Thank you very moch. We'll be at ease
until the jury leaves,

(Outside the presence of the prospective jury panal)

THE COURT: All right. This is ocutside the pressnce
of the jury. I just want to make a record on a few things.
The -- one of the jurors was sick, Juror number 07-0079,
Dudiey -- or Dante Dudley. &and he wrote a letter saying he's
throwing up, and he needs to be excused. And I did cireculate

this note to the State and Mr, Q'Keefe. &nd it's my
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understanding both of you agreed to excuse; is that correct?

MR. LALLI: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. O'KEEFE: That is carreck, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You had no cbjections to me excusing
him. So, we'll make that part of the record. And there's a
few things that Mr. -- or there's one thing that Mr. 0'Keefe
objected to. And the record will reflect that the defendant
properly and timely made an objection. So, for the record, he
timely did it, but I indicated, let's excuse the jury and make
& record on it now.

But T did deny Kis objection at the bench regarding
gsomething -- Mr. Lalli using the term "battery domestic
viclence." I'm not guite sure what it was. But I listened to
it, but I felt compelled o deny it. But I am going to allow
Mr. O'Keefe to make a record on it, all right?

ME. O'REEFE: Y@=, Your Honor. I just == firs:s af
all, again, I apologize, and I really appreciate your patience
with me. But I must be adamant in preserving my right in the
fact that the law of the case of the first appeal has been set
by the Nevada Supreme Court. And they have clearly indicated,
and they've read the record, Your Henor, that they weare trying
Lo == they referred in opening statement and closing statement
-— argument, excuse me, of the first trial, that the act was
in the course of a battery domestic vioclence.,

They were gquite clear alsoc, because Phillip Smith,
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the prosecutor at that time, litigated at a Petrwcelli hearing
the history of the deomestic violences. The whole issue was
the battery domestic viclence being brought in. They
gquesticned the jurors about -- basically, they were just
referring that it was definitely in the act of a battery
domestic viclence.

Now, Your Honor, with all due respect -- and I'll be
brief. My argument again to protect myself is that, as it
stands right now, Your Henor, I'm being prosecuted in the
sense as -- like George Zimmerman of Florida. He's baing
prosecuted for the first time, first trial, on the depraved
heard, murder theory -- malice theory, which Nevada recognizes
as the abandoped and malignant heart theory, which you well
know better than me.

Again, my point being, is, I'we been acquitted of
any intentional —— with intent, stabbing. Again, on appeal,
not only did the Nevads Supreme Court rule and make law of the
case, they ruled that I did no unlawful act. Yes, the jury
instruction was wrong.

But I also -- after reviewing the record on appeal
—~ Presented on appeal, they decided the issue, tos, in my
tavor, that I absolutely did no unlawful act. Battery. They
knew what they were saying. The elements were described.

It's merged in for the single alleged act; they acquitted me

of it.
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I understand what Mr. Lzlli has te de here, and Ms.
Mercer. They are leading the jurors inte believing -- it's
too close to the theory of the case. They're trying again to
technically get away orally suggesting that, again, this
homicide —- alleged, that I’ve been acauitted of, I must say
for the record, in my opinion — that this whele event
happened in the act of a battery DV.

Now, Honor isic), real guick, and I'll be done.
There was only one alleged act. They called it s battery act.
But because she allegedly died from the battery act, it became
murder. That's -- it's not a battery, on top of a battery, in
top of a battery. 1 mean, how many batteries do I got te get
clear of before I get to the act that I've been acquitted of?

You will clearly understand what I'm saying. The
felony, alleged, murder instruction was the only instruction
that they could give to base their theory on conserving the
facts of my case. There was na underlining charge. Thers was
no nothing. They prosecuted me simply on a battery act. Jt's
either I did it, or I didp't.

Again, te sum up, my whole point is, he's arguing
and leading the Jjury into the thought pattern that a battery
act was committed, and I've been acguitted of it. And the law
of the case has been established guite clearly. Mot only
that, he's trying to argue it, and give the idea, and bring

evidence in, is what he wants to do.
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But & ruling still hasn't been made, because Judge
Villani isft this ¢eurtroem, and put it all in your hands.

Let Judge senior Bonaventure deal with it, &and he hasn't
properly alleged the amended information on a hattery act.
There's no theory plausible possible. There's no lawful act,
Your Honer, that would constitute second degres murder.

THE COURT: All right. Well, you have -- again, you
had that on federal appeal, but I wanted you to make a record.
Mr. Lalli?

ME. LALLI: Your Honor, it's the same record I made
earlier. We're proceeding under --

THE CQURT: Well, make it again, just very briefly.

MR. LALLI: Sure. We are proceeding under a theory
of malice murder, either expressed or implied malice. What
Mr. O'Keefe I think it's struggling with undarstanding iz that
the Nevada Supreme Court said there was no evidence of felony
second degree murder; an NRS 200,070 type murder. ‘That's not
what we're alleging here. That's not our theory of the case,

THE CQUERT: And it was in the first trial?

MR. LALEI: Well, I den't know. It was not a theory
that was alleged in the c¢harging decument. And so, the
Supreme Court reversed on that. &And I1'm happy to =-

THE COQURT: ®Ng =--

MR, LALLI: Well, 1'm happy to present the Court

with the actual prder of reversal,
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THE COURT: Yeah. Just bring that to me and my
attention. Just, you know, put it on my desk, and 7'l1 look
over it.

MR. LALLY; 1 will do that after lunch., Bur what
they —~ the problem was, the theory of 070, the Supreme Court
never sald this was not a malice murder. They never said that
the State could not proceed on a thecry of second degres
murder, as —-

THE COURT: H#ell, again, it is what it is =--

MR. LALLI: -- we're alleging now.

THE COURT: -- what the Supreme Court said. There
was a ruling made. Mr. O'Heefe has that on appeal in the
federal -- and perhaps, it will be determined to be right in
the federal court. BAut I -— I allow ¥ou Lo make your recard,
and it seems to me that there was no evidence --— they didn"t
want the felony -- they didn't want the felony indication; is
that correct? The Supreme Court -- that's what the Supreme
Caurt said? WNo evidence of any felony second degree.

MR. LALLI: Correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And you're not going to presant that
here now.

MR, LALLI: That's correct.

THE CQURT: You're just going on malica, eExpressed
or implied.

MR. LALLI: Correct.
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THE COURT: S0, we Know what we'ra doing, and
there's a record mede on it, and we'll go from there. 50, I'm
going to deny your objection. And so, we'll see everyhody —-

MR. C'KEEFE: Well, Judge, could I ~-

THE COURT: Sure, go ahead.

MR. QO'KEEFE: Please forgive me. And it’s small, to
protect myself, And I'll be real brief. That is oot correct.
If I may present te the Judge now -- to the Court —— T gave
Mr. Lalli a copy of it, This has everything in it that you
need. Tt's par NRS 47.150, subsection 2, which is by the
Hevada —- you knew better than me; mandates that if T offer
the documents, I'm regquesting that you, and it gays that you
supposedly have o -- forgive me. I'm trying to protect
myself.

I made a little index. There's 18 exhibits. Aand I
put exactly what they are, and the date. And then, I provided
them exhibits, Your Honor, with a cover sheet, nice and clean,
what it is, exhibit number, and then the document. It has the
initial complaint and information, the first information filed
electronically, the amended information that you're going to
S5e0 -- you're going to he amazed.

The amended information that's got the reversal
order. You're going to see jury instruction number 18 form
the first trial, that the Nevada Supreme Court did the law of

the case on. I even got trial transcripts in there of the
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opening statement and the closing statement, T do believe.
I've got the Ninth Circuic reversal order in here.

He's proceeding on the same charge. Murder is
murder. You have to determine first that it was an unlawful
—— uvniawful; key. Not -- any reasonable self-defense negates
malice. Unlawful killing with malice aforethought, either
expressed or implied.

Expressed is for first degree intentional stabbing.
The jury, being of the tier of the fact, acguitted me of the
first trial, of intentional -- there's msven a section, the
motion to settle the record, where Jodge Villani himself —-
you'll fipnd it guite interesting, and the State prasecutor
says, you're absolutely right. He has been acquitted of any
intent -- criminal intent; a judicial admission by Judge
Villani.

Now, when the jury returned second degree murder,
the subdiviasion 2 was an instruction on implied malice murder.
It doesn't say anything about felony murder; nothing like
that. They were just saying, this is how you prove implied
malice murder for second degree murder. They give the
definitien, then, this is how you would prove it, how ¥Ou
would prove the single concept of malice aforethought,
implied. You will see it. You'll be amazed.

There’s nothing in here in the charging document

that says anything about a feleny. And again, they haven't
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even slleged any unlawful act, berause he can't. He's barred,

He's -~

and we'll

THE COQURT: BAll right.

MR. Q'KEEFE: =-- time-barred,

THE COURT: That's the same argument.

MR. Q'KEEFE: If I can present this as --

THE CQURT: Made it -- yeah, give it to the clerk,
make that part of the record.

MR. Q'KEEFE: I guess --

THE COURT: And we'll go from there, all right?

ME. O'KEEFE: O'Kegfe -- or 3& for -- 3 being for

third trial, Exhibit A; if that's acceptable, Your Honor?

the jury,

THE COURT: 1Is that all right, Mz. Lalliz

MR. LALLT: Yes.

THE COURT: We'll mark it as --

MR. LALLI: Sure.

THE CLERK: Actually --

THE COURT: We don't want -- it's not going ta go to
Sa, it's going to be a --

MR. O'KEEFE: Mo, not for the jury. But for the —-
MR. LALLI: A court exhibit.

THE COURT: -- g¢ourt exhibit.

MR. O'KEEFE: For the record of the trial, right,
THE COURT: Court Exhibit 2. Let's make it that.

ME. CTEKEEFE: Court Exhibit 27
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THE COURT: What's 17 I'm just curious.

THE CLERK: 1It's the note that you gave me.

THE COURT: O©h. The note is -- the excusal. That
will be Court Exhibit 1, the note. And this will be Court
Exhibig 2.

MR. Q'KEEFE: And I -- this last time, Your Honor,
and T'11 get off ef it. I promise you, sir. I appreciate
¥Oour patisnce. And gosh, you're great. Could you take a look
at what I'm saying that I have passed to you? And you'll
guite clearly see.

THE COURT: 1I'll locok at it. But I don't want tg --

MR. O'KEEFE: Thank you, Your Honsr. That's all I
ask.

THE COURT: We'll address it one more time at the
appropriate time,

ME. O'KEEFE:!: Thank you so much,

THE COURT: But we'll go from there. But —-

MR. O'KEEFE: Thank you, Your Honor. That's all I
ask.

MR. LALLI: Your Henor, I emsiled a copy of thar
opinion from the Nevada Supreme Court --

THE COURT: All right. Good.

MR. LALLI: -- te Judge Villani's secretary.

THE COURT: I'll get it.

MR, LALLI: 50 -- and I asked her to print thart.
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THE COURT: All right. So, we'll finish --
hopefully, we'll finish the jury in a few hours, and then
we'll -- if we have time, we'll have brief opening statements,
If not, we'll do it tomorrow. But =--
MR. LAILT: WVery good, Your Honor.
THE COURT: =-- no witnesses. I think it's -- we°ll

fnear witnesses tomorrow, all right?

ME. LALLI: &ll right. Thank you. Does the Court
—-- what time would the Court like to start tomorrow?

THE COURT: Well, you know, we have the B:15 --
hopefully I'll be quick, and it will ba -- I think 9:30 is
fFine,

MR. LALLI: All right.

THE COURT: 9:30.

MR. LALLI: Very good.

THE COURT: Be careful, You said something on your
question to the jury, please bear with me, this is the Lirst
time I'm doing this. I'm not asure —— you better be careful of
what you say on that, because you don't want to open the door
te that you've been in court before., I mean, I just -— just a
thought .

MR. Q'KEEFE: Thank you, Your Honor. Thank you.

THEE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

MR. O'KEEFE: Qkavy.

MR. LALLl: Thank wvou, Your Honor,
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MR. MANIMG(O: Thank you, sir.

THE MARSHAL: All right. We're in recess.
{Court recesssad at 12:05 p.m. until 1:26 P.m.})
{Within the presence of the prospective jury panal)

THE COURT: All right. Let's proceed with the
selection of the jury.
that correct?

PROSPECTIVE JURCRE NO, (00%: Yes.

THE COURT: How long you been in this area?
PROSPECTIVE JURDR MG. 005: 16 years.

THE COURT: What do you do for a living?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. Q05: I'tmt a waitress.
THE COURT: Where?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: At Suncoast.

THE COURT: All right. Are you marrieds?
PROSPECTIVE JURCR N2, 005: Ho, single.

THE COURT: Children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: One.

THE COURT: Old encugh to work?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 005: Yeah.

THE COURT: what do they do?

PROSPECTIVE JURUR HO. 005: Just graduated col
THE COURT: Don't have a job yet?

PROSFECTIVE JUROR NMO. 005: He just got ona w:

Marketing.
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THE COURT: OCkay.

MR. LALLI: If there is an ohjection that the
defendant has, he's required to make it. Blanket cbjections
are not allowed in aur State jurisprudence, and then the Court
is reqguired to rule on that.

THE COURT: Okay. Go ahead,

MR. O'KEEFE: Well, as the time -- you know, it
would cause me to have to hold up, cite some state law; this
and that, and this and this. You know. I just don't see
what's the harm. It's a simple procedure. T mean, why not
just grant that? &And I'll let you decide on that.

But I want to move on to the cother issue, Your
Honor, and let you have -- gkay. In his argument, he said
that it was the felony murder theory. Your Honor, who are we
kidding here? 1t doesn't matter whether it was felony murder,
malice murdex, whatever. Murder is murder. The means, that
has —- that doesn't matter. 1It's still —— murder is murder,
for double jecpardy purposes. Okay?

The issue on the felony murder instruction. Again,
the 3tate themselves in the fsst track response, which Mr.
Lalli deesn't want to cecognize -- Steven QOwens; when he
answered that issue that the Supreme Court decided in my
favor, he said, what are you guys talking about? And it's in
the copies that I'm having copied. T gave a copy of the fast

track response,
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Issue 2, He says, that's nothing more than implied
malice murder. We have a right to show how second degree
murder can be foupd, by malice implied. And then, they ewven
state that -- instruction 13 states, you muskt remember the
ryule. Murder was by malice aforethought, either expressed or
implied. First degree was expressed malice murder. Second
degree was by implied.

Again, my whole point 15, the State admits in the
fast track response, we don't know what you gquys are talking
about; that instruction was nothing but implied malice murder.
Ckay. How ironic again, nowadays, Your Honor, he's on the
tast track to answer the federal public defender. He's gut to
fdo the appeal again for the State of Nevada. B2nd he's already
addressed it,

How ironic: it's come full-cirele. Over three years
agce, he did the fast track response. Now, he's gort to answer
that iszsue again, and he's already made a Judicial admission.
It's just going to be something to see,

Alse, what I'm getting at is jury instruction 18,
which -- that's why I wanted 3 copy, I wanted to show you. If
you could just lock at it. Theory 1 that Mr. Lalli is Crying
to preceed on i3 malice murder. Second degree murder is
murder is malice aforethought, without premeditation and

deliberation. That's just the statutory definition of malice

murder.
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Qkay. Then, on the first trial theory numkber 2 was,
an involuntary killing that happens in the commission of an
unlawful act; blah, blah, blah, blah. The Nevada Supreme
Court said, the evidence didn't support in theory number 2
what you were addressing. Your Heonor, please hear this, You
are a senior judgs.

The law says -- Kmazt ys. Waghington. Any remaining
theory left on that charge, if the evidence would have
supported it, the appellate court was bound to say, well,
okay, it didn't support number 2, but we're going to say it
supports the statutory definitien of second degree murder.

He's proceeding right now the same as the second
trial. He has not noticed me with an unlawful act. I don't
even knew how to do my jury instructicns. He's —=—- I'm
dcquitted pf --

THE CQURT: You're repeating yourself now, Mz.
O'Feefe.

ME. O'KEEFE: Dkay.

THE CGQURT: You've made your record. I can'k be
here all day with this.

MR. O'KEEFE: Right.

THE CQURT: T mean, I try --

MR. O'KEEFE: Well, I have to make this, Your Honor,

THE COURT: Well, you did. But you're repeating --

MR. Q'EEEFE: (kay.
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THE COURT: -- and repeating the same thing. I
don't see 5 -- if I federal (sic), you still have a right to
give your reasoning for either -- is there going to be &

problem with the State to do that?

ME, QO'KEEFE: Gees, work with me.

THE COURT: Mr. Lalli?

MR. LALLI: Your Honor, we -- it is, in affect, a
blanket objection.

THE CQURT: All right,

MR. LALLY: 1If he has an objection tg --

THE COURT; &All right.

MR. LALLI: -- something, he’s got to make it,

THE COURT: The federazlization is denied, and we

26

have to make a record on that., You know, we can go on all day

oen this, I heard what you had to say. I'm going to allow you

Lo make your exhibits part of the record. I guess we'll style

it a motion to dismiss because it's dpuble jeopardy.

This was ruled on before by Judge Villani. 1It's in

the federal system. You have your remedy, ne matter what

happens here. Nobody can take away your federal remedy, your

fast track remedy., Bur I'm geing to -- in all due respect,
have to deny it here.

ME. O'KEEFE: Ckay, Your Honer.

¥HE COURT: HNow, the guestion here was this battery,

which Judge Villani already ruled on. You want to say
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anything regarding that, the prigr --

MR. O'KEEFE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Well, do it.

MR. O'KEEFE: Thank you. I was going to -- okay, I
was waiting for you patiently to —

THE COURT: I made the ruling.

MR. O'KEEFE: Qkay. Aas far as the battery, Your
Hongr —- God bless her soul; she's not here. She'sz dead. I
have the right to confront her about it, because she was very
mentally ill., The testimony given —— nobody knew at the time
when she made it, it wasn't -- it was basically -- she was
mentally 111. Again, I'm --

THE COURT: I don't think that addresses that issue.
Again, the issue is --

MR. O'KEEFE: You said the bhattezy.

THE COURT: ~-- the prior --

MR. O'KEEFE: Battery domestic violence.

THE COURT: Judge Villani ruled on that you're
allowed to bring into the jury the prior felony conviction for
battery domestic violence, third offense.

MR, LALLI: That's correct, as well as the facts --

THE COURT: As well as the facts.

MR, LALLI: -- supporting that conviction.

THE COURT: Seo, Judge Villani already ruled en it.

#e has a record on it. If Judge Villani is wropg, he's wreng.
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It will be appealed, and it will be reversed. But I don't
want te revisit Judge Villani's decision on that, but do you
want to say anything regarding just that one narrow issue,
that they're net allowed to bring in to the front af the jury
this --

MR, O'KEEFE: Okay. Believe me, I'm under the gun
in this, &nd 1 understand I chose this, Your Honor. Ckay.
Dealing with that particular felony battery domestic violenca,
C-207835, the State of Mevada, on February 10th, 2009, held =
Petrocelli hearing, and they listed all of my battery domestic
violences, and the cne felony battery domestic violence.

They litigatred the death ocut of it, and it was
tinally resclved day one of trial, March 16th, 2009. Judge
¥illani, since it was -- they were proceeding on first degree
intentional murder -- and Mr. Lalli is well aware of this. He
wasn't the prosecutor at chat time. It was Mr. Smith, who is
now over at the federal courtc.

Judge Villapi says, I'm going to allow that federal
battery demestic wviclence in for the purpose of motive and
intent.

THE COURET: Um-hum.

MF. Q'KEEFE: And I took the stand.

THE COURT: I don't know if he said --

MR. O'KEEFE: But somehow, they brought it in.

THE COURT: He didn't say if you took the stand. He
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didn't say that. But I mean, he mentioned --

MR. O'KEEFE: They allowed —

THE COURT: ==~ that alsgo about --
ME. O'EEEFE: I wasn't -- Your Honor --
THE CQURT: -- alszo for self-dofense.

MR. Q'REEFE: Yes, Your Honor. And I don't mean --
I wasn't finished. They end up bringing it in their case in
chief, Okay.

Now, my point is, that issue was decided on, I did
no battery. I did no battery act. he vs. Sw . They
cannot [inaudible] anything to do with battery, Your Honor.
The Nevada Supreme Court is going te say, what did you guys
do? Mr. O'Keefe repeatedly brought this up --

THE COURT: &all right, wall —

MR. QO'KEEFE: But we should stop it mow. But
afnyway, then, the second trial proceeds. He brings all the
stuff in; gets away with it. 1I'm telling him -- what are you
doing? But he got away with it. Well, we went toc a —— they
scheduled a third trial, because of the mistrial. Of course,
2 nugatory proceeding. It's like it never happened.

Ms. Mercer, schedule was late. Two days after
calendar call, another Petrocellil hearing on the exact same

acts, which again are in the motieon I'm asking to get copied.

They re-litigated twe days late. After the original calendar

call had been set for six months, seven morths, they scheduled

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

304306




Ll
12
13
14
15
14

17

1%
20
21
22
23
24
25

30

a4 hearing con Petrocelli to tiy to scare me. Who are we
kidding? Stop it. That's -- it's the truth,

They're going to bring all this stuff -- all this
stuff [inaudible]. TIt's the same evidence they already
re-litigated. Issue of preclusion, claim for preclusion.

Tive Star vs. Nevada (phonetic). O©Ch my God, they have done

everything wrong. They were trying to scare me, &And I
brought up per EDCR rule 3,28, any motion has to be acheduled
at least by calendar call. Come on, Your Honor. That's --
they —-

THE COUAT: Judge Villani ruled on it, though. I
den’t know what to tell you. I'm not going to reverse Judge
Villani right now., He ruled on it. You made that same
argument, 1 guess, and he made a ruling.

MR, Q'KEEFE; And --

THE COURT: 5o, that's the law of the case, as far
a5 1'm concerned.

MR. D'KEEFE: The trial court decisions do not
constitute the law of the case, is what I'm trying to aay.

THE COURT: W®ell, you cbject to that, but I'm going
to allow you to de that. All right, Mr. -- because that's
what Judge —-

MR. O'RKEEFE: I'm going to object heavily, Your

Honeor.

THE COURT: That's what Judge -- well, vou did. You
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made it part of the record. You objected. and you could --
ME. OTKEEFE: And I'm being forthright --
THE COURT: So, I don't know what to tell you.
MR. O'KEEFE: -- with vyou, Yaur Honor. With all due
respect, he tries to bring in any evidence with battery -- I'm

going to object during the trial.

THE COURT: I don't care if you object.

'MR. C'KEEFE: 1I'm going to chject until I'm blue in
the face teo everything. It's the same standard of proof.

It's the same level.

THE CQURT: Thank you wvery mach. You can'k --

MR. Q'KEEFE: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: =-- object until you're bhlue in the face,

MR. O'KEEFE: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You make an objection, Mr. Lalli
responds, and I make a ruling., There's no objection vntil
you're blue in the face, because then that's a disrtuption of
the courtrocom. And I can't allow in my court a disruption of
the c¢ourtroom. I can't allow that, I can't allow you to run
this trial.

I could give you a fairxr trial, give the State a fair
trial, allow you to object, make a record. But I can't allow
you to go blue in the face, because that would be a farce
then, and I won't allow that. 3So, anything else, Mr. Lalli?

MR. LALLI: Not on behalf of the State, Your Honor,
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THE COURT: All right., 8o, we're all set to bring
in the jury now; is that correct, Mr. Laili?

THE MARSHAL: Mr, Lslli.

THE COURT: We're all set to bring in the jury?

ME. LALLI: Yes, Your Honor. Yes.

THE COURT: And you will give me that limiting
Inztruction when you --—

ME. LALLI: Your Honor, I can email it te -- I have

it here. I can email it To --

THE COURT: Yeah. BAll right, {inaudible].

MR. LALLI: And should I copy Mr. Maningo on that?

THE COURT: Yeah, please.

MR. LALLI: It's the same instruction that --

THE COURT: Fine. All right. So, we're gaing to
bring in the jury now: is that correct? All right, wWe'll
bring in the jury. Put -— you know, 1 through 7.

THE WMARSHAL: 1 through 12. Judge, on the second
page of your juror sheet, at the very bottem, 008D, I believe
it is, Carmen Romerg, she's the only one that's not present.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE MARSHAL: Everybedy else L1s present.

THE COURT: All right,

THE MARSHAL: All right.

THE COURT: Thank you.

THE MARSHAL: All right. Here we go.
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{Pause in the proceedings)
THE MARSHAL: Qffirers and members of the court,
Department 17 potential jurors.
{Hithin the presence of the prospective jurf panel)
{Pausg in Lhe proceedings)
THE MARSHAL: Okay. Pid you guys stay in seguence?
Something didn't go right. Somebody got out of sequence.
Carol, give me the firast 12.
THE CLERE: Mr. Swifz,
PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 001: Here.
THE CLERK: Collins, Stutz, Guzman-Mollinedo,
Mac{ueen, Andrade, Roche, Hulbert, Hagl, Humphries, Patton.
THE MARSHAL: Patton, What's the last name; Patton?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG, §l3: Fatton.
THE CLEBEK: P-a-t-t-g=n.
THE MARSHAL: Patton.
{Pause in the procesdings)
THE CULERK: We need 12.
THE MARSHAL: 8, 10, 11 --
THE CLERK: We negd --
THE MARSHAL: -- and [inaudible].
THE CLERK: We need 12.
THE MARSHAL: And what's your last name?
FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 014: Leming.

THE MARSHAL: Is Leming the next perscon?
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THE CLEBRK: Yes.

THE MARSHAL: All right.
(Pause in the proceedings)
THE MARSHAL: All righr. You may be seated, ladies
and gentlemen. Carol, can you do a roll call?
(Roll of jury called by clerk)
{Pause in the procesdings)
THE MARSHAL: OQOkay. Is there anybody that had --
needs hearing assist?  Hukl?
UNKNOWN MALE SPEARKER: I believe I do.
THE MARSHAL: Yeah. Weed hearing -- hearing assist.
Was there somebody else over here? Okay. When they approach
the bench -- when you see the attorneys go v to the hench,
then I need you to pull them off, okay?
UNKNOWN MALE SPERKER: Pull them off?
THE MARSHAL: Yeah, take them off your ears,
{Fause in the proceedings)
THE MARSHAL: Okay. T think we're ready. Are you
ready? PDefepse, you ready?
MR. Q'EEEFE: Yes, Marzhal.
THE MARSHAL: State?
MR. LALLT: Yes,
{Pause in the procsedings)
THE MARSHAL: All rise and come to order.

Department 17 of the Eighth Judicial District is now in
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gession. The Honorable Judge Joseph Bonaventure is presiding.
You may be seated. Remain in order. Please make sure your
cell phones are all off,

THE COURT: A1l right. This is the time set for
trial in case number C-250630, State of Mevada vs. Brian Kerry
Q'Heefe. Introduce yourselves, State, for the record, to the
jury.

M5. MERCER: Your Hanor, do you want me ko --

THE COURT: Just intreoduce yourself,

M3, MERCER; -- do the whole introduction? Okay.

I'm Deputy District Attorney Liz Mercer, and I'm
prosecuting the case with Chief Deputy District Attorney
Christopher Lalli.

THE COURT: Thank you, And also, we have the
defendant, Mr. Brian Kerry O'Keefe. And he's here, and he's
representing himself. We do have a standby attorney, and
introduce yourself, sir.

MR. MANINGO: My name is Lance Manipgso, and I'm
serving as standby counsel for Mr. O0'Keefe.

THE CQURT: Thank wyou, Mr. Maningo,

MR, MANINGO: Thank you, sir.

THE COURT: SS9, State's ready to proceed.

Pefendant, we're ready tao procesad?
MR. OTHEEEFE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: The clerk will call the roll of the jury
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panel members. When your name is called, plesse state "here”
or "present" so we know you're here.

{Pause in the proceedings)

THE CQURT: All right. Apparently, the clerk has
already called the rell. Do we necd to do it again, Mr.
Lalli?

MR. LALLI: No, Your Honor. TI'll acecept the
bailiff‘s --

THE COURT: OCkay. Do we need to do it again, Mr.

She alrxeady called the roll of the jury.

ME. OTEEEFE: No, Your Henor. That's ckay. We can
move along, =ir.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you very much.

ME. C'KEEFE: Yes, sir, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I appreciate it. I'm going to ask the
clerk to swear -- we have the prospective jurors behind the
railing, and we have the prospecrive jurors -- excuse me. In
the Jjury box, and behind the railing. Everybody, please stand
up, raise your right hand, and be sworn.

PROSEBECTIVE JURY PANEL SWORN

THE CQURT: Thank you very much. You can be seated.
I'm going to ask the -- I'm going te ask the district attorney
to briefly state the nature of this case, and indicarte the
pessible witnesses that you might call in this case. They

might not call everybody, but they're going to indicate aome
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1| possible witresses. So, I'd like the jury to be cagnizant of
2| the witnesses, because I'm going to ask if any of the jurors

3| know these witnesses. Ms. Mercer?

4 M5. MERCER: Thank you, Your Honor.
5 Ladies and gentlemen, the specific allegation in
€| this case is that on November 5th of 2008 at 5001 Ei Pargue

7| Avenue, apartment 335, the defendant committed the crime of

B| second degree murder with use of a deadly weapon, when he

I 8| stabbed Victoria Whitmarsh with a knife.

10 The witnesses that the State intends to call at this
11} point to prove that allegation include Cheryl Morris, Joyce

12| Teliver, Charles Toliver, also known as "Cookie:™ Jimmy

13| Hathcox.

19 Officer Christopher Hutcherson of the Las Vegas

15| Metropolitan Police Department, Detecrive Todd Conn of the Las

16 Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, Sergeant Dan Newberry of
17) the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, Detective
18 | Jeremiah Ballejos with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
19| Department.

Crime Scene Analyst Jocelyn Maldonado with the Las
Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, Crime Scene Analyst
Daniel Ford with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department,
Crime Scene Analyst Robbie Dahn with the Las Vegas
Metropuolitan Police Department.

Dr. Timothy Dutra, a medical examination with the
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Clark County Coroner's Officer. Edward Guenther, a latent
print examiner with Metro's forensic lab. Jennifer Bas, a DNA
analyst with the forensic lah., Detective Marty Wildemann, a
homicide detective with Las Vegas Metropolitan Palice
Department. Elynne Wornicov (phoaetic) Greene;: she's a
victim's advocate at Metro. BAnd Lisutenant Roger Price.

Additional witnesses that may be called include
Detective Sean Taylor with Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department, Detective Christopher Bunn, another homicide
detective; and Crime Scene Analyst Chelsea Collins.

THE CCURT: Thank you, Ms. Mercer. Now, Mr,
O'Keefe, you want to stand up, intreduce yourself, and say hi
to the —-

MR. O'KEEFE: Yas,

THE COURT: -- prospective jurocrs, and indicate --
yocu know, this is not an opening statement. Just a --

ME. Q'KEEFE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: So, if you want to intreoduce yourself,
that's fine.

MR. CG'KEEFE: Thank you. Hi, folks, My name is
Brian Q'Keefe. A tragedy happened on November 5th. You're
here to be selected to hear the case. It's going ko be a
brief case, folks. The only witnesses I may call would be &
Dorothy Robe (phonstic), 2 Robert Pizzano (phoneticl, a Lou

Desalvio ({phonetic), and Tracy Burger (phonetic). If anybody
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knows those people, please let us know. Gther than that, I
thank yau.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. O'Keefe, I appreciate
it. 1'm going to read this to you before, because you know --
I vsually don't do this. B8Sut -- and I'l]l probably state this
ggain when we get the initial 12 psople, or the final 12.

Understand that an information or an indictment is
simply a charge, and that it is not in any sense evidence of
a2llegations it centains. The defendant has plead not guilty
-- there's an information? I guess there's an informatiom,
right?

THE CLERK: Second amended information.

THE COURT: Yeah. 211 right. So, the informaticon -
- the 5tate therefore has the burden of proving each of the
essential elements of the information beyond a reasonable
doubt. As the defendant sits there right now, he's not
guilty. The purposze of this trial is to determine whether the
Srate will meet that burden.

It is your primary responsibility as jurocrs te find
and determine the facts. Onder our system of criminal
progedure, you are the sole judge of the facts. You are to
determine the facts from the evidence you hear, and other
evidence, including exhibkits introduced in court, It is up to
you to determine the inferences which you feel may be properly

drawn from the avidence.
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Parties may scmebtimes present objecticons to some of
the testimony or other evidence. Ik iz the duty of each party
to object to evidence which he or she believes may not
properly be offered, and you should not be prejudiced in any
way agalnst anybody --— any of the parties who make cbjections
on behalf of themselves.

At times, T may sustain objiections, or direct that
you disregard certain testimony or exhibits., You must not
consider any evidencs bo which an objection has been
sustained, or which I have instructed you to disregard.

In censidering the weight and walue of the testimony
of any witness, you may take into consideration the
gppearance, attitude, and behavior of the witness, the
interest of the witness in the outcome of the case, if any,
the relationship of the witnesses to the deferndant or the
State, the inclination of the witness te speak truthfully or
not, and the probability or impreobability of the witness's
statements, and 211 of the facts and circumstances in
evidence.

Thus, you may glve the testimony of any witness such
weight and value as you believe the testimony of the witness
iz entitled to receive. 7Tt is for you te decide how much
weight to give to any evidence.

After the jury selection, we'll have an opening

statement by the State; perhaps by the defense. State's
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evidence; possibly defense evidence. Jury instructicns, and
closing arguments.

Until this case is submitted to you, you must not
discuss it with anyone, even with your fellow jurors. After
it is submitted to you, you must discuss it only in the jury
room with your fellow jurors. It is important that you keep
an open mind, and not decide any issue in this case wnatil the
entire case has been submitted to you under instruction from
me.

If you can't hear & wiktness, raise your hand. And
that gees far voir dire. Please keep your voice up, because
everything that's said is made part of the record. And that's
about what I want to say here.

Mow, 1'm going bko ask a few gquestions to the entire
panel. Are any of you acguainted with the defendant in this
casg, Mz, O'Keefe? Negative. Or Mr. Maningo, standby
counsel? Megative. Or Mr. Christopher Lalli or Ms. Mercer
from the district attorney's office? All negative,

Any of the -- acquainted with any of the witnesses
that Ms. Mercer mentionegd she might call? Negative. Any of
you acquainted -- again, the defense doesn't have any burden
of proof in this case. They don't have to call any witnesses.
Mr. O'Keefe doesn't have to take the stand, but I1'll get into
that with instructions. But he did mention a few witnesses,

Any of you acquainted with the witnesses that Mr. O'Keefe

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

NG4318




10
il
12
13
14
15
16
17
i3
1%
20
21
22
23
24
25

42
mentionad? All negative. Somebody --

THE MARSHAL: We got one hand.

THE CCURT: One hand. Please stand cp. State your
name and your jury ID number,

PROSFECTIVE JURQR NO. 035: Krista Frandsen, 0355,

THE COQURT: And who do you think you know?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0553: Lou Desalvio (phonetich.

THE COURT: How do you know —-—

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 05%: My fiance koows bim,

THE COURT: What?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 055: My fiancé knows him.

THE COURT: &All right, 1If you're brought up here,
I'm sure they'll discuss that with you. Thank you. Anybedy
else? No? All right.

Again, it's hard to determine hew long & jury trial
is going to last. But probably it will be -- I mean, we have
~— I'11 give you a schedule when we do pick the final jury.
But probably Thursday, Friday, maybe goes inte Manday; T don't
know. But that's about the langth of the case, hopefully. We
can't give an entire case until we go intg it a little
further.

Again, I'm Judge Joe Bonaventure. I'm here to
preside cver this case. And what we're going to do now is
we're going to try to pick 3 completely fair and impartial

jury, both to the State and to the defense. And we do that by
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asking some gquestions. T1'll ask most of the gquestions. The
State and Mr. Q'Heefe have a right to follow up with
guestions. But all -- and we're not trying to pry intoc your
personal affairs. We're just trying to get a completely fair
and impartial jury. So, just bear in mind that.

I'm just geing o -- I guess I'll start with —— is
it Quinn S5wift? Quinn is vour first name?

PROSPECTIVE JUBGCE NO. 00l: Correct.

THE COURT: All right. How long you been in this
area, sir?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR MO. 001l: 5ix years.

THE COURT: And what de you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JURDR NC. 00l1: I work for Allegient
Air.

THE COURT: For what?

FROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 001: Allegient Air.

THE COURT: 0Okay. I don't quite understand
Allegient Adlr. What does that mean?

PFROSFECTIVE JUROR HGO., 001: Airline out of Las
Vegas, Mevada.

THE COURT: Okay, you work for an airlines.

PROSPECTIVE JURCRE MO. 001: I work for an airline.

THE COURT: And what do you do for the aicline?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR MO, D0l: I'm a pilot.

THE COURT: &all right. Are you married?
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FROSFECTIVE
THE COURT:
PRUSPECTIVE
THE CQURT:
PROSPECTIVE
The Cosmopelitan.
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
meouth.
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSFECTIVE

THE COURT:

JUROR NGO,
Boes your
JUROE NO.
What does

JUROR MO,

The hotel?

JURCR NO.

What does she da there?

JURCR NO.

Okay. Try to keep that up to your

JUROR NO .

21l right.

JURCR RD.

A1l right.

anybody in law enforcement?

FREOSFECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:

do?

EROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: 7T wasz in the National

Guard. I was & prop and rotor mechanic from 1990 tg '94,

THE COURT:

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

JURDR NO .

Have you ever been in the military?

JURCR NG,

What hranch, what year, and what did you

All right.

44
001: 1'm married.
wife work?
G0Gl: She does.
she do?

00l: She works at the Cosmo.

01l: Yezh.

001:; Heservations.

001: Sorry.

Ca you have any children?
{G¥; Mo,

kre you acquainted with

001: Ne, I'm not.

001: Yes.

Mothing to do with amilitary

104321




10
11
12
i3
14
15
16
17
18
i9
20
21
24
23
24
25

45

pelice or anything?

FROSFECTIVE JUROR NG, 001: Negative,

THE COURT: All}l zight. Okay. Have you or anyone
closely associated with you ever been the wvictim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JURDR NC. 001: I guess so. I've beap
pick-pocketed —

THE COURT: Yeah.

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 00l: -- in another country,
yeah. Sa.

THE COURT: All right. In another country?

FROSPECTIVE JURCR NMO. 001: Yeah,

THE COURT: Okay. D[Did they catch the individual?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NC, 00l: No.

THE COURT: All right. You reported it, but nothing
happened: is that right?

PROSPECTIVE JURGOR NG, 00l: Correct,

THE COURT: All right, That's not going to affect
your deliberation --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 04l: No.

TRE COURT: -—— in this case?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR MO. DO01: Ho,

THE CQURT: Have you or anyone closely associated
with you ever been arrested for a crime?

FROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 041l: HNo.

THE COURT: Have you ever served on a jury before?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR MO. 001: I have not.

THE COURT; 1If -~

PROSPECTIVE JURDR NO. 00l: I do have a quick
question, by the way.

THE COURT: Yeah.

PROSPECTIVE JDROR NO. 001: Due to a recent short
sale approval, I'm not going to be a Nevada resident next
week. S0, that sort of happened last-minute, and I wanted to
ask that before we ask a whole bunch of other guesticans. If
that disqualifies me or not, 1 don't know.

THE COURT: No, that doesn't disqualify you, sir.

As of right now, youo are --

FROSPFECTIME JURCR NO. 00l: Correckt,

THE COURT: That's fine. So, as far as -- you know,
I don't like going inteo Jjury, you know, instructions. TI1°11
instruct you as what the law 1s on this particular case at the
right time if you're picked as a juror; vou understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NGQ. 0C01l: Yeah.

THE COURT: But y&u understand that if you're picked
a3 a jurcr, the clerk will read to you the informatios in this
case against Mr. O'Keefe. And you understand, that's just a
mere charging dorument, and not evidence; you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MNO. [001: Correct.

THE COURT: And in fact, you'll hear that, to which,

Mr. C'Keefe plead not guilty. So, it'sg just a charging
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document and not evidence.

PROSFECTIVE JURCE NO, 031l: Hnderstood.

THE COURT: FReally, the rule is in 50 states that
it's incumbent upcon the State of Nevada to prove the defendant
guilry beyond a reascnable doubt. You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WO. 001: Yes.

THE COURT: You know, Mr., O'Keefe s5its here claoaked
with the presumption of innccence. He's innccent. And in
fact, he has no burden. He doesn't have to call witnesses, he
doesn't have to take the stand. That's the law in 50 states,
all of the United Stares. And you'll ahide by that law?

PREOSPECTIVE JURDR NO. 001: Yes,

THE COURT: And so, if you're picked as a juror,
you'll follow my instructions of court; is that correct?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NCQ. 001: Correct.

THE COURT: Instructions of law.

FROSPECTIVE JURCH nO. Q001: Correct.

THE COURT: You could be fair in this case?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. D0l: I guess so, yes. I
don't have any reason not to be, yes.

THE COURT: &A1l right. Well, that's all we care
abour. Mr., Lalli, guestionsa, pass for cause?

MR. LALLI: Just a few gquestions, Your Hongor. Thank
you. Good morning, Mrp. Swift. You -- can you explain for us

the extent of your education?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 001: A bacheler's degree in
aviation technalegy, and flight training for becoming a pilar,

MR. LALLI: I'm sorry, the last part?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR NO. 001: And flight training for
becoming a pilat.

MR. LALLI: Where did you -- where did you learn to
fily?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR HGQ. 001: Metropolitan State
College of Denver.

MR. LALLI: And Allegient Air is a passenger
carrier, correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR HO. 00l: Correct.

MR. LALLI: And so, do you -- vou pilot planes with
passengers on board?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO., 00l: Correct. Yes.

MR. LALLI: How long have you done that?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NGO, 001: I'wve bheen working for
Allegient for six years, and before that, it was another
carrier out in Hawaii. So, probably been doing it since about
2001,

ME. LALLI: During the course of wyour studies, id
you study psycholegy, sociclogy, any of those sciences?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Only a little bit. Not

MR. LALLI: Just a little hit, just the reguired
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courses; things of ~-
PROSPECTIVE JUROR HO. 00l; The requisites.
MAR. LALLI: -- that nature?
FROSFECTIVE JUROR MO. 00l: Yeah.

ME. LALLI: OQkay. You heard that Mr. O0'Kesfe is

charged with murder. ®hen you learned that, what went through

your mind?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG, 00l: The first thing that
went through my mind is I thought that might take an extra
long time for the jury.

MR. LALLI: T don't know if you'wve ever heard of
Judge Bonaventure.

FROSPECTIVE JUROE MNO. 00I: I have not.

MA. LALLI: The truth tazkes few words. That's cne

@f hisz mottos. He likes to keep things moving, 24 you're
fortunate in that regard.
PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. (0l1; Hell, that's good.
MR, LALLI: 1Is there a lot going on in your life
that might distract from your ability to be a jurcr?
FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO., 00l: Well, I have to make

sure I have & move taken care of, and maintaining two

residence, and everything else. A lot going on in these next

couple of weeks. 8o, yes.

MA. LALLI: When -- tell us about the move. When

are you reguired to move?
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PROSPECTIVE JURCR NG. 00l1: 1It's so recent, [ don't
have a fimm closing date. It should be on the 25th. It's
tentative. And I have to be moved cut by —— starting next
Tueaday, I need to start the move.

ME. LALLI: Okay. Judge Bonaventure indicated that
this trial would last a week, maybe a little bit into next
week . It seems like that's going to —-

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 001: It is a problem, but
yeah. =

ME. LALLI: Well, it seems like it won't overlap
with the time that vou have to move.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MO. 001: May or may not. T don't
know. But there's preparations before the actual moving day.
I have te get back to Arizona ta pick up my truck and my
trailer to get my stuff moved. I have two residences, and the
one here is the one that's getting sold, so.

MR. LALLI: &Sa, you live in Newvada, and yau also
have g --

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 0Gl: I work in Phoenix, and
1've been maintaining my residence in Las Vegas. But I've
been working in Phoenix for the last year and-a-haif.

MR. LALLI: Gkay. If I -- and this is for
everybody's benefit as well., Although there's no court
reporter here --

PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 001: Right.
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ME. LALLI: —- everything that you and I said to
each other i% being recorded.

PROSFECTIVE JUROR NCG. 00l: Correct.

ME. LALLI: And wvltimately, a Yranscript is going to
be made.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ, 00l: Yes.

MR. LALLI: Bo, for everybody's bencfit, if you
would wait until I finish my gquestion before you answer, just
50 we're not both talking over each other. It's unlike any
other scenario that you've been invalved in, but it will make
4 clear record, okay?

PROSPECTIVE JURDR NO. 00l: {Dkay.

MR. LALLI: Do you hsve any difficulty with the
nature of the charge, the fact that it's a murder casze?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 081: No. It just seems to
make It more important.

ME. La&aLLI: &All right. And do you understand that
the State has the burden of proef in this case, just like
Judge Beonaventure indicated?

PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 001: Yes.

MER. LALLI: It's our responsibility to prove Mr.
O'Keefe's gquilty beyond & reasonable deoubt., Will you hold us
toc that standard?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR MO. DOl: Yes.

MR. LALLI: Because it's cur bucden of procf, if we
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fail in that, you are reguired to return a verdict of not
guilty. Can wvou do thar?

PROSFECTIVE JURCR NO. O0l: I believe so.

MR. LALLI: Okay. 1If we don't do what we're
supposed to do, are you geing to have sny problem returning a
verdict of not guilty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 00l: I don't believe -- no.

MR. LALLI: Do you understand that just because it's
a murder case, the State's burden of proaf isn't any higher
than any other criminal case?

Ea, in cther words, proof bevond a reascnable doubt
is our burden. And I'm sure you've heard that, and Judge
Bonaventure will instruct yom as to what that means. But it's
the same burden, regardless of whether it's a murder case, or
4 stelen vehicle case, or a speeding case. Do you understand
what I'm saying?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0Ql: Yezh, T understand that.

MR. LALLI: Will you held us to that burden?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NC. 001: Yes., It -- yes.

MR. LALLI: During the course of this trial, you are
going te hear evidence of spousal abuse. Have ¥ou ever heard
of Lhe term domestic viglence?

FROSFECTIVE JURGR NO, Q0l1: Yes,

MR. LALLI: What does that mean to you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Potentially, where cne
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of the spouses is abuaing the other.

ME. LALLI: And it might be that the weman is
abusing the man, or the ma is abusing the woman; would you
aqree with that?

FPROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. (0l: Eithar one I guess is
possible,

MR. LALLI: &ll right. Socme people have the idea
that domestic violence is a private issue between a man and a
woman. What do you think about that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KWO. 001: EBeating somebody up is
beating somebody up. So, it’s not necessarily a private issue
SILVIROTE .

MR. LALLI: S50, do you think that the government,
the State, law enforcement, has some respensibility to
intervene when that happens?

FROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 001: Yes.

MR. LALLI: Do you believe thac?

PROSFECTIVE JURCR NO. 00l: As long as thay don't
abuse their autherity, yes.

MR. LALLI: Understood. That's always -- that's
always the case. Do you think that they do sbuse their
authority?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. Q01: I <an't say that I
haven't —- I believe they probably do sometimes, hut I don't

have any examples.
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ME. TALLT: Okay. B&And that kind of segways intc
angther area that 1 wanted to talk to you abeut. Luring the
course of this case, you're going to hear from police
officers, members of the Las Vegas Metropolitan Palice
Department.,

Is there anything about the testimony of 2 police
officer that would cause you some concern; either you're going
to give them more weight, or maybe you're going to give them
lass weight because they're 2 police officer?

FROGPECTIVE JUROR NQ. 001: That's hard to tell. It
could go either way. Because 1 mean, 1've had -- I guess as a
kid, I had more interactiens with police afficers than as an
adelt. So, but I have -- back whén I was much younger, some
traffie viclations. I've read police reports. Scometimes

they're accurate, and sametimes, they are completely wrong.

o --
MR. LALLI: All right.
PROSFECTIVE JURCRE NO. G0l: They're people, too.
MR. LALLI: Okay. Sg, you're going to be given an
instruction on how you evsluvate witnesses. I mean -- and ¥ou

kind of took the words out of my mouth in some sense. There
are some good police coffirers, and there are =ome bad pelice
efficers. Would you have any problem eveluating the
credibility of a police cfficer?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: I guess not. It's a
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judgment call, so.

MR. LALLI: Right.

EROSPECTIVE JURSR NO. 001: Yeah.

MR. LALLI: Right. You're not going to give him any
more -— their testimony any more weight because they're a
police officer? Or would you automatically give them lesss
credibility just because they're a police officer?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. Q01: I think --

ME. LALLI: Where are you at?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NHOQ, 00l: — I'd treat them just
like any other human being. 5o, they would be no more or less
just because they have credentials, in my opinion.

MR. LALLI: Okay.

PROSFECTIVE JUROR MNO. 00i: They have some extra
training.

MR. LALLI: I wanted to talk to you a little more
about this idea of domestic violence.

MR. OQTKEEFE: Objection, Your Honor. May 1 approach
the bench, pleasze?

THE COURT: Bure, You golng to put the conference
thing on? Somebody does that?

THE COQURT RECORDER: Yeah.

THE COURT: All right.

{Cff-record bench conference}

THE COURT: All right. Proceed, Mr. Lalli.
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1 MR. LALLI: Thank you. We were talking about
2| domestic viclence, And I mean, Mr. Swift, you already
3| indicated you belleve that law enforcement —— the govaernment
4| has a right to get involved in that.
5 Oc you think the community has responsibility in
6| that? Friends, neighbors? Do you think it's incumbent upen
7| friends and neighkors Lo maybe -- if they know the situation,
B| to intervens?
g PROSPECTIVE JUROR WO, 001: Yas.
10 MR. LALLI: Why?
11 FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Because people that
2] can't defend themselves need to be able -- need ta have
13| somegne else step in for them sometimes.
14 MR. LALLI: Do you think you can be fair te both the
15| State and the defense in this case?
16 FROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 00l: I believe so.
17 MR, LALLI: BAll right.
18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 001: Without knowing the
18| Eacts, ic's --
20 MR. LALLI: Understocod. And I'm not really talking
21| abour facts. T mean, you're going ta hear the facts, and then
22| ulrimately, you would make a decisian as to gquilt eor
23| innccence. But you don't come into this courtroom with any
24| life experience or life history that's going to make you
45| unfair to one side or the other? Do you think you're a fair
ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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persan?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR HO. 801: Yes.

MR. LALLI: Al]l right, Mr. O0'Keefe is representing
himself. He has a constitutional right to do that. Do you
have any problem with him representing himself?

PROSPECTIVE JURORE NO. 001: HNo.

MR. LALLI: Qkay. If we prove to you beyond a
reascnable doubt that he's guilty of second degree murder,
will you convict him?

FROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 001: Yes.

ME. LALLI: Thank yocu. Your Honor, that — we would
pess for cause,

TRE COURT: All right. Questions: pass for cause,
Mr. Q'Keefe?

ME. O'KEEFE: Yes. I have some guestions, Your
Honer. ItL's Mr. Swift, correcr?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NCO. Q01: Yes,

MR. O'EEEFE: OQkay. How are you, Mz, Swift?

FROGSPECTIVE JURQR NG. 001: I'm 211 right.

MR, O'KEEFE: I'm going to be guick with all you
jurors, in actuality. 1I'm going to try to be very expeditious
in this matter, get a jury picked, and gat everybady cut of
here. I want to ask you first of all -- My, Lalli just
touched on it., <Can you honestly say without a doubt that

you're not prejudiced against me, or biased against me for
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representing myself in chis case, sir?

PROSFECTIVE JURDR ND. 001: HNe. I don't understand
why representing yourself or not makes & difference either
way, but.

MR. Q'KEEFE: Some jurors feel that the defendant
thinks he's a hotshot, or something like that. If you folks
only know the passion that I have about this case. You
answered the guestion.

How, [ got to ask, dees my hair make you prejudiced
or biased? This iz not me ~- this is for personal reasons,
sir. But it matters. Would you be biassed or prejudiced
against me because of this? This is not what's in here. I
need to ask that.

FROSFECTIVE JURCR HNO. 001 I don't believe it would
affect me in any way. I did notice it. It doesn't always
match the suit.

MR. O'KEEFE: Thark you for yaur honesty. You said
you were in the military?

FROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. 081: In the MNational Guard,
actually. Yea,

MR. Q'KEEFE: Are you still in the military?

FROSPECTIVE JURQR NO. 001: WNo. Scmething I did not
cover, though, I'm alsoc FFDO a3z 2 pilot. 3o, technically, I
guess that makes me a law enflorcement officer, but not the

same as another law enforcement ¢fficer. I just get to carry
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a firearm in the Elight deck.

MR. Q'EEEFE: Okay. Do you have any family member,
Mr. Swift, a relative, a coworker, that's been diagnosed with
mental illnesses?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR MO. #01l: No.

MR. QO'KEEFE: Do you have a family member or a
friend, or anybedy that had chroniec cirrhosis of the liver,
and hep C, and depression problems?

PROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Na, 1 don't.

MR, OTKEEFE: Have you ever had a family member or a
friend that was admitted to & psychiatric hospital?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: I had a friend in high
schoel that I believe was, but I don't know too much about it.

MR. O'KEEFE: That's all I'm going to ask at this
point, because there's geing to be a lot more guestions, and
let me re-compose. Thank you, sir.

THE COURT: &1l right. You pass for cause, Mr.
O'Keefe?

MR. QO'KEEFE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Thank you. Victoria Collins?

FROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: Yes.

THE COURT: How long have you been in this area?

FROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: Going on ten years.

THE COURT: And what do you do for a living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: I'm a schocl teacher.
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THE COURT: What grade®

PROSPECTIVE JUROR RO. 002: Seventh grade US
history.

THE COURT: &nll right. Are yon married?

EROSPECTIVE JURQR NO. 002: HNo, I'm single,

THE COURT: Children?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NOQ. 002: No.

THE COURT: Have you ever been in the military?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NCG. (02: No.

THE COURT: Are you -- you, or anyone clasely
assoclated with you acquainted with anybody in law
enforocement?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: Mo,

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely assaociated
with you ever been the wvictim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JURCE HD. (02: Yeah. Yes.

THE COURT: What was that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: Most recently, I've --
an ex-husband of my cousin was murdered.

THE COURT: Ex-husband of your --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: Yeah, my first cousin,
her ex-husband, whoa I -=~

THE COURT: h. How long ago was that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: MHe was actually killed

in February.
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THE COURT: Here in town, or another ——

PROSFECTIVE JUROR KO. 002: No, it was in the State
of Oreqgon.

THE COURT: Did they catch any individual?

FROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 002: Someone was arrested,
yes. His girlfriend,

THE CQURT: Do you know any results of that?

PROSFECTIVE JURCR MO, 002: She's -- I think heg
trial's going to begin scon.

THE COURT: Again, that's not going to affect your
deliberation in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. D02: HNo.

THE COURT: Okay. Have you or anyone clasely
associated with you ever been arrested for & crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: Yes.

THE COURT: Who's thar?

PROZSPECTIVE JURCR NG, 0{02: wWhere do I begin:?
Onfortunately --

THE COURT: Well, let's start with you. Have you
evar been arrested for --

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: ©No.

THE COURT: Any close relatives?

PROSPECTIVE JURCOR NO. {02: Yes. My father, and
most recently, my brother.

THE COURT: All right, father and brother. Anybody
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else?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR MO. CD2: Cousins,
THRE COURT: {Okay.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: Classmates. Former
classmates.

THE COURT: All right. Well, again, your father.
[Inaudible] rlassmate. Your father, what was he arreated for?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 002: My father was charged
with murder, and later convicted of manslaughter,

THE COURT: 0kay. &and who was the victim of that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: I belisve it was an
ex-girlfriend and an associate of hers.

THE COURT: ALl right. So, when was that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: This was in the 1970's,
before I was born.

THE COURT: (h.

PROSFECTIVE JUROR NO., 002: So, sometime in the
0ts.

THE COURT: Was it in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JURDR NO, D02: No, it was in the State
of Oregon.

THE COURT: He was convicted of that?

FROSPECTIVE JSURCR NO. 002: Yeah, And he served a
few years, and --

THE COURT: TIs he ocur now?
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FROSPECTIVE JURCR No. 002: Oh, yesh. He's heen out
since like 1977.

THE COURT: fThat's not going to affect your
deliberation in this case?

FROSPECTIVE JURCR NC. (002: HNo, sir.

THE COURT: Your brother. What about your brother?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: Well, most recently, he
was arrested, and he's being charged with agqravated assault,

THE CCURT: On wha?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR NO. 002: His wife.

THE COURT: Is it here in town?

BROSPECTIVE JURCR WO. 002: No, it's in
Pennsylwvania.

THE COURT: All right. All right. Is there any
result of that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 002: MNo, he goes back ta
court later this month.

THE COURT: Okay. And is that going to affect your
deliberation in this case?

FPROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: No, sir,

THE CQURT: All right. Cousins?

PROSPECTIVE JURDR NO. 002: I'we had cousins
arrested for check -- like check fraud type of situations.
Mostly, ir's like fraud, like --

THE COURT: Yeah.
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PROSPECTIVE JURQOR NO. 002; -- Katrina fraud, and --

THE CQURT: Here in town, or is it in --

FROSPECTIVE JURDR NQ, 002: No. State of Oregon.

THE COURT: What were the results of those:
convictions, some convictions?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ. 002: I'm not exactly sure in
all of them. I know one case for sure was a —-— well,
actually, a couple of cases were conviections.

THE COURT: All right, Again, you'wve got some
Family. But that's --

PEGSPECTIVE JUROR MWO. 002: Yeah.

THE COURT: That's fine. 1 mean, we all have some
family problems at times, but we just don’t want it to spill
inte this trial, You could sort of set aside what YOUT
father, and brother, and cousins, the rrouble they had, and
you're not going to -- you don’t hald any animosity towards
the State, do you, because of ktheir trouble?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MO. 002: WNo. Sometimes, Faople
are guilty.

THE COURT: Yeah. And you don't hold that againat
the deferndant, right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: MNo. HNo, sir.

THE COURT: He had nothing to do with anything.

PROSPECTIVE JUFROR NGO, 00Z2: HNo.

THE COURT: S0, you ¢ould set that aside, and just
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Judge this case solely upon what you hear on that witness
stand?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR MO, 002: Abhzoliutely.

THE COURT: As I said, you're the trier of fact, and
you determine the facts. 1I'll supply the instructions of law,
and you go and deliberate. You understand that?

FROSPECTIVE JURCR NC. 002: Yes.

THE COURT: And you understand what T said -- I'm
not going to repeat this all the time. Just once -- maybe
once or twice more, that you'll follow my instructions of law;:
is that correct? It would be a violation not to follow my
instructions., So, you'll follow my instructions?

PROSEECTIVE JUORDR MO, 002: Yes, sir.

THE CQURT: And you understand, under our system,
certain principles of law apply in every criminal trial; that
the charging document, if you're picked as a juror, youfll --
ik will be read to you, that it's a mere accusatiaon, and not
evidence of guilt. Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCE RO, 002: I do understand.

THE COURT: And that any defendant in any criminal
case is presumed innegent, You understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: Yes.

THE COURT: He has no burden of progf. The burden
-=- Ehe State must prove this defendant is guilty beyond a

Teasonable doubt. Do you understand those basic precepts of
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American justice?

PROSPECTIVE JURGR NG. D02: Abvsolutely,

THE COURT: And you have no problems with it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WO. (002: No.

THE COURT: All right. And you could be fair in
this case?

PROSPECTIVE JURGR WO, 002: Yes.

THE COURT: Thank you very much, Questions: pass
for cause, State?

M3. MERCER: Theank you, Your Honor. Ma'am, you
indicated that you teach seventh grade; is that correct?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR NO. 002: ¥Yes. Yes, ma'am.

M3. MERCER: Have you ever had an experience where a
student reported domestic violence golng on in their home to
yau?

FROSPECTIVE JURGR HO. 002: No.

M5. MERCER: Okay. So, you've never had the
opportunity to observe the effects of domestic violence on
children?

FPROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0QQ2: Well, I mean, I may have
had students who were in domestic vielence situations, but I
don't know of any personally. Like, nc one ever came To me
and said that they had domestic violence in their home ,

MS. MERCER: Okay. And how long have you been a

teacher?
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FROUSPECTIVE JUROR MO. Q02: This wilkl be my tenth
school year,

M3. MERCER: Tenth school year?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MNO. QQ02: Yeah.

M3, MERCER: Have you always taugnt seventh grade?

FROGPECTIVE JUROR RO. 002: Mag. I taught fourth
grade for three years.

M5. MERCER: Okay. Now, you indicated that before
you were even born, your father went to priscon?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 002: Yes.

M5. MERCER: And do you believe tThat he was treated
fairly, based on what you've hezrd from other family members
that were alive at the time?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ. G02: Coming from him, yes.

M5, MERCER: ©Okay. He believes he was treated
fairly?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 00Z: Yes.

MS. MERCER: Qkay. Have you ever bheen a witpness to
an incident of domestic wviolence?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR RO. 002: ©Domestic violence, na.

M3. MERCER: Do you have any close friends of family
members that have been victims of domestic violence?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR NO. 002: Well, I mean, my -- like
I said, my brother is currently —- I guess he's going to be

facing trial, which is interesting, because he was the one
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abused in that situation, so I don't know why he was arrested.
But yeah, he was hit in the head with a statuette by his wife,
and he was arrested. Sg, I don't know why, But --

M5. MERCER: Wasz that an ongoing probhlem in their
relationship?

PHOSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: They -- he's bean
azsaunlted by his wife hefore.

M3. MERCER: Okay. And to your knowledge, has he
ever assaulted her?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NG, 002: Not to my knowladge, no.

M5. MERCER: Do you balieve that it's ever
appropriate to use violence to solve a verbal argument?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. (02: A verbal argument, no.

M5. MERCER: Do you think that there ate sometimes
when, based an the vicrim's behavicr, it's ockay to lash out?
In other words, if she provokes -- he or she provokes, they
deserve it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NC. 402: Lixe, lash acut
physically? Or like —-

M3. MERCER: Verbally.

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NOQ. 002 Verbally., Like —- I
guess it would depend on the situation. If you would, you
know, scream or yell at somsone, and they yelled, you know, 1in
return, for them yelling at you or something, I guess. I

don't —
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M3. MERCER: That was a poorly constructed gquestian.
let me rephrase it. Do you think that it's ever okay to
respond to some sort of a verbal assault with physical
viclence?

PROSEECTIVE JURCR NO. 002: Mo,

M5. MERCER: Okay, Even if they s5ay some
horrifically offensive things?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: I guess you could
retaliate verbally if you're going to retaliate, but you don't
need to use vialence.

M5. MERCER: You're aware that the allegatién in
this case is a second degrse murder allegation. Does that
CAuse You any concern?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR N0, 002: No.

MS. MERCER: Do you -- will you have any difficultly
in convicting the defendant, if vou believe that we've met cur
burden?

FPROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. 002; pHNo.

MS. MERCER: If we don't meet our burden, are YOou
going to be able to return a verdict of not guilty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WO. 002: Yes.

M53. MERCER: Okay. Are there any moral,
pPhilesophical, or religiocus reasons that give you pause with
regard to sitting in judgment of ancther person?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR HO. CD2: HNo.
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M5. MERCER: Can you think of any reasons why a
victim of domestic violence may stay in an abusive
relationship?

PROSPECTIVE JURCE MD. 002: Scmetimes, pecple stay
in those relationships for financial reascns, like they feel
45 1f they can't support themselves maybe financially, and so
they kind of deal with the zbuse. Sometimes pegple will --
you know, I've heard aof pecple saying, it's not that had, ¥ou
know, it's going to get better.

MS. MERCER: Do you -- what about if there's
children involved? De you think that might come into factor?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NQ. 002: I'we heard of situations
where people stay because of the children.

M5. MERCER: And do you think it's possible that
they might actually just love their abuser, as contradictory
as that might seem to some of us?

PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 0Q02: ¥Yeah, it is possible, I
guess, for somecne to stay in a relationship and be in love
with semeone who was abusing them.

M3. MERCER: Do you think it's the victim's fault if
she's abused later because she stayed in the relationship?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: I guess no, if she iz ——
I don't want to say conditioned. But if someone honestly
believes in their heart that things will get better, that

doesn't give someone the okay to abuse them later,
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M5. MERCER: Court's indulgence. Pass for cause,
Your Honor,

THE COURT: Thank you, Ms., Mercer. Mr. O'Keefe,
questions; pasg for cause?

MR. O'KEEFE: Yeah, I'll be brief, Your Honor.
Thank you, sir.

THE COURT: Thrank you.

MR. DO'KEEFE: Ms. Victeria Cellins, correct?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NOQ. 002: Yes.

MRE. O'KEEFE: I don't have my glasses. I can See,

but not clearly though,
them on. 8o, bear with me as I
Since the S5tate keeps
vioclence's, do you believe that
then, szince they brought it up?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ.

MR .

O'KEEFE: In fact,

can tend to be pretty nmasty, pretty aggressive?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR WO,

25 -aggressive at times as men, as --

MR, O'EEEFE: Okay.

dealt with anyone with a combination of mental illnesses, and

a5 a medigal issue,

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: Not in a combination. I
know of —- I know someone who is suffering from, I quess,
ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

50 —- but they bother me if 1 keep

S0 -- okay,

compounded also as a cutter?

Eind my glasses.

referring to battery domestic
A Woman can be an aggressor
Q02: Yes.

would you agree that women

002: I think they can be just

Have you ever
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mental illness. But I don't know anyone with a combination of
like physical, or any other type of issues compounding that.

MR. D'KEEFE: Do you know specifically what type of
mental illness this person ——

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: BPipolar.

MR. O'KEEFE: Bipalar?

PROSPECTIVE JURCOR NO. 002: Yes.

MR. O'KEEFE: Is that bipolar 1 or 2; do vou know?

PRGSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: That I don't know.

MR. Q'KEEFE; There is a difference. Okay. Have
you ever been closely related to & family member -- anybody
that's QD'ed?

PROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: HNo.

MR. O'KEEFE: Do you have a computer?

PROSFECTIVE JURDOR NOQ. 002 Yes.

ME. O'KEEFE: Do you use it a lot?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 002: Yes.

MR. G'KEEFE: 1Used to be -- in the days of old, we
used to say, you know, who was foartunate encugh to have one.
Now the guestion is, who doesn't have one, yau Enow? It kind
of flips,

Do you feel the police have a -- should be held
ta a higher standard when they are called to a scene, that
they should be respensible collecting all possible evidence in

the event of a so-called crime being charged, so it can be
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a] You just den't remember specifically what those
commands were?

A I de not,

Q Did the individual in the room, the male individueal,
did he obey any of those commands?

& Ho, he did not.

Q What happened when you and officers entered the
reem?  Did he say anything?

A I de not recall.

2 All right. Do you recall whether he was concerned
about -- well, let ﬁe ask you this. What was the condition
about -- of the individual that's depicted in the diagram as
lying on the flgor?

A The female victim was nude or nakec from the waist
down. Bhe did have on a black tank-rtop, and it locked like
she had something tied around ome of her arms.

o Bid the individual say anything referenced to har
partially clothed condition?

& I remember seeing his hands move rapidly. And the

orly thing that I do remember being said was along the lipes
¢f, do not look at her. But his hands were maving around her
chest, waist, up to her face, as we rolled ints the Iom.

Q All right. W®hat happened whan you entered the

room --

A For me, I --

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

1042350

Docket 69036 Document 2015-364627




10
il
12
i3
14
15
1%
17
lg
18
20
21
22
23
24
25

251

L -- after thar?

A When I entered the room, I rolled inte the bathroom,
cleared the bathroom, came back out. And over where the
suspect was, the taser wss already being operated. I
maintained the suspect's feet, and kept him in position while
they tried to get his hands in the handecuffs.

Q Was there any struggling going on?

a There was a brief struggle aver trying te get his
right arm out to get him in the handcuffs. It locked like he
was trying to fight through the ECD, and through the ocfficers.
Se, a second cycle of the ECD was delivered. & cyecle was
about five secends. So, one five-second cycle; pull the
trigger of the ECD, and a second one —— a secand five-second
cycle.

Q 50, when you say cycle, it basically means shocking
the individual?

A ¥es,

L Okay. 5o, he's shocked the first time, he begins to
struggle after that, he's shocked a second time?

A Yes,

Qo And then what happens?

A He's guite -- he's eventually taken intoc handcuffs
during the second cycle, Once that is done, Officer Taylor,
Officer Ballejos, and Officer Conn plck him up, and carry him

out of the rvom intoc the living room.
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4] Qkay. Now, on this diagram, there's like 2 dotted
line that leads Lthrough the living room. Do you have any idea

what that is?

A This one here, sic?

4] Yes, Sir.

A Yes.

Q What is that?

A That i1s the taser wires, or the ECD wires. When the

taser is5 depleyed, it fires a set of prohes that have a bar
code on the end. They are aktached to the taser itself via
litele thin copper wires, that are approximately 21 feet-long.
And that is the taser wire with cartridge being thread along
right there,.

4] All right. %o, the individuoal who is removed from

the back bedroom, de you see him in the courtroom?

A Yes, I do.

Q Can you please point te him, and identify what he's
wearing?

.S He's this gentleman right here. He's wearing kind

of a light green shirt, brown suit, and yellow tie.

ME. LALLI: TYour Honor, may the record reflect the
witness has identified -~

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. LALLI:; -- the defendant?®

THE CQURT: Yes.
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BY MR, LALLTI:
o Sergeant, you can return to the witness stand. What
did you do after the defendant was removed from the room?
A 1 have training as an EMT. 1 immediately dropped

down to try to administer some aid to the victim. I checked
for & pulse on the carotid artery on the right side of her
neck. 1 then used a flashlight to check for pupil dilatian,
and also looked for respirations on the female victim,

4] Can you describe what you saw of the female victim
25 you were in the reoom with her? What did she look like?

A She didn't appear to e alive. She appeared to be
deceased.

MR. LALLI: May I approagh the witness?

THE COURT: Yes.

THE WITNESS: She had bloed on her. Like I had
mentioned before, she had something tied arcund her arm, and
jusk a tank top on,

BY MR, LALLI:

a Sergeant, I'm going to show you what we'wve marked as
State's proposed Exhibit number 23. Do you recognize what's
depicted in that photograph?

A That is the female vietim.

Q Is that a fair and accurete depiction of what she
looked like when you saw her?

A Yo, s5ir,
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ME. LALLI: Your Honor, mcve far the admission of
State's proposed 23,
THE COURT: Any objecticn, Mr. O'Keefe?
MF. £'KEEEE: Neo, TYour Heonor.
THE COURT: 23 will be gdmitted.
[(Exhibit 23 is admitted)
BY ME. LALLI:
Q 50, SBergeant, when you walked -- or went up to her,
cen you show us where it is that you placed your hand on her?
P} I placed it on the right side of her neck, where her
carotid pulse would be.
Q What did you Eeel?
A I felt no pulse.
Q Do you have any training — any medical training?
A Yeés. I've been trained as an EMT intermediate, and
I1've worked as an EMT Intermediate for several years at that
point.
& Did any other medical personnel come into the room
tg attempt to render aid, or evaluation of this female?
A Due to my observations, not baing able to find a
pulse, no breathing, and fixed and dilated pupils, I asked for
one paramedic to come in to start a medical evaluation, and

one paramedic did enter the room.

Q Did you see what the mediczl —- the paramedic did?
A Yes. He checked for a carotid pulse on the exact
ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPFT
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same side and spot that I did on the right side of the asck.

0 How, at some paint, did yeu pick something up in the
living rooem or in the bedroom area, and move it to a table?

A I picked 1t up on the fioor, between like the
hallway ard the living room area, and moved it to a2 table in
the living room. It was @ taser probe.

g Ail rignt. There we go. Oxay. If we logk at
State's Exhibit number 1 here, does it appear to be a round
table near the door? There's & pumber 2 on that.

A tes.

Is that approximately where you put the taser probe?
¥Yes, it is.
ME. LALLI: May I approach the witness?
THE COURT: Yes,
BY MRBR. LALLT:

Q2 I'm going to show you what we've marked as State's
proposed 2 for identification purposes. Is that a fair and
accurate depiction of the table, on which 15 the laser probe

that you placed there?

a It is a taser probe, not a2 laser probe.

Qo I'm sarcy.

A But ves, it i=s.

o Taser probe. Thank you. Metre's not using lasers

for this zert of thing?

h No.
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ME. LALLI: Youz Honor, move for the adwmlssion of
State's proposed 9.
THE COURT: Did you show that to Mr. 0'Keefe?
MR. LALLI: I did.
THE COURT: B2all right. Any objection?
MR. O'KEEFE: Ho, Your Honor.
THE COURT: ALl right, It will be admitted.
{Exhibit & is admitted)
BY MR. LALLI:
Q 52, 1s that the taser probe that you placed on the
table by the door?
A Yes, it is.
Q And where -- going hack to State's Exhibit number 1,
whnat room was that found in?
A I believe it waz found somewhere near where number 1

is depicted, in the hallway to the living room area.

qQ S0, number 1 ls the begipning of the taser wire --
A Yes.
2 —- the prebe wire? 3All right. Now, do you have

further contact with the defendant?

A I return back outside to speak with him. It is ocur
job as the supervisors to investigate all use of force, such
as when we use a taser, an ECD; any other toels. I wanted to
speak with him, and make sure that medical was rendered to him

far the taser usage.
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| Wny would you request medical for taser usage?

a4 Number one, it's department golicy that whenever an
ECD, or a taser is used on someone, that they must have
medical called to check them out physically to make sure
they're okay. Secend, he had blood on him. We wanted to make
sure he didn't have any injuries from whatever incident he had
been involved in.,

o Did you notice any marks on the defendanc's head?
On his forehead?

A He did. He had a small injury to his forehead. It
appeared to me to be some type of a -- like an abrasion, from

like a carpet burn, or being drug on a surface.

& Wag the defendant ever drug anywhere that you
abserved?

A I do nobt know.

4] Okay. Where was the defendant when vou encountered

him with respect to getting medical aid for him?

A When I encountered him for medical aid, he was
outside of the apartment. There’'s a little walkway there; it
is a second-story apartment. And he was seated an that

walkway, next to the stairs.

o Were you present when paramedics came to evaluate
him?

. Tes, I was.

Q Pescribe what you observed when rhat happened.
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A Hell, they were kalking with him. I don't reecall
large amounts of the conversation. I do remember him being
belligerent and uncooperative.
o What did he say to them?
A One of the things I do remember was he said,
essentially, “Fuck vou."
G To the paramedics wheo were trying to help him?
A Yas,
Q Thank you.
MR. LALLI: Nothing else, Your Henor.
THE COURT: Rl1l right. Cross-examination, Mr.
O'Keafe?
MR. O'KEEFE: Yeah. Brief, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you.

CROSS5-EXAMINATION
BY MR. Q'KEEFE;

c That's Sergeant Newberry, right?

A That is correct, sir.

o How are you, sir?

A Fine, sir.

Q 1'm going to be real brief, Sergeant Hewberry.
Let's get this —— I just want to state, at any bime, Jid you

feel 1 was under the influence, Sergeant?

A When 1 spoke with you, you appeared to be

intoxicated,
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What does that mean, Sergeant?

&

intoxicated person.

¢

A

Q

pretty good idea at the beginning; ves or no?

A
Q

A

could you answer that yeés or no? I don't know. He wanted a

Y85 Or no answer on that.

BY MR. Q'"KEEFE:

Q

Qr no.

25%
Okay.
I believe I described it in my use of force report,
extreamely intoxicafed.*®
Dkay. Yes, yon did. &nd do wyweou know that at the
the call -- the 8-11 call was made, immediately two
after the call was made, they announced, communication

to everyone that the defendsant was extremely 408,
It means -- a 408 person 1s somebody that's an
5g ==
5@, 1t would mean that you're extremely 408,
Meaning, extremely intexicated. So, you had a
From —-

I¥es or no, Sergeanc?

From my time and exdperience &s a police officer -~

THE COURT: You know, somekimes you can't answer --—

MR. QO'KEEFE: I just asked --

30, extremely 408 means extremely intoxicated? Yes

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIFT
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THE CCURT: Could you -~ if you can't answer --
THE WITNESS: 1 can't answer that one yes or no.
THE COURT: All right.

BEY MR. O'KEEFE:

o Okay. That's fair. OQkay. Go ahead, then.

bt 1 was geing to say, from my experience and tenure as
2 police officer, usually the first story, which is the
dispatch stery, is not always entirely accurste. So, I try to
give everybody the besnefit of the doubt.

4, Okay. Did they taks my blood or breath?

.3 I do not knaw,

Q Okay. You said commands were moving fast and all
that. But knowing that I'm extremely intoricated —- you know
that 1 have the call center here, too. From the time it
started, until the time I was placed in handcuffs, it was
minytes?

P Yes, =3ir,

2 Just minutes? Okay. I know it seemed like a
liferime, Sergeant. And you know, I do agree with you there.
I does. But it was just mere minutes. At any time, did I
ever Say, get out, or get the F ogut? Excuse me, Officer.

A I do not recall, sir.

Q But clearly, I did say at times, get in here, come
in here; and then at rtimes, I started saying, get the F in

here? Absolutely, I was saying, get the F in here, correct?
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- I -- if I were to say that those were the words,
that would be pure speculation on my part. I domn't recall —-
like I sald, I don't recall much of the conversation that was
said between Offjicer Cenn and you. I just remember that it
did not seem like it was fruitful, like it was going to
progress to any type of surrender.

Q Okay. Someone, you knaw, without a guilty mind, in
your experience through the years, would act that way, would
say. get in here? They den't understand if they're --

MR. LALLI: 1I'm going to ohject, Your Henor. Calls
for speculatvian,

THE COURT: Yeah. That's a vague --

MR. O'KEEFE: Okay, Your Honor.

THE COURT: -- guestion.

MR. Q'KEEFE: 1T1'll move on, Your Honor. Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you --

MR. Q'EEEFE: To help out.

THE COURT: -~ very much.

MR, O'KEEFE: It's late. Ewveryone's tired, I
understand. Okay.

THE COURT: Yesh. Thank you, Mz, O'Keefe. No, if
it was a legitimate question, I'd allow you to ask it. But I
think -~

MR. D'KEEFE: Yes, sir, Youtr Honor.

THE COURT: That's an argumentative th:ing for the
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jury. You say, you know, ladies and gentlemen aof the jury,
let me argue this to you, and then --

MR. Q'EEEFE: OQOkay.

THE CQURT: =-- you could argue that in front of the
jery.
BY MR, O'KEEFE:

Q I understand you guys —- you know, safety for the
community and all that. And it was stated repeatedly through
many prior testimonies that of course, you felt that the
defendant may be baiting you, correct, Sergeant? The overall,
defendant cculd be baiting us; you said youraself, setting up
-~ could Have had a trap set? ‘

A That is always a possibility. #We have to be
cancerned about that.

8] Ckay. MNow, yes or no answer, if yau can.

THE COURT: Yeah, If you can't answer yes or ng,
say -—-

ME. Q'KEEFE: We'll just --

THE COURT: -- 1 can’t answer that yes or no.

MR. O'KEEFE: We'll save it. Right.

BY MR, O'KEEFE:

] ¥es or no, if you can.
& Okay.
Q Ultimately though, at the conclusion of the whole

event, I wasn't baiting you though? 1t ended up —-
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A I dan't --
a] == I wasn't baliting you?
A I don't know. 1 can't answer that with a yes or ng.
Sorry.
Q Oksy. That's fair enough, Sergeant. Okay. You --

I'm ex-military, and I understand how you guys do your stack
in, it's crisis intervention team, and you go ip, and we're
all taught, you know, you got to be careful when you enter a
scene, and there's maybe somebody with a ﬂeapun, trying ta
bait you,

When you guys decide it's cads, the call's mads ta
go ahead and enter in, and vou go in, would you agree,
Sergeant, that you all don't stay right behind each other?

You kind of fan out 2 little bit, correct? 1 mean, you go in,

and ~— you know. Would you agree with that, Sergeant?
A No, I would not.
Q So then, you're saying that you guys entered the

room all right behind sach other?
A ¥es, I would.
G Dkay. Where did all five of you go? There was only

=~ ¥'m curious. You said you --

A There was rot five, there was four of us.
L8 Four?
A There was Cificer Conn, COfficer Jeremiah Ballsjos,

Officer Sean Taylor, and myself.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSGRIPT
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Q Would you disagree with there's prior testimony
there was time that there was four guys staced, there was five
officers, and even up to six ane time?

A I wasn't here for prior testimony, so I could not.

¥ Okay. Fair encugh. Is there any policy that you're
aware of, being & sergeant and you've got a2 lot of experience
in it, that they possibly -- after -- since cthe medical team
was there to check cut my tasing situation, did anybody
attempt to take my blood draw or breath, that you're aware of?

A No.

Q Okay. Thisz use of force form, is this always filled
eut, Officer, by the police when any type of use of force by a
weapon is used; pulled, drawn, shot, discharged?

A Use of forfe reports are completed when there is an
injury cr suspected ipjury, or over a certzin level of Force.
With a taser, it's an automatic completion of the raport.

o And rthat's a paolicy -- Sergeant, it's neo trick about
it. &and I'll speed it up here. I mean, it's -- there's no
trick. And it's filled out any time a taser is utilized, or a
gun is discharged, or any time, correct?

A Yes, s:ir.

Q Ckay, And without having to go through, and enter
an exhibit and all that, to speed things up, let me just ask
you straight off if you remember. It was quite clearly filled

eut that the cfficer's assessment of the citizen was ha was
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mentally ill, or slash -~ or, slash, under the influence; is

that correct? Do you remember that, or do you need to see it?

A Iz that under my portion, or under Qfficer Balledjns'
pertion?
o Well, you -- it's all five pages, and you approved

it at the end. 8o, surely you would have read that?

A Yes,

Q CGkay. So. you agree with that, it does say -- it
says it right here. I mean, if you hneed me to have it
approached —-—

A I would have to look at it to agree, but.

ME. O'KEEFE: Mr. Maningo, will you approach the
witness and --

MR. MANINGO: Sure.

MR. O'HEEFE: -—- let him refresh his memory? And
also, here, let him read it, plsase. And number one,

ME. MANINGO: May I, Yeur Honor?

MR. O'KEEFE: Court's indulgence.

THE COURT: PFlease. Thank you very much.

MR. O'HEEFE: ©Oh, I'm sorry. Uid the State see ir?
They negd to --

MR. LALLI: I have it, Thank you.

MR. D'KEEFE: Okay. Sorry, Mr, Lalli.
BY MR. O'KEEFE:

o) Would you just read the highlighted an I; and then
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on the fourth or fifth page, the highlight? Let me know when
you're done, Sergeant, please. Ckay. So, now after -- yau've
read it, correct, Sergeant?

B Yas, sir.

o Okay. 5o, it does Say on page 1 that clearly, the
assessment’'s made that mentally ill, and -- slash under the
influence?

A Tes, that does.

{ Okay. And then, on the fourth page, after you
reviewad your lower ranking officer and you approved it, it
says that O'Keefe appeared extremely intoxicated, and
continued to be erratic and emotional in his behavior;
correct, Officer?

A Yes, it does.

] QOkay. Thank you. BAgain, just to clacify real

quick, you seen no weapons in my hand ar anything, correct,

Sergeant?
A I never saw a weapon in your hand, no.
Q And I wasn't on top of the victim; T was beside hep?
A From the vantage point that I saw, you were laying

on her left side. It could have been on that Fortion of Her
lefr body; it could have been on tha floor.

0 4nd you could clearly see in from ¥our standing
point, all the way into the dark bedroom, over and beyond the

bed and sae?
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A It was not a dark bedroom. There was light.
L] If we have photographs showing that the light was
off -- you must remember, when these photographs were taken,

your team came in and brought lights in, and turned it on.

But if I were to have a picture shown that clearly shows at
the time that they toock the photographs, the picture (sic) was
off. And then, they went in and turned whatever they could,

and they took more pictures.

Are you saying that you're disputing that the —-- it
was —-- there was no light on?
A When we entered the bedroom, the bathroom light that

is attached to that bedroom was on, providing light inte that
FOOm.

Q Key, providing light into that room. But there was
no light fixture -- there was no light on in the bedroom.
Clearly, thar's all I'm stating. Is that correct? The light

was coming from -—-—

A I remember light coming into that room Erom the
bathzoom.

Qo From the bathreom. Thank you, sir. And that's fair
encugh.

ME. C'KEEFE: You ¥now, Your Heonor, no Eurther
gquestions.
THE CCURT: Thank you so much, Mr. O Heefe.

MR. O'KEEFE: Thank you.
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THE COURT: Let's —— asre we geing to recess, or you
got one or two guestions?

MR. LALLI: I have no other guestions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you so much for testifving and
w2iting this leng. We appreciate it.

All right. 1It's a good time to take cur evening
recess. I think we have sccomplished a lot, ladies and
gentlemen. 1 commend Mr. Lalli, and I commend Mr. O'Keefe for
moving this aleng.

And we're going to resume our testimony tomorrow
morning at 9:30, s¢ everybody be ocutside at 9:30. I have a
motion calendar, and it's a civil calendar. So, these civil
lawyers are pretty wordy. Sg -- but I'm goeing to kry to get
Lhrough with it bhefore 9:00 o’clack —- 5:30, excuse me. But
if I'm a litcle larte, I'm a little larte.

Don't converse among yourselwves, or anyone glse, on
any subject connected with the trial; read, watch, or listen
to any report of, cor commentary on the Lrial, by any person
connected with the trial, or by any medium of information,
including, without limitation, newspapers, television, radia.
hnd you are not to form or express any opinien on the trial
until the cause is finally submitted to you.

S0, with that admonishment, we'll see everybody back
at 9:30. Mr. Roche, did you write this thing for mé? Did

somebody write --—
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THE MARSHAL: That's number 7, Your Honor.

THE COURT: ©Ch. Who'as 772

THE MARSHAL: 7 or 2.

UNKNOWN MALE SPEAKER: The guestion?

THRE COURT: HWo. It's a -- whe -- this, “I have a
neighbor,"

UNKENOWN MALE SPEAKER: Thalb's me,

THE COQURT: Yeah. Would you wait in the courtroom,
please?

UNENOWN MALE SPERKER: Sure.

THE COURT: And the rest of you, we'll be at sase
pntil the jury leawves.

{Outside the presence of the jury panel)

THE COURT: All right. fuu kneow, we appreciate -- I
just have to —- everything that comes, I have to make a record
aon. You wrote sgme sort of a note. And I put in Juror number
8, because you're Juror number 8,

JUROR HO. 8: Yezah.

THE COURT: "I have a neighbor down the strest named
Daniel. 1 don't remember his last name, but works either as &
CSI person, or the coraner, I da neot socialize with him, He
is' a neighbor, acquaintance. I do not know if this is one of
Your wiknesses."

50, I don't think -- that was the only Daniel, I

think. He had -- that was Daniel, wasn't his name?
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MR, LALLI: It was, Your Honor.

THE COUBRT: Is there any Daniel that works with the
€3I or coroner that you expect to call?

MR. LALLI: Yes. There is a retired crime scene
analyst by the name of Dam Ford. I know that analyst Ford is
now retired from Metro, and it's my belief that he lives
somewhere in Henderson.

JURCR MO, B: I don't think that's the same
individual,

THE COURT: &And he's an cilder gentleman? How old is
he about?

ME. LALLL: He's really old. He's probasbly —- I
don't know, S0-something.

THE COURT: Sc, my age?

{Fause in the proceedings)

MR. LALLI: He's -- I would say he's middle-aged.

THE COURI: Mlddle-aged? And what does he look
like?

MR. LALLI: He's a tall gentleman. He has kind of
brownish-reddish hair, kind af curly.

THE COURT: All right. FProhably not the person,
righc?

JURCR NQ. 8: I don't think that's the same
individual.

THE COURT: &ll right. Well, if -- but I feal --
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thank you very much fer bringing it te my attention. Always
good to be cautious. So, we'll just make this part of the
record that preobably, the neighbor you mentioned 1s not going
to be called. But if something happens --

JUBOR NG, 8: No.

THE COURT: == you'll let me --

JUROR RO, 8: This person's younger.

THE COURT: -- write another note, all right?

JUROR WO. 8: This person's younger than me, very
heavyseat.

THE COURT: Okay.

JURCE HO. B: Yeah.

THE COURT: So, I'm sure it's not.

JURGE NO. B: Different person,

TRE COURT: Thank you so much. Have a nice evening.

All right. This is outside the presence of the
jvury. So, what are we looking at? We're going to have a full
day tomorrow, because ]'ve resolved the seitlement conference.
So, we'll have a full day tomorreow, from 9:30 to 5:00, And
you'il have the witnesses here, right, Mz, --

MR. 1ALLI: We will, Your Honor. There are some
gcheduling issues that we have in every trial, and we'll work
around these. We might have to call a few wiknesses out of
order. I cam tell the Court that we have one witness who

suffered a death in his family, and is eout of town for that.
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But he will be back on Thursday, so w='ll have at least ane
witness on Thursday. We may be able tao get through the
majority of the other witnesszes tamorrow.

THE COURT: OCkay. Pernaps -- so, Thursday -- now,
Mr., O'Keefe, you mentioned you have some witness under
subpoena; is that correcc?

MR. O'KEEFE: I'm going te call nobaody, Your Honor.

THE COURT: OQkay. It's up to you, all right?

MR. Q'KEEFE: [ want to just -- let's just move this
show along.

THE COURT: Yeah, 1 -~ you know, it's up to you. I
mean, again, 1 accommodate enything you need, Let me g9ive you
the admonishment while I'm thinking about it, so I don'c
forget. You know, I have to give ¥ou the —~ you've heard this
before. It's the waiver of right dgainst self-incrimination.

Before a defendant takes or refuses te take the
stand, the following statutes have to be read La the defendant
cutside the presence of the jury, and I have to advise him to
confer with maybe your standby counsel, with (inaudible]
having the defendant voluntarily make a knowing and
understanding waiver of the right against self-incrimination
by testifying if you sp desire. But You may refuse to waive
your constitutional right, and nat take the stand.

Now, NRS 175.171, "No special instructicns teo be

given relating exclusively to the defendant's restimony.  In
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the trial of all indictments, complaints, and other
proceedings against persons charged with the commission of
crimes or offenses, the person so charged shall at his own
reguest, but not otherwise, be deemed a competent witness, the
credit to be given his testimony being left solely to the jury
under the instructions of the Court. But no special
instructions shall be given relating exclusively to the
testimony of the defendant."

MRS 175.181, "Instruction not to be given relative
to failure of the defendant to testify.® One, "No instruction
shall be given relative to the failure of the person charged
with the commission of crime or offense to testify, axcept,
upon the reguest of the persan so charged, the Court shall
instruct the jury that in accordance with a right guaranteed
by the Constitution, no person can be compelled in a criminal
actiagn to be a witness against himself, and nothing herein
contained shall be construed as compelling any such person to
testify, "

So, kasically -- you know this probably. Under the
Constitution of the United States, under the Constituticn of
the State of Nevada, you cahnot be compelled to testify in
this case. You understand that?

MR. O'KEEFE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COQURT: And you may though, at your own regquest,

give up this right, and take the witness stand and tescify.
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If you da, you will be subject to cross-examination By the
district attorney, and anything you may say, be it on dirset
or cross, will be subject to fair comment when the district
altarney speaks to the jury in their final argument. Do youn
understand thac?

ME. O'KEEFE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE CQUDRT: And if thoose not to testify, the Court
wili not permit the distcrict attorney to make any comments o
the jury because you have not testified. Do you ungderstand
that?

MR. O'KEEFE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: 1If you elect not to testify, the Court
will instruct the jury, but only if you request --
specifically request, as folleows: "The law does not compel a
defendant in a criminal case to take the stand and testify,
and no presumption may be raised, and oo inference of any kind
may be drawn from the failure of the defendant to testify,"
Do you understand that?

MR. O'KEEFE: Yes, Your Hopor.

THE COURT: If wou have feleny canvictions, of
course they'll be brought out, and you have not sought to
precluode them, They'll be brought out. But that's already
brought out, so that's not Teally a matter here.

50, that baing said, at least you know your rights.

And you don't have to tell me now wherher vou're going to
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testify or not. That's up to you. A&nd we'll reserve that at

the appropriate time, all right?

Is there anything else to come before the Court

before we take ocur evening recess?

MR. LALLI: Hot on behalf of the State, Your Hopnor.
THE COURT: Mr. O'Keefe, anything else?

ME., G'EEEFE: Ho, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

ME. G'KEEFE: Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you so much. 1 appreciate

everybody being professional, and we'll see everybody tomorrow

at 9:30.

MR. MANTNGO: Thank you, sir.

{Proceeding concluded at 5:04 p.m., until Wednesday,

June 13, 24012, at %:33 a.m.)
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, MONDAY, JUNE 11, 2012, 9:44 & M,

{Qutside the presence of the prospective jury panel)

THE COURT: All right. This is the time set for
trial in case number C-2503 -- excuse me, 250630, State vs.
Brian Kerry Q'Keefe. Who's here for the record, please?

MR. LALLI: Your Honor, Christopher Lall: and Liz
Mercer on behalf of the State,

THE COURT: OCkay.

MR. MANINGO: And Your Honor, Lance Maningo, standby
counsel for Mr. O'Keefe. And Mr. Q'Eeefe is entering the
courtroom now,

THE CQURT: A1l right.

{Pause in the proceedings)

THE COQURT: All right. This is -- as I sald, this
is outside the presence of the jury. This is time set for
this trial. 1Is the State ready to proceed?

ME. LALLT: We are, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Defense, ready to proceed? Mr. O'Keefe?

ME. O'KEEFE: Yes, Your Honor,

THE CQOURT: &All right.

MR. O'KEEFE: I'm sorry, Your Honor.

THE COURT; All right. WMo problem. Doss the State
want to put anything on the record cutside the presence —-
then I'm going to ask Mr. Q'Keefs if you want tao put anvthing

on the record, because I always like everything to be
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preserved. I mean, whether rulings are for or against you, I
think it's incumbent upon me to -- for you to make a record,
whatever you want to make 2 record on, all righe?

Does the State want to say anything?

MR. LALLI: Well, Yeour Hopor, with -- just a couple
of things. With respect to exhibits, we'rs using the same
exhibits that were used in the previous trial. I've asked
your clerk to bring those exhibits to the courtroom, and it's
my understanding they are here. They'te back in a secure
areda. 5o, just in terms of that issue,

THE COURT: You understand that, Mr. O'Keefe?
They'ze going to use the same exhibits,

ME. O'KEEFE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Whether they're admitted or not, that's
up to me,

MR. OTKEEFE: Yes, Your Heonor.

THE CQURT: Ckay,

MR. LALLI: Your Honor, with respect to «- as the
Court well knows, this would be the third trial on this maktter
for Mr. O'Keefe. 0During the first twa trials, there have been
numerous rulings, evidentisry rulings --

THE COURT: Let me stop you there. By the way, this
is —= Mr. O'Keefe, of course you know this more than anybody
else, I'm just «- we should not have any mention to the jury

that thisz is & retrial, or another trial. You understand
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that? I mean, [inaudible). I don't think the State will
mention it.

MR. LALLI: Mo, Your Honeor., We'll refer to prior
testimony as --

THE CQURT: Prior testimony.

MR. LALLI: -- priet hearings, prior proceedings;
things ©f that nature., We will not refer to a prior krial.
We've also admonished qur witnesses not to refer to a prior
trial. '

THE CQURT: Do you want to say anything regarding
that, Mr. O'Kepfa?

MR. OTKEEFE: I'll wait until you give me the chance
to speak, Your Honor. I'll let --

THE COQURT: Well, I'm going to take issue at-a-rime.

MR. O'KEEFE: Okay.

THE COURT: So, this issue right now --

MR. G'KEEFE: 1 agree with that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: What?

MR. O'KEEFE: If the trial proceeds, Your Honor,
absolutely, I agrae with that., Yes, zir, Your Honor.

THE COURT: QOkay. That's all I wanted to know,

MR. O'KEEFE: Thank you, Your Honar.

THE COURT: You have a right to, you know, request
another continuance, and I1'11 hear the argument on thar.

MBR. O'KEEFE: Yes, sir. Thank you, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: But I'm just going to get the ground
rules. All right. What else?

MR. LALLI: Your Honor, Judge Villani had granted

THE COQURT: By the way, now, Mr. Maningo, you're
here as a standby counsel; is that correct?

MA. MANIWNGC: That's correct, sir.

THE COURT: And I -- there's nothing -- I'm just
going to introduce —— when the jury comes in, I'm going to
say, Mr. Christopher Lalli, Ms. Liz Mercer on behalf of the
State, Mr. O'Keefe representing himself, and standby counsel,
Mr. Maninge. Is there any problem with that, State?

ME. LALLI: HNot on behalf of the State,

THE CQURT: Do you have any problem with that, Mr.
C'Keefe?

MR. D'KEEFE: Mo, Your Honor. Thank you.

THE COQURT: All right. HNext? I'm sorry, I keep on
interrupting you., But I just wanted to —-

MR. LALLI: Mo, no. That's all right, Your Honor.
Judge Villani had granted in part a2 bad act motion that the
State proffered. And one of those incidents was a convictian
that Mr. O'Heefe suffered for domestic viclence, third
offense.

In previous trilals, the Stste was content with just

informing the jury that there had been a previocus trial, Mr.
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Q'Feefe was convicted, and that that is a felony conviction
invelving Victoria Whitmarsh. Prior to this trial, we brought
a bad act motion, and we wanted to prove up 28 many svents as
the ceourt weuld allew us to do. The court allowed us to prove
up that ¢ne event, the prior domestic vioclence. Ard the
cqurt, Judge ¥illani, had prepared & written order addressing
that,

What was unclear is to what extent we are allowed ko
prove up the facts of that case. In his order, he says, all
of the facts and circumstances of that case and conviction.
It's my understanding, or my belief that the order allowed us
to indicate that Mr. O'kKeefe was tried on a charge of batctery
constituting domestic viclence, third offense, and that the
information, in addition to the judgment of conviction, which
was previcusly admitted, would be zllowed.

The officer, now Lieutenant Price, who will he a
fact witness that we call in proving up that charge, will
testify that he was aware of Mr. O'Keefe's record, which is
cne of the reasons, or the primary reascn that he actually
removed Mr. O'Keefe from the -- from the scene, after being
called there, and determining that there wasn't ahough
evidence Lo make an arrest,

What this officer did was he actuzlly put Mr.
O'Keefe in the car, and drove him somewhere else. It was the

only time the officer had ever done that, but he did that
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because of Mr. G'Keefe's -- knowing his record.

And so, I understand that Judge Villani said we
can't go into the facts of the prior offenses, which we don't
intend to do. But we think that it is important for the jury
to understand he was tried and convicted of a battery
constituting domestic violence, third offense.

It's my belief, although Judge Villani never
addressed it, that we would be allowed to do that, and I just
want to confirm that with the Court before we march inte that
ares.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. QO'Keefe?

ME. O'KEEFE: Okay, Your Honor. ‘Thank you, Your
Honor, by the way. I want to say briefly, with all sincerity,
it's a pleasure tc meet you. I've heard about you, sir. And
I'm not brown-nosing or anything., It's z shame thakt I have to
meet you under these circumstances. I know about you, your
history and evexything. 1IL's a pleasure to meet you, Your
Honor.

And I alse want te state for the record, I will be
very brief and gquick. I will treat you with upmost respect,
Your Honorx, and also the State. I will not speak out of turn.
¥ will patiently wait my turn. I only ask that since I have
been properly [inaudible] canvassed, I do get the right to
argue my cage for appellate purpases, if needed,

Tou know how important -- better than anybody, Your
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Honor, how important that is, Because they will come back and
say, well, you took on your own case, ¥ou should have argued
ar objected that. So, please, you know, per Haines VS,
Berner, give me a little liberal construction, and any motions
O any argument, Your Honor.

Okay. Now, as far as this here. We have a big
problem, Your Honor. This is so tancamount —— this is so
nuge, okay? Please hear with me. And I have brought the
documents per NES 47.150. T have created an exhibit under
subdivisior 2 that says I'm asking -- mandating that you take
judiecial notice of the facts of this case, and these
standings,

Judge Villani, shame on him. Almost four years of
litigation, Your Honor. Two trizls. I've been in this
courtroom 168 times, He denied my right to delay this trial
oen calendar call, and personally said in front of Mr. Maningo,
Mr. Lalli, the assistant federal public defender, the attorney
general, everybody, that oh no, we are going to trial on
Monday.

I reserved -- he said on the record, I reserved two
weeks [or you, because you wanted to ge. Then, on Thursday
night, Friday morning, I'm told that he goes on vacation.

They just ran a big ad in the paper about Judge Vega. I'm
going to pursue that if I have to, that's down the road.

But what I'm getting st is, Your Honor, first of
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all, the State of HNewvada in 2008 wrongfully charged me witch
malice murder by -- based on a battery act of the intentional
stabbing. I was forced to take the stand in that rrial
because Judge Villani's ruling would not let in any evidence.
The scales of justice we like this.

He didn't allow in any suicides; so much evidence —-
the Nevada Supreme Court has glready reviewed it, and they
seen what happened. I had to take the stand and tell my atory
a little bit, Your Honor. And I'm moving along fast. I'm
going to move real guick. Okay.

Luckily, after taking the stand and telling my
story. God help me, and the jury picked in the middle. They
had nine =elections to choose from. It was an cpen murder
charging amended information. But they were —- charged me
with first degree malice murder, bas;d on the battery act of
unlawfully stabbing. They returned a second degree murder
with a deadly weapan.

The Nevada Supreme Court reversed the case based on
dn erronecus jury instructiom on second degre; murder, basad
-= being prejudicial. Now, the only reason why that Jury
instruction was prejudicial, Your Honor, is because the
evidence didn't support ic.

And not only that, they said they didn't allege the
crime in the amended charging deocument. They couldn't list

tha charge of battery in murder. For the single alleged act,
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10
it was described by the elements in the bedy of the
information.

Alao, once they charge malice aforethought and
premeditated, they didn't have teg list batrery:; they couldn't.
It's duplicity. They got away with a crime, and thay know it.
The trickery by the deceit of the jury instruction 18.

Jury instruction 18, which I brought a copy, didn't
have a chance. Because you being appointed a new judge, I had
to pull samething together; spend my whole weekend to get this
for the judicial notice that I want you to look at. And I
want to make it as an exhibit for the record for appeal, if
needed, also, by the way.

Getting back to the point, the fact of the matrer
is, they said that the evidence didn’t support that Mr.
O'Heefe did any unlawful act. And the evidence presented at
trial did not support that theory of second degree malice
murder =-- implied malice murder. The evidence didn't SUppert
it. They're stuck with that language, Your Honor, They're
held to it.

The addressed an issue, presented issue, too, which
they reversed it on direct appeal. And it was adversely
against the State, and they ruled on it in my favor,
Constituticnal collateral estoppel applies. They said I did
no unlawful act, no battery.

i comg back from prison. 1 didn't know. 1I'm going
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11
to be honest. Like a fool, let's go to trial. Paid thousands
of dellars for a paid attorney. They assume, well, he’s an
idiot, evidently. He doesn't know it's acquittal. ©Like a --
I was 5o angry and mad at the whole system,

Anyway, we go to a second trial. Mr. Lalli
recharges me with the same offenses, same crime, after an
acquittal; only second deqree murder. The remaining theory
was the same theory already on the griqinal instruction for
second degree murder.

My whole point is, the jury acouitted me, Your
Honor, of intentional stabbing first degree murder, with
intant. You either did it, Your Heonor, or you didn't. Right
now, we are proceeding on an unintentional murder, based on
what? There was no unlawful act Mr. Lalli can charge me with,
Yeour Honar, Hear me. Those whe have ears hear me, the Hible
S5@YS.

THE COURT: You have this in the federal system,
right? You have this issue in the federal system; is that
corract?

MH. O'KEEFE: Right new, it's in the Hinth Circuit,
I'm building up te that, Your Honor, and I'll speed it up.
Give me five minutes. You need to hezr this.

He recharges the same offense, regardless that the
acqguittal wasn't efficially entered; 5. Gr {phonetic)

says it doesn't have to be. It's always good. Double
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Jeopardy applies. Ewven if the language used in the reversal
grder was egregious or wrong, the Revada Supremg Court is held
te it.

The law of the first appeal is the law of the casze
of all subseqguent appeals. BAny issve decided is no lgnger
cpen to consideration. It's over. Honor stare decisis. I'm
claiming res judicata form of jeopardy on the same offense.

However they proceed on the second trial -- Mr.
Lalli presents the same evidence, rehashes the same evidence,
after rhe reversal order said I did pot battery act. He's
precluded from any battery -- anything with the word
"battery." 1In actuality, he’s precluded from all the evidence
from both trials, Yeur Honor. He should not have been able to
use in the second trial the evidence from the first trial. He
did it anyway.

He's got to do what he's got to do. He's got no
evidence. It's the same standard of proof. It's not a lesser
standard of charge. If it was manslaughter or something like
that, he could use some of the evidence. But he's barred.
He's barred because it's the same standard of proaf, ¥Your
Honor. <Consatitutiomal collateral estoppel appligs. The issue
was decided in my favoer.

The Supreme Court has mandated the law of the casa.
The trial court decisions, Your Honor, by Judge Villani, don't

hold water. Mr. Lalli should know that better than anybody .
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In 2200, he waz the DA on ord evada, 594 P.2d, pate
700. Head nege 25 ——

THE COURT: T think I was the judge on that, too,
wasn't I?

ME. LALLI: I think you were, Your Honor.

THE COURT: ford?

MR. O'EKEEFE: Head note 25, trial court deciszions
are not -- do not constitute the law of the case. Only the
Mevada Supreme Court can constitute the law of the case an
direct appeal. I was acquitted by the jury of first degres
intentional stabbhing, criminal intent.

Thern, Nevada Supreme Court on top of it, they
acquitted me of any unlawful act. Unlawful means criminal.
You face punishment. They had acquitted me of the -- also,
the sctus reus. There's no actus reus; there's po criminal
intent. There is no evidence ~-- there's no charge, Your
Honor, for murder. There's no evidence.

The law -- now, the jury even hung on the WwIcng
evidence used, Your Honor. At the end of the second trial,
hashing out jury instructions, I have certified court
documents where Mr. Lalli makes a judicial admission. And
ke's not geing to deny it. They were going to lek you try to
give the involuntary manslaughter instruction at the end of
the second trial, and he objected to it highly, and created a

whole couple-page debate.
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And I got streamlined just two pages af it for you
to review. He admits the Nevada Supremse Court well is aware
of how inveluntary manslaughter would become second degrae
murder, by the unlawful act for implied malice murder. He
admits in the record that the Nevada Supreme Court is well
aware of this, how it works -- how second degree murder works
with involuntary manslaughter, how it would become second
degree murder.

However, the Hevada Supreme Court ruled the evidence
didn't support it. Absolutely right. The second trial proved
it again. The jury couldn't convict again. They wrongfully
used it. He admits in the judicial admission -- because ha's
bound by it, becavse jeopardy still applies. If you want to
go that way, he's forbidden from presenting any more evidence.
He used evidence he can't use,

He admitted at the end of the trial that the Newvada
Supreme Court admitted that the evidence didn't support it,
and that I did any unlawful act. and at the end of it -- I
couldn't believe it. 1 about fell down in my cell. He s3id,
and thus, as far as we've seen it, again, the evidence still
dogsn't suppart it.

Well, what the heck are we doing? He's stuck. He's
time-barred, Your Honor. I'm not a fool. I'm not a foal.

THE COURT: 38p, this is a moticon to, what, dismiss?

{Or what --
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MR. Q'KEEFE: Yes. I'm gaing te lead to a motion to
dismiss.

THE COURT: All right. You've got five minures, if
you're going to.

MR. O'KEEFE: Okay. He can't procesd. He has no
evidence. It should not have even been sent to —— submitted
te the jury. That'’s another reason why Judge ¥illani knows, I
submitted a motion in March for a motion to dismiss,
callateral estoppel.

He can't even proceed on the theory of intenticnal
stabbing. I'we been acquitted of it. By first degree by the
jury of the tier and facts, they acquitted me of first degree
intentional stabbing. They returned -— they thought maybe &z
battery happened, But the Nevada Supreme Court said, no Way.
Doesn't support it. After review of the record, even though
we're looking at your error, it doesn't support it.

Eo, when 1 came back for the second trial, that's
the trial I was claiming that it's forbidden for the same
offense. Second trial proceeded. A mistrial. He keeps
Lrying teo switch it te, oh, everybody knows after a mistrial,
you can proceed with another trial. But he's net telling them
it's a third trial. He makes a judicial admission.

Okay. Quickly moving on. I have to take gwver the
case because, you know, I can say things, with ne disrespect,

that normally, attorneys won't bring up., I can just attack
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the case with a lot of passion., BAnyway, I would leave Mr.
Maninge no offense. I wanted to take over the case, because I
do nothing but pushups, and I just -- I had to do something.
I'm s0 passionate about I didn't do this, and I've been
acqguitted.

S0, I fils pretrial 2241, claiming & true double
jeopardy viclation. And I can do that, by the law, because
1've had two trials. I'm a pretrjal detainee. I'm under no
state court judgment. To make a long story short, Judge
Navarra -- I even put the order in there. GShe agrees,
gbsolutely, somewhat, there's a doubt Jeppardy problem.
There's something here.

And on ground 2 that I filed -- I filed three

grounds; double jeopardy, collateral estoppel, ineffective

coungel. They admitted -- she even puts in there, absolutely

appears to be -- exact words; collateral estoppel issues. But
because I was trying to claim & third -- ineffective counsel,

zhe szays, no, {inavdiblel -- it kind of scared me.

She sent me an crder back. She says, I'1l give you
30 days to do & show cause response, I did a show cause
response. 5She responded to that. She denied the petition.
When 1 did the show cause response in the amended petition, T
dropped ground I, collateral estoppel, and ground 3, and I
proceeded going on the double jeopardy. She denied it.

I appealed it to the Ninth Circuit. The Ninth
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1] Circuit said, what the heck is going an? They named it. 1

2| got it right here, the order. We're going to name it. We

3| know what you did, Judge Navarrs. You denied it on procedural
4| grounds, without addressing the true deublae Jjeopardy

3| violation, so we're going to handle it for You .,

& After review of the petition, we're concluding that
7] it states at least -- at least one federal constitutional
I 8| claim, debatable to name judges of reason, Namely, & double

9| jeopardy violation. They can go from claim, to vialation.
10| Therefore, we grant Mr. O'Keefe COA on these issues. They

11| went on the procedural [inaudible], because they have already

12| admitted there's a2 double jeopardy violation.

I 13 To save face of a colleague, they're going to make
141 her address -- the easy way out, the procedural [inaudible]
13| 2241, does he have te? They even said -- the State case law

i 16| that I cited under White vs, Lambert, 2004, Judge Paez on the
17| Hinth Circuit, stated that, if you are a pretrial detainee and
18| if you file 2241, as long as the threshold —— as long as
19 you're -- at the time of filing, you're not under Srtate court

20| jedgment, and we have a trus double jeopardy violation.
21 I sent amended in fermaktions, the judament of

22| conviction, the reversal order, second amended information. 1

23| sent this and that. They were blown away, I heard. They
24| eouldn't believe it. They revarse it. They send it back,

23| full briefing, and appointed me counsel. Sir, we're going to
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help you cut. Full briefing schedule, Your Honer, in less
than twe months. Fell briefing.

And then, I find -- Judge Navarro sends me an order
two weeks ago; she recuses herself. Now, Villani recuses
himself. And then, I found out she's married to a top DA in
the State, in the criminal division, Mr. Rutledge is her
husband. Yeah, that's really fair. That's really fair.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. -- I gave you —— I
understand there's a motion to, I guess dismiss.

MR, Q'KEEFE: I'm asking & motion ta dismiss.

THE COURT: &All right. #ow, get all of those
documents you have together --

MR, O'KEEFE: I asked him to make a copy so I
present --

THE COURT: Well, yeah. When you get them -- Ms.

Clerk, when he gets these documents, mark them a&s & court
axhibitk.

MB. O'KEEFE: May I --

THE CQURT: Motion -- Mr, C'Keefe's motion to
dismiss prior to getting a jury, all right?

MR. O'KEEFE: 3A -- O'Keefe Exhibir 33 -- may I,
Your Honer? For <- 3 being for third trial, Exhibit A,

defendant's.

THE COQURT: All right. Just get it together, and

wa'll mark them.
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MR. O'KEEFYE: I got it togethsr. It just means to
be copied. IC's good.

THE COURT: All right. Well, go ahead. Mr. -- YOou
want te help him out, Mr, Maningo?

MR. MANINGO: I -- he —- Mr, O'Keefe Brought them in
this morning. We met last night, He told me about them.

THE CGURT: All right, Well --

ME. MANINGO: And zo ——

MR. O'REEFE: I [ipaudible] all weekend.

MR. MANINGO: -- we're in the process of --

THE COURT: I just want to have them marked,

MR. MANINGO: Absolutely, Your Honor. We're in the
process of getting theose copied now,

THE COURT: Oh, you're getting them copied. &all
right.

MR. MANINGO: Yes.

MR. O'KEEFE: Okay.

M&. MERCER: 1It's already gone ——

THE CQURT: Well, you want to respond Mr. Lalli®

MR, MANINGO: -- put the door.

THE COURT: -- Mr. Lalli?

MR. LALLI: Yes, Your Honor. During the course of
the first trial, the defendant was charged with apef murder,
which, as the Court knows, includes the charge of first degree

murder and second degree murder, The Court gave an
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instruction on second degree felony murder, which is a
different theory of second degree murder. The Jury alsg
réturned a verdict of second degree murter.

When that case was appealed to the Nevada Supreme
Court, the Nevada Supreme Court said that there was no
evidence of felony second degree murder in the record. And
because they could not ascertain which theory of second deqgree
murder the jury relied upon, they reversed the ceonviction.

Mr. O'Keefe believes mistakenly that the Nevada
Supreme Court in their order of reversal said that the State
was precluded from proceeding on any theory of second degres
murder; which is simply not the case. We still have available
Lo us a theory of second deqree malice murder, and that is the
theory upon which we are proceeding.

Mr. O'Keefe brought the same motion that he's making
Lo Your Honor before Judge Villani. That motion was denied.
There's nuthing that precludes us from proceeding on a second
degree malice murder theory, which i= what we're procesding
Qn .,

THE COURT: And what about this federal -- he still
has that availabkility, no --

MR. LARLLI: That's availableo --

THE COURT: —- matter if we go forward or not todsay.

MR. LALLI: That is available toc him. The defendant

filed in front of Judge Navarro a petition, raizing the same
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issues. He believes -- Judge Navarro believed it had merir.
She was so impressed by the petition that she didn't even
grder the government to respond. She summarily denied itf.

The Supreme -- the Ninth Circuit thereafter found an
issue of an appealability. So, they allowed the defendant ta
appeal. However, they apparently are not all that impressed
by it either, becsuse they are aware that this trial is
pProceeding, and they elected twice not to stay it. So what it
does --

THE COURT: 8o, the federal -~ federal did not stay
this proceeding. They could have. They could have stayed it,
if they were impressed, as you Say.

MR. LALLI: That's correct. But he still does have
the ability to fully litigate that issue in the Minth Circuit.
He was appointed a federal defender to de that, te represent
him in the Ninth Circuit. Sc, that is an issue that's running
it's course.

THE COURT: 3o, irregardless of what the jury's
decisien -- if we go to trial; guilty, not guilty, he still
has a -- if it's quilty, he still has the right to get that
reversed on the federal, if they want to do it?

ME. LALLI: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: ©5So, we're not hurting his rights in any
way regarding that.

MR. LALLI: Correct.
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THE COURT: And Judge Villanli did deny this motien
twice?

ME. LALLI: He did,

THE COURT: All right.

MR. LALLI:; He denied this particular motion once,

THE COURT: Once. 3All right.

MR. O'KEEFE: Your Honor, if I may have one guick,
small rebuttal to that.

THE COQURT: Yeah.

MR. O'KEEFE: Okay. Firstly, I'm going to request
—— and I dan't claim to be some mastermind attorney, or
nothing like that. I'm fighting for my life. I'm trying my
best. I'm not trying to say -- out-know you in the law, or
Mz, Lalli,dmr anything like that. So, please upderstand that.
I'm just really trying te fight.

I'm going to ask that 211 objections during the
court, if it proceeds, be federalized by Your Honor. What
harm would it be, since I'm in the Ninth Circuit slready, and
it's going to be —- everything's being addressed,

THE COURT: I don't know, Just -- do you have any
objection to thar?

MR. LALLI: I do, Your Hongr. That's contrary to
established State law. In death penalty litigstion,
defendants always file a motion to federalize all ocbiections,

and the Court's rouvtinely deny them.
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Including Prier Suicide Attempts, Anger Qutbursts, Anger Management

Therapy, Self-Mutilation and Erratic Behavior filed on 07/21/10

1998-1116

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe to Admit Evidence
Showing LVMPD Homicide Detectives Have Preserved Blood/Breath
Aleohol Evidence in Another Recent Case filed on 08/402/10

1199-1210

Notice of Mation and Motion by Defendant O"Keefe to Dismiss on
Grounds of Double Jeopardy Bar and Speedy Trial Violation and,
Alternatively, to Preclude State’s New Expert Witness, Evidence and
Argument Relating to the Dynamics or Effects of Domestic Violence and
Abuse filed on 01/07/11

2785-2811

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe to Preclude Expert
Testimony filed on 08/16/10

1284-1291

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O’Keefe to Preclude the State
from Introducing at Trial Other Act or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or Would Violate his
Constitutional Rights filed on 07/21/10

1047-1063

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O Keefe to Preclude the State
from Introducing at Trial Other Act or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or Would Violate his
Constitutiona] Rights filed on 07/21/10

1082-1098

Notice of Motion and Motion by defendant O'Keefe te Preclude the State
from Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and Argument filed on
01/03/11

1682-2755

Notice of Motion and motion by Defendant O’Keefe to Suppress his
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Statements to Police, or, Alternatively, to Preclude the State from

Introducing Portions of his Interrogation filed on G8/02/10 1152-1198
Notice of Motion and Motion for Leave of Court to File Motion for

Rehearing — Pursuant to EDCR, Rule 2.24 filed on 08/29714 4914-4921
Notice of Motion and Motion in Limine to Admit Evidence of Other Bad

Acts Pursuant to NRS 48.045 and Evidence of Domestic Violence

Pursuant to 48.061 filed on 01/06/11 2762-2784
Notice of Motion and Motion to Admit Evidence of Other Crimes filed on

02/02/09 (150-0165
Notice of Motion and Motion to Admit Evidence of Polygraph

Examination Results filed on 03/29/12 3412-3415
Notice of Motion and Motion to Dismiss based Upon Violation(s) of the

Fifth Amendment Component of the Double Jeopardy Clause,

Constinutional Collateral Estoppel and, Altematively, Claiming Res

Judicata, Enforceable by the Fourteenth Amendment Upon the States

Precluding State’s Theory of Prosecution by Unlawful Intentional

Stabbing with Knife, the Alleged Battery Act Described in the Amended

Information filed on 03/16/12 3201-3224
Notice of Mation and Motion to Seal Records filed on 03/22/12 3416-3429
Notice of Motion and Motion to Waive Filing Fees for Petition for Writ of

Mandamus filed on 12/06/13 4695-4697
Notice of Motion and Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of Record filed on

09/23/15 3517-5519
Notice of Motion and Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of Record filed on

09/29/15 5525-5527
Notice of Motion filed on 01/13/14 4721
Notice of Motion filed on 01/21/14 4748
Netice of Motion filed on 01/27/14 4760
Notice of Motion filed on 02/24/14 4810
Notice of Motion filed on D3/04/14 4833
Notice of Motion filed on 06/08/15 3154-3160
Notice of Motion filed on 07/23/14 4890
Notice of Motion filed on 08/29/14 4922
Notice of Motion filed on 09/15/14 4953
Notice of Witness and/or Expert Witnesses filed on 02/03/09 0166-0167
Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert Witnesses filed on 0271 7/09 0178-0179
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/ Judgment Affirmed filed on

02/06/15 5072-508]
NV Supreme Court Cierks Certificate/JTudgment Affirmed filed on

07/26/13 46534661
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on

D6/18/14 4866-4870
NV SBupreme Court Clerks Certificate/fudgment Dismissed filed on

03/12/15 5089-5093

NV Supreme Court Clerks Centificate/Tudgmem Dismissed filed on

—6-
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09/28/15 3520-5524

NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on
10/29/14 3062-5066

O’Keefe’s Reply to State’s Opposition 1o Motion to Admit Evidence
Showing LVMPD Homicide Detectives have Preserved Blood/Breath

Alcohol Evidence in Another Recent Case filed on 08/13/10 1256-1265
Opposition 1o State’s Motion to Admit Evidence of Other Bad Acts filed

on $2/06/09 (169-0172
Order Authorizing Contact Visit filed on 03/04/09 0219-0220
Order Authorizing Contact Visit filed on 08/12/10 1253-1254
Order Denying Defendant™s Ex Parte Motion to Extend Prison Copywork

Limit filed on 08/13/15 5486-5488

Order Denying Defendant’s Ex-Parte Motion for Reimbursement of
Incidental Costs Declaring Defendant Ingigent and Granting Forma
pauperis filed on 03/11/14 4840-4842

Order Denying Defendant’s Motion for Relief From Judgment Based on
Lack of Jurisdiction for U.S. Court of Appeals had not Issues Ay
Remand, Mandare or Remittatture filed on 09/04/]14 4027-4929

Order Denying Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss filed on 04/11/17 3454-3435

Order Denying Defendant’s Motion to Seal Recoreds and Defendant's
Motion to Admit Evidence of Plygraph Exarination fied on 05/24/12 3448-3449

Order Denying Defendant’s Petition for Writ of Mandamus or in the
Alternative Writ of Coram Nobis; Order Denying Defendant’s Mation to
Waive Filing Fees for Petition for Writ of Mandamus; Order Denying
Detfendant’s Motion to Appoint Counsel filed on D1/28/14 4761-4763

Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion for Judifical Notice- The
State’s Failure to File and Serve Response in Opposition filed on 04/01/14 | 4855-4857

Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion for Leave to File
Supplemental Petition Addressing all Claims in the First Instance
Required by Statute for Judicial Economy with Affidavit filed on

07/15/15 5464-5466
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Modify and/or Cormrect
Illegal Sentence filed on03/25/14 4852-4854

Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Withdraw Counsel for
Conflict and Failure to Present Claims When LA.C. Claims Must be
Raised Per Statute in the First Petition Pursuant to Chapter 34 filed on

07/15/15 5461-5463
Order Denying Matthew D. Carling’s Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of
Record for Defendant filed on 11/19/15 5574-5575
Order Denying Motion 1o Disgualify filed on 10/06/14 3037-5040
Order filed on 01/30/09 0149
Order filed on 11/06/10 1462-1463
Order for Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 10/15/14 5051
Order for Production of Inmate Brian O"Keefe filed on 05/26/10 1032-1033
| Order for Return of Fees filed on 11/10/11 3183
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Order for Transcripts filed on 04/30/12 3442
Order Granting and Denying in Pant Defendant’s Ex-Parte Motion for

Production of Documents (Specific) Papers. Pleadings, and Tangible

Property of Defendant fiied on 02/28/14 4818-4820
Order Granting Ex parte Motion for Defense Costs filed on 07/01/10 1044-1045
Order Granting Request for Transcripts filed on 01/20/1] 2966-2967
Order Granting Request for Transeripts filed on 04/27/1 1 3043
Order Granting Reguest for Transcripts filed on 09/14/10 1430-1431
Order Granting Request for Transcripts filed on 09/16/10 [438-1439
Order Granting, in Part, and Denying, in Part. Motion by Defendant

O"Keefe for Discovery filed on 08/23/10 1364-1395
Order Granting, in Part, and Denying, in Part, Motion by Defendant

O’Keefe to Preclude the State from (ntroducing at Trial Other Act or

Character Evidence and Other Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or

Wouid Violate his Constimtional Rights filed on 09/09/10 1427-1429
Order Granting, in Part, the State’s Motion to Admit Evidence of Other 3189-3200
Bad Acts fiied on (03/13/12

Order Releasing Medical Records filed on 04/08/1 | 3039-3040
Order Requiring Material Witness to Post Bail or be Committed 1o

Custody filed on 03/10/09 0230-0231
Order Shortening Time filed on 08/16/10 1283
Petition for a Writ of Mandamus or in the Alternative Writ of Cotam

Nobis fiied on 12/06/13 4663-4694
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus or in the Alternative Motion to

Preclude Prosecution from Seeking First Degree Murder Conviction

Based Upon the Failure to Collect Evidence filed on 01/26/09 0125-0133
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus Pursuant to NRS 34.360 Exclusive |

Based On Subject-Matter of Amended Information Vested in Ninth

Circuit by notice of Appeal Then “COA” Granted on a Double Jeopardy

Violation with No Remand Issued Since filed on 09/15/14 4940-4949
Petitioner’s Supplement with Exhibit of Oral Argument Scheduled by the

Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals tor November 17, 2014, Courtroom #1

filed on 10/01/14 4984-4988
Pro Se “Reply to State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Pro Se Motion to

Medity and/or Correct Illegal Sentence filed on 03/04/14 48214832
ProSe “Reply™ to State’s Opposition to Defendant’s (Ex-Parte) “Motion

for Reimbursement of Incidental Costs Subsequent the Courts Declating

Defendant Indigent and Granting Forma Pauperis™ filed on 02/24/14 4792-4799
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/03/11 2761
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/12/11 2812
Receipt of Copy filed on 01712411 2813
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/18/11 2876
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/27/09 0134
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/30/09 D146
Receipt of Copy filed on 02/06/0% 0168
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Receipt of Copy filed on (03/04/09 (221
Receipt of Copy filed on D3/24/69 0323
Receipt of Copy filed on 05/24/1G 1031
Reczipt of Copy filed on 06/13/11 3163
Receipt of Copy filed on 06/30/10 1036
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1240
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1241
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1242
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1243
Receipt of copy filed on 08/13/10 1255
Receipt of Copy filed on 09/14/10 1432
Receipt of Copy filed on 09/17/10 1433
Receipt of Copy filed on 09/21/10 1440
Receipt of File filed on 07/01/10 1046
Reply in Support of Supplemental Petition for Writ of Babeas Corpus
{Post-Conviction) filed on 08/25/15 5500-5510
Reply to State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Post-Conviction

Petition for Habeas Corpus filed on 06/16/15 5423-5432
Reply to State’s Response to Defendant's Supplemental Petition for Writ

of Habeas Corpus filed on 08/24/15 5489-5499
Regeust for Rough Draft Transcripts filed on 10721715 5549-5551
Request for Rough Draft Transcripts filed on 07/17/12 3458-3460
Request for Certified Transcript of Proceeding filed on 09/09/09 0772-0723
Request for Rough Drafl Transcript filed on 05/21/09 0329-0331
Reguest for Rough Draft Transcripts filed on 11/20/12 4629-4631
Return to Wnit of Habeas Corpus filed on 01/29/09 (0135-145
Second Amended Information filed on 08/19/10 1326-1328
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s (Ex-Parte) “Motion for Reimbursement

of Incidental Costs Subsequent the Courts Declaring Defendant Indigent

and Granting Forma Pauperis” filed on 02/07/14 4768-479]
State’s Opposition to Defendant's Motion for a Reasonable Bail filed on

09/27/10 1452-1461
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for Judicial Notice — The

State’s Failure to File and Serve the Response in Opposition filed on

03/10/14 4834-4839
State’s Opposition 1o Defendant's Motion to Dismiss filed on 03/21/12 3407-3411
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Preclude the State from

Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and Argument filed on 01/12/11 2814-2871
State's Opposition te Defendant’s Motion to Seal Records filed on

(04/05/12 3431-3433
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion 1o Suppress his Statements to

Police, or, Alternatively, to Preclude the State from Introducing Portions

of his Interrogation filed on 08/17/10 1306-1319

State’s Opposition 1o Defendant’s Motion to Withdraw Counsel for
Conflict and Failure to Present Claims When LA.C. Claims Must be
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Raised Per Statute in the First Petition Pursuant to Chapter 34 filed on
06/25/15

5442-5446

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Pro Per Motion for Leave of Court to
File Motion. . .Rule 2.4 filed on 09/12/14

4935-4939

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Pro Per Motion fo Chief Judge to
Reassign Case to Jurist of Reason Based on Pending Suit Against Judge
Michael Villani for Proceeding in Clear “Want of Jurisdiction™ Thereby
Losing Immunity, Absolutely filed on 09/12/14

4930-4934

State’s Opposition to Defendant™s Pro Per Motion to Modify and/or
Correet Illegal Sentence filed on 02/24/14

4811-4817

State’s Opposition 1o Motion for Evidentiary Hearing on Whether the
State and CCDC have Complied with their Obligations with Respect to
the Recording of a Jail Visit Between O'Keefe and State Witness Cheryl
Morris filed on 08/10/10

1244-1247

State’s Opposition to Metion to Admit Evidence Pertaining 10 the Alleged
Victim"s Mertal Health Condition and History, Inciuding Prior Suicide
Afttempts, Anger Qutbursts, Anger Management Therapy, Self-Mutilation
and Erratic Behavior filed on 08/16/10

1277-1282

State’s Oppositicn to Motion 10 Admit Evidence Showing LVMPD
Homicide Detectives Have Preserved Blood/Breath Alcohol Evidence in
Another Recent Case filed on 08/16/10

1248-1252

State’s Oppositien to Motion to Dismiss and, Alternatively, 1o Preclude
Expett and Argument Regarding Domestic Violence filed on 01/18/11

2908-2965

State’s Opposition to Motion to Preclude Expert Testimony filed on
(8/18/10

1320-1325

State’s Response and Motion to Dismiss Defendant’s Motion for Relief
from Judgment Based on Lack of Jurisdiction for U.S. Court of Appeals
had not Issued any Remand, Mandare or Remittatture of filed on 08/07/14

4891-4902

State’s Response and Motion to Dismiss to Defendant’s Pro Per Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus Pursuant to NRS 34.360 Exclusive based on
Subject-Matter of Amended Information Vested in Ninth Circuit by
Notice of Appeal Then “COA™ Granied on a Double iEopardy Violatio
with No Remand Issued Since (Post Conviction), Amended Peition and
Accompany Exhibits, Opposition to Request for Evidentiary Hearing, and
Opposition to Pro Per Motion to Appoint Counsel filed on 10/10/14

5041-5050

State’s Response to Defendant’s Motion to Preclude the State from
Introducint at Trial Other Bad Acts or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence that is Unfairly Prejudicial or Would Violate his Contitationsal
Rights filed on 08/16/10

1268-1276

State’s Response to Defendant’s Petition for a Writ of Mandamus or i
the Alternative Writ of Coram and Response to Motion to Appoint
Counsel filed on 12/31/13

4708-4713

State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Post-Conviction Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus filed on 06/02/13

5145-5147

State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Supplemental Petition for Wit
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of Habeas Corpus and Evidentiary FHearing Request, “Mation for Leave to
File Supplemental Petition Addressing all Claims in the First Instance
Required by Statute for Judicial Economy with Affidavit,” "Reply to
State's Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Post Conviction Petition for
Habeas Corpus,” and “Supplement with Notice Pursuant NRS 47.150(2);
NRS 47.140(1). that the Untied States Supreme Court has Docketed (#14-
10093) the Pretrial Habeas Corpus Matter Pursuant 28 USC 2241{eX3)
trom the Mooting of Petitioner's Section 2241 Based ona Subseguent
Judgment Obtained in Want of Jurisdiction While Appeal Pending™ filed

on 07/069/15 3455-5458

State’s Response to Defendant's Reply in Support of Supplemental Post-

Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 09/03/15 3511-5516

State”s Response to Defendant’s Supplement to Supplemental Patition for

Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) filed on 07/31/15 5473-5475

State's Supplemental Opposition to Mcotion to Seal Records filed on

04/17/12 3436-3437

Stiputation and Order filed on 02/10/09 0173-0174

Substitution of Attorney filed on 06/25/10 1034-1035

Supplement te Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-

Conviction) filed on 07/13/15 5459-5460

Supplement with Notice Pursnant NRS 47.150 (2); NRS 47.140 (1), That

the United State’s Supreme Court has Docketed (#14-100%3) The Pretrial

Habeas Corpus Matter Pursuant 28 U.S.C_§ 2241 ©(3) From the Mooting

of Petitioner’s Section 2241 Based on a Subsequent Judgment Obtained in

Want of Jurisdiction While Appeal Pending filed on 06/17/15 5433-5437

Supplemental Appendix of Exhibits to Petition for a Writ of Habeas

Corpus Exhibits One (1) Through Twenty Five {25) filed on 06/12/15 5161-5363

Supplemental Notice of Defendant’s Expert Witnesses filed on 07/29/10 1117-1151

Supplerental Notice of Expert Witness filed on 05/17/12 3443-3447

Supplemental Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 01/03/11 2756-2760

Supplemental Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 08/13/10 1266-1267

Supplemental Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 08/16/10 1297-1305
| Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed on 01/14/11 2872-2875

Supplemental Notiee of Wimesses filed on 03/10/09 0228-0229

Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed on 03/11/09 0237-0238

Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post Convietion) filed

on 04/08/15 5094-5144

Supplernental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 06/15/15 5304-5419

Verdict filed on 03/20/09 0289

Verdict filed on 06/15/12 3457

Verdict Submitied to the Jury but Returned Unsigned filed on 09/02/10 1397-1398

Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 01/30/09 | 0147-0148
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TRANSCRIPTS

Document Page No. |
Transcript - All Pending Motions and Calendar Call filed on 02/04/1 1 2996-3038
Transeript — All Pending Motions filed on (7/10/09 0351-0355
Transcript — All Pending Motions filed on 08/30/12 3461-3482
Transcript — All Pending Motions filed on 11/23/10 1464-1468
Transcript — All Pending Motions on 07/10/09 0348-0350
Transcript — Calendar Call filed on 02/04/11 2968-2973
Transcript — Calendar Cal! filed on 08/3(0/12 3520-3535
Transcript - Continued Hearing: Motion in Limine to Present Evidence of
Other Bad Acts filed on 08/30/12 3483-3509
Transcript — Defendant’s Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post
Conviction) filed on 10/29/15 5560-53564
Transeript — Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Based Upon
Vielation{s) filed an 08/30/12 3510-3519
Transcript — Defendnat’s Motion 1o Settle Record filed on 07/10/09 0342-0345
Transcript — Entry of Plea/Trial Setting filed on 07/10/09 0356-0358
Transcript — Jury Trail — Day | filed on 10/14/09 0724-1322 N
Transeript — Jury Trial — Day 1 filed on 07/10/09 05820651
Transcript - Jury Trial — Day 1 filed on 07/10/09 0652-0721
Transeript — Jury Trial — Day 1 filed on 09/04/12 4278-4622
Transeripl — Jury Tral — Day ] filed on 11/23/10 1579-1602
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 2 filed on 07/10/09 0515-0581
Transcript - Jury Trial — Day 2 filed on 11/23/10 1603-1615
Transcript — Jury Trial -~ Day 2 on 09/04/12 4001-4227
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 3 filed on 07/10/09 (3462-0514
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 3 filed on 11/23/10 1616-1738
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 3 on 09/04/12 3779-4000
Transcript — Jury Trial ~ Day 4 filed on 07/10/09 (0408-0461
Transeript — Jury Trial — Day 4 filed on 11/23/10 [739-2032
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 4 on 09/04/12 3600-3778
Transcript — Jury Trial - Day 5 filed on 07/10/09 0359-0407
Lranscript — Jury Trial — Day 3 filed on 09/04/12 3538-3599
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 3 filed on 11/23/10 2033-2281
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 6 filed on 11/23/10 2282-2507
Transcript - Jury Trial — Day 7 filed on 11/23/10 2508-2681
Transctipt — Jury Trial - Day 8 filed on 11/23/10 1469-1470
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 9 filed on 11/23/10 1471-1478
Transcript — Matthew D. Carling's Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of
Record for Defendant filed on 10/29/13 3557-5559
Transeript — Motions Hearing — August 17, 2010 filed on 11/23710 1479-1499
Transcript — Motions Hearing — August 19, 2010 filed on 11/23/10 15Q0-1536
| Transcript — Motions Hearing - August 20, 2010 filed on 11/23/10 1537-1578
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12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
2
23
24
25
26
27
28

Transeript — Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O Keefe 1o
Preclude the State from Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and

Argument filed on 02/04/11 2974.298%
Transcript — Partial Transcript of the Jury Trial - Day 2 filed on D3/18/09 | 0240-0244
Transcript — Petrocelli Hearing filed on 05/19/11 3049-3162
Transcript — Proceedings filed on 01/02/09 {028-0124
Transcript — Sentencing August 16, 2012 filed on 12/03/12 4632-4635
Transcript — Sentencing August 28, 2012 filed on 12/03/12 4636-4652
Transeript — Sentencing filed on 07/10/09 0337-0341
Transcript — Status Check: Availability of Dr. Benjamin for Trial filed on

02/04/11 2990-24995
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200
O Anything basically --
A Anything that went wrong, yeah.
2 == that needed to be done? With respect to your
unit number 36, were you aware of, or did vou know the

individual who lived next to you in the open-door room there?

A Yes,

Q Who was khat?

A Brian O'Keefe,

2 Okay. I'd like you to look around the courtroom;

tell me if you see Brian O'Keefe in the courtroom.
A Yas.
2 Can you please paint to him, and identify something
he's wearing today?
A A& suif,
9] is he wearing a tie?
& Yellow tie,
4] All tight.
MR. LALLI: Your Honor, may the record reflect the
witness has identified the defendant?
THE COURT: Yas,
BEY MR. LALLI:

0 Would you at times see the defendant cutside his
apartment?

A Yas,

o What weuld you see him do?

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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201
A Sometimes, he was Just hanging out. Sometimes, he's
sitting out there drinking, yau know.
Q All right. Was -- him outside drinking, was that

something fairly frequent, aor you know, maybe once in a blue
moon you'd see him? Can you give us --

A I'd see him out there 2 couple times 2 week, maybe a
few more,

9] All right. MNow, I want to direct your attention
specifically to November 5th, 2008. Were you living in that

same unikt, number 367

A Yes.

¥} Had you -- were you recovering from some surgery at
that time?

A Yes, sir. I 3just had surgery on my foot like three

days prior.

8] What kind of surgery did you have?

A A major surgery where they cut a big -- cut down the
length of my foot, and up my leg, a big flap. I had like
100-and-something staples in it. And it was a pretty major
SULgery.

2 4l right. And at this period of time, were you

taking medication that assisted you in dealing with the pain?

A Yes,
Q What kind of medication were you taking?
A I believe it was lLortab.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

“(400]




11
12
13
14
15
lg
17
18
15
20
21
22
23
24
25

202

i} Did you hear something going on cutside of your room
in the evening hours? Did you hear something cutside, osutside
the confined of your apartmenc?

A I heard a bang on the rail that night.

e, All right. Let's talk about the Percocet. Or did
¥ou say Fercocet —-

A Lorkak.

Q -— or Lortab? I'm sarry, Lortak, Ware ¥au so under
the influence of Lortab that you couldn'‘t tell what was going

oen around you?

& No.

9 All right. So, you tould hear some sart of a
banging?

A Right.

Q What -- was it one bang? Was it multiple bangs?

Give us some zense of what it was.

A Just one bang.
0 Where did it seoupnd like the noise was coming from?
A It sounded like it was right there on that rail,

right outside the door.

Q Could you tell, was it in front of your apartment?
Was it in front of —-

A Well, they're so clese together, they could --
probably right there in front of his, I'm thinking,

2] Right there in front of the apartment with the open

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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dooe?

A

somewhers

Q

naise?

opaned my

203

Yeah, right there in the middle of the twg, or
in that ares.

All right. What did you do when you heard that

I cpened the door, and looked ont.

What did you =zmee?

Saw Brian guing into his apaztment. He was like --
door; he was going in.

And did you see his face?

Yeah, He had a different lock on his face, you

Describe it for us.

It was kind of a2 —- kind of a2 mean look on his face,

or a different look, you know, that I didn't normzlly see cn

his face.

And I was like, whoa. 3o,
3o, then what happened?
I clesed the door.
Okay.
Went back io my apartment,
And did you hesr anything alag?
I heard a little bit of noise going on over there; a
you kraw,
Cver where?

Through the wall.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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Over in Brian's apartment?
Yezah.

What did vou hgar?

Moo D

Heard szome thumping, neoises, Heard some, you know,
talking. I couldn't really tell if it was a man or a womarn,
bt just noises going on over there.

v Were you concerned, or did you —— based upon seeing
the defendant's face in that manner in which you did, and then
hearing the banging next-door, did some -- did a cehcern hit
you?

A At one point, I thought to myself, T wonder if he's
over there beating her up or something, you know.

Q Beating whoe up?

A Higs girlfriend.

Q You had a concern about that based upon seeing his
face, and hearing the noiszes next-dgsr?

Yes,

How long did the noise continue?
45 minutes, maybe.

I'm sarry?

43 minutes, maybe.

Lo R R = A o -

About 45 minutes? Did you -- what happened after

that?

A I dadn't hear any -- well, I heard Cookie from down

Lelow come up. And he knocked on the door or something, and
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started yelling, he stabbed her, he killed her, wou know, or
semething. And I went out and locoked, and Cookie and ancther
quy thnere, Todd, was up there. And I looked in, and I didn't
-- I didn't -- I went back in my apartment.

2 Did the police eventually arrive?
A They arrived real guick after that. Five minutes or
something, yau know.
L, You eventually give the police 3 statement?
A Yos.
4] You basically tell the police what you have told us
today?
A Right.
L¥; Al} right. Thank vou so much.
MR. LALLI: Your Honor, that concludes direct
examination.
THE COURT: Okay. Any cross-examination, Mr,
O'Keegfe?
ME. O'KEEFE: Yes, Yopur Honor.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. O'KEEFE:
Q Helia. Jimmy .
A What's up, man?
Q That night, Jimmy, you testified priocrly {phonetic)
that you seen me approximately straight eut, about 15 minutes

kefore it all happened. Do you remember that?
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A Yeah.

Q 3o, 1t was 15 minutes before the first time?

a It was 30 minutes, something like that, before I
heard Cookie and them come ugp, and the commotion going on.

i} Would you agree though, Jimmy, that repeatedly, vou
had testified that it was 15 minutes?

A I don't remember saying 15 minutes. I think it was
a little longer than that.

2 COkay. WHell, we'll find that for you in just -- for
& moment, 5o you could refresh your memory [inaudible].

MR. OTHKEEFE: Court's indulgence. Ckay.

BY MR. O'KEEFE:

Q 3¢, now you're stating that you're not sure what you

thought -- a moment ago, you %aid 15 minutes, but then you
said you wasn't sure, maybe 3G. So, I mean —-

ME. LALLI: Your Hordor, I object. That
mischaracterizes his testimony. That's not what he said.

THE COURT: He didn't say 15. He said about 30, I
thought. And you said, didn't you testify prior it was 15
minutes.

MR, Q'KEEFE: Okay.

THE COURT: But whatever it is, I mean, rephrase the
gquestion. I den't think he =aid that.

EY MR. O'KEEFE:

g Theze was testimeny given that you stated
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approximately 15 minutes before Cookie started yelling, you

seen Mr. Q'Keefe cutside the doorc? Do you —-

.1 I said, when I opened the door --
o] And you see me ogut thers,
A —-- and you was going in your apartment, we made aye

contact. You went in. I closed my door. That was it.

Q Okay. Did you hear me on the balcony porch when I
came back ouk?

A All 1 remember hearing was when I heard that bang, I
gperned the door. Right when I did, I saw you. You looked at
me, I legked at you. I closed my door, you went in your

apartment, and that was it.

Q ¥You heard like a bang on the rail?

-1 Bang on the rail. That's why I opened the door.

2 Ckay. Was it real loud, or just --

A Yeah, 1t was loud enough. Y¥Yeah.

Q Okay. Because 1 mean, you're right there beside me,

as the picture --

ot That's right. When you opened your door, which was
right beside mine —-

Q Okay.

A == 1 looked at mine ~- I opened my deor. You looked
at me; I locked at you. And I closed my door, and I guess you
went into the apartment.

Q Do you remember giving testimony that yvou seen me
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clearly; I had nothing in my hands, I had -- there was no
blood on me, I had no weapons?

A I didn't see any of that, nao.
G Okay. Real important, Cockie. You're right there

next-door to me. You testified before, but would you
re-testify; cid you hear any yelling, any shouting, screaming,

ar anything?

A That night?

o Yeah. Did you hear any -- you =-

A I heard noises. I don't -- I couldn't tell you —-

O Banging, thoemping?

S I heard some thumping ncises, yeah. Little banging
noises,

o But at any Lime, you heard no shouting, no fighting,
no throwing -- pnone of that?

2 He, I don't really -- 1 —-
Q [Inazudiklal.

A I heard noises, I heard nolses over there. But 3

2 Ckay. But no shouting, yelling, fighting? A&nd

yau're right there.

A I don't believe I ever said that, no.

Q Do you remember testifying the walls were paper
thin?

A Yesh., I didn't say that, no.
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Q And my door was wide open?

A I don't know. The only time I came out was after
Cookie had came up there, and went in your apartment, and szid
what he said., And that's the only time I came out of my
apartment and seen your door open. Ctherwise, I don't know,

Q Okay. But clearly, again, for the last time though,
da yeu think —— or did you -- if there was any fighting -- &
big fight geoing on, you would have heard it?

it I cemember just hearing a ruckus over there, and
thinking to myself, man, I wonder what's guing on; 1 wonder if
he's beating her up or something,

Q You think if somebody —-

& I just remember thinking that, because that night
when 1 saw you, you had a very strangé look on your face, one
that I had never seen.

4] Oh, is that so?

A And that concerned me.

Q Okay. Did you know I was extremely intoxicated?
Testimany was given by the police.

A I theught you were, yeah.

L8] Okay. Did the police set me on the porch outside my
door, after they brought me out? Do you remember sesing I was
out there for a while?

Pl Yeah.

Q I was oubt there for quite a long time, wasn't I7
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A I belisve so.

o Handcuffed, sitting down?

A I believe so.

g At times, I was getting pretty loud, wasn't I, with
the police?

A Tes.

Q And I'm ~- when I'm loud, I'm louad, right? I mean,

it's kind of hard if someone's really drunk, and loud, and

belligerent, to be guiet; wouldn't you say so? It's Jjust not

COmmaLn .,
A Yeah, you were pretty loud oub there.
4] I wa2s rezlly loud, is what testimony was given. So,

if I was that way, and then something was going oo, don't ynu

think you would have heard? Wouldn't you have hearcd, vyou

think -- da you think?

& Oh, you mean oaver there --

Q Yeah. Did you know -- gkay.

A 1 don't know what was going on over there. I don't
know.

Q Did you know that I was in the car, passed guc?

R No.

Q Okay. Mo one told you any of that testimeny, that I

was passed gukt in the sear?
A Ne.

Q2 Ckay.
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A This is the first time I'wve heard it.

] Okay. A&nd would you testify now, I narmally always
left my window cpen; you know that -- or my door, correctr,
Jimmy, from what you've noticed er vbhserved? Or did you esver
notice ¢or ghserve?

;. I really can't remember, man.

Q Qkay. But I would always go cut and smoke on the
porch. You'd see me out there and all that: I smoked cutside?
Okay. Would you aslways see a lot of plants and flowers out
there now and then outside the door? I'd set it out in the
s5un?

A I believe you had a couple plants out there. 1
really ran't remember.

MR. O'KEEFE: No further testimony, Your Hanor.

THE COURT: A1l right. Anything else?

MR. LALLI: Mo, Your Honor,

THE COURT: Thank you for testifying., You can go
about your business now, all right?

THE WITNESS: Thank you, sir.

THEE COURT: Next witness?

ME. L&LLI: Your Honor, the State calls Todd Conn.

THE MARSHAL: Officer Conn, if you will remain
standing. Please, sir, raise your right hand and face the
clerk.

TODD COWMN, STATE'S WITNESS, SWORNM
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THE MAR3HAL: If you would, sir, please have a seat,
and slide up to the microphone. Please state and spell vour
name for the record.
THE WITNESS: My name is Todd, T-o-d-d. Cann,
C-g-n-mn.
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. LALLT:

a Sir, how are you employed?
:} I'm employed with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department.

4] What. do you do for Merro?
& Currently, T'm assigned to the traffic burean with

accident investigation.

Q In the -- deo you drive s motoreyele?

B Currently, yes.

Q All right. Back in Nevember of 2008, what was your
assignment?

A 1 was sssigned to BOlden area command as a patrol
officer.

(] Where is the Bolden area command?

A It's located --

o Mot the actual streets, but just the ares of Las
Vegas.

A That would be Lake Meade and Martin Luther King.

9] And you said that you were assigned to the patrol
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division?
A Yes, sir.
Qo Can you explain fer our jury what the patrol
division is7?
.4 Farrol divisions are sat up by area command. And an

area command is a specific area in which officers are assigned
to conduct patrol activities, and it's where we're also
dispatched to receive calls for service. Bolden area command
incorporates 15 as our east border. Jones is our West border.
Would it he -- Carrie (phonetic) as owr north, and Desert Inn
as our south border.

L] When you are a member of the patrol division at
Metreo, are those the types of police officers who drive the

police cars, wear the police uniferms, and respond to %-11

calls?
fi! Yes, sir.
{ You're a first responder?
. Yes, sir,
Q Are you familiar with the CIT program?
-1 Yes, sar. It's erisis intervention team.
g Can you explain to our jury what that is? Tell us a

little bit about that program.
A Crisis intervention team was developed to deal with
subjects who may he suffering in mental crisis, or sometimes

mental i1llpess. But others, sometimes drug-induced states in
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which you need somebody that has specialized training to deal
with individuals of both drug-induced, and mental dizorders,

if you may.

| Back in November of 2008, were you a CIT officer?
3 Yoz, =ir. 1 was.
Q Can you explain for the jury what sort of training

-- what sort ¢f particular specialized training you have for
that?

A I went through a 40-hour class. During that class,
we actually were assigned to go to the Southern Nevada Mental
Health Institute, where we would speak with pedple who were
bipolar, schizophrenic, to get an idea of some of their
concerns when dealing with police cofficers, how they'd like to
be treated. It alse gives us the ability to recognize
symptoms that subjects may be suffering from.

We also do multiple roleplaying sssignments, in
which our job is to specifically react to the scenario that
they give us, and te try to de-escalate a situation, and bring
it down so that beth officers, and the person that we're in
contact with are safe.

] All right. ©Now, I want to dirsct your attention
spacifically to November 5th of 2008. bDid you respond to 5001
El Pargque, unit number 357

A Yes, sir, I did.

(6] What caused you to go to that location?
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A At the time, 1 was actually getting gas. I heard a
broadeast over our radio stabting that there was an unknown
trouble call, and that there is a door -- an apartment that
had the doer open. They could see large amounts of blced, and
there was possibly a female down inside.
Did you hear anything with respect to a weapon?
F.Y I adid not at the time, no.
o All right. 5o, the information that you had is

blood at the scene, and possibly a woman down?

A fas, sir.
o What do you do upon receiving that information?
A I immediately sSent a text message via our computer

in our vehicle to dispatch, advising her that I would be en
route code to the location,

Q What deoes being “en route code" meaﬁ?

A Code means that we would be activating our lights
and sirens, 50 that we can get there in a little expedited
manner, where we're going to actually break some traffic
rules, go through red lights, et cetera, in order to get to a
scene faster so that we can provide our services to possibly
save & life.

9] 211 right. Can you tell us what you did after yeou

sent that transmission?

3 I immediately went te the location at 5001 El
Pargue. I parked on the -- it's actually the southeast
ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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parking lot. When I pulled in, I noticed there was two other
patrol vehicles that already arrived hefore me. I immediakely
ran to the west through the complex, and went upstairs to the
second floor, where T saw the apartment had it's door apen.

2 Okay. I'm going to show you what we've marked as
State's Exhibit number 2 for identification purposes. Yeu
don't knew what that is, 1 take it?

A That's the stairway.

g Ckay. Let me zeoom—out & little bit. What are we
looking a2t there?

A We are actuvally looking at the stairway that I ran'
up to go te the apartment, and immediately then made a right.
It's the door that's cpen in the picture.

o] Can you describe what that apartment locks like on
the inside?

A Immediately as you go into the deoarway, there's a
living room area. Off to my far right would have been a small
kitchen area. Directly ahead of me, there was actually an
cpen doorway, with one door that you could see facing me, and
it was flat to me, and that was a bathrocm. OfFf to the right,
there was an open deor. And then, off to the left -- and ir's
kind of like a -- just like a little T; was another bedroam.

Q All right.

MR, LALLI: Your Honor, may I approach the witness?

THE COURT: Yes.
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BY MR. LALLI:

) Show you some photographs. We've marked then as
State's proposed 3, 4, 5, and 6. foicer, can you take a
moment and have a iocok at those?

A Yes, sir.

o Do you recognize what's depicted in those
photographs?

A fes, sir, I do.

Q2 Do those photographs fsirly and accurately depict

the inside of unit 35 to which you responded?
2 ¥es, sir, they do.
ME. LALLI: Your Honer, I'd mowve for the admission
aof State's proposed 3 through 6.
THE COURT: Any objecticn, Mr. O'Keefe?
MR. Q'KEEFE: ¥Na, Your Honor.
THE COURT: 2 through & will be admitted.
(Exhibits 3 through 6 are admitted)
BY MR. LALLI:
0 Gfficer, I'm going to show you State's Exhibit
number 3, What is this?
A That is a view looking through the doorway, in which
you see the living room area. And then, that is the beginning
¢f that T-shaped hallway that houses both bedrooms and the

bathroom.

Q Is State's Exhibit number 4 another view of the

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

N4217




10
11
12
13
19
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

218

front room of that apartment?

3 ¥Yes, sir. It's just inside the doorway, slightly
looking off to the righrt,

L And if we zoom-in closely here to the doorway, what
are we looking at?

A You're actually looking at the bedroom in which this
tragic accident took place.

Lo I want to show you State's Exnibit number 1. 7The

doorway that was depicted in the previous exhibit, are we
seeing that in a crime scene diagram, and is the doorway ==
I'll zoom-in here. Is it very close to that number 72

& ¥es, sir,

L That's the doorway that we were looking in back in
State's Exhihit number 47

A Yas, =mir.

Q All right. Does this appear to be a layour of the

dpartment?
A Yes, sir, it is.
o S0, you saild that the door was opened?
A b == 8
g What de you do upon seeing che open door?
A I immediately look inside. When I do, T can see

that I have two other officers that are already in the kicchen
ares, Qfficer Santarossa is there, along with Officer

Fonbuena. EBoth of them are in the kitchen with their qunsa

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

n04218




W om =l M i e

11
iz
13
14
15
lg
17
18
15
0
21
22
23
24
25

215
drawn, and they are facing the southwest bedroom on this
diagram. They are loocking through that hallway, and they are
looking directly at that southwest bedroom.

MR. LALLI: Your Honor, because this equipment isn't

working properly today, is it okay if I have the officer step

down --
THE COURT: Yes.
ME. LALLI: -- and maybe indicate on this diagram?
THE COURT: Yeah. Just keep your voice up, all
right?

THE. WITHESS: Yes, sir.
2Y MR, LALLI:

o S0, if you could come down here. And just make sure
you keep your veoice up 39 you can be picked up on the
recordings here. Try not to block anybody's view. Why don't
you explain for us where you were, and where the other
officers were.

. I immediately come i the front door here. And when
I'm laooking, I can see that Officer Fonbuena and Santarassa
are bhoth here, with their firezrms drawn.

Q And you're indicating the kitchen area for the
record, correct?

& Correct. And they are looking directly inte this
opening of the hallway, towards the door of the southwest

bedraoom. I then immediately realize that we have an open door
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here, that isn't being coversd by them.
o What deo you mean, covered?
A Well, their firearms and their eyes are only ahle to

see this porticn of this doorway. They can see some of this
door, but they can see nothing of this. S¢, I immediately run
over to this wall, at which time I draw my firearm, so that I
can cover this portion that they carn't see.

o And this portion is the bedroom that has the Figure
of the individval on the ground on State's Exhibit nunber 13
correct?

A Yes, sir.

9 A1l right. W#What do you do when you go to that
location?

A Upon standing here, I can hear -— I ecan hear
yelling. It's not very distinct. Ir's kind of mumbled;
muffled. It's not very coherent at the time. 1 tell Officer
Fonbuena that I'1ll do the talking, that I have a lot of blood;
that T can see in my doorway that there's somebocdy in there.
Being that I was the CIT officer, I let him know that I'm
going toc give the verbal commands.

a} Why is it important -- and I think you can probably
return to your seat now, Officer. Thank you. Why is it
important for you to instruct the other cfficers that you're
going to be the cone who's giving the verbal commands?

S Sometimes, if we have too many peeple giving verbal
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commands, We can cause individuals to become confused. You
can have contradicting orders given, and it basically isn't
good for communication purposes.

Q 5o, just to make sure that Metro or law epfcrcement

is speaking in one wvaice, if you will, vou assume that

Tasponsibilicy?
A Yes, sir.
O Tell us what you do at that point.
. At that time, I call into the room that, whoever's

in there, I nesd you to come out with your hands up. I den't
get any response. 1 have toe say it a few times.
Q You said that you had heard some sort of noise

coming from the ropom?

A Correct.
L Can you describe that noise for us?
FiY It's basically mumbled talking, is what I'm hearing

at first. Sometimes, it's agitated, loud. And then other
times, it's not necessarily directed, and it's het coherent,
Theze weren't full sentences that I was hearing. Just
individual words, along with mumbling, then yelling. That's
what. I'm hearing. S$So, I just know that I have a male wvoice

that I can hear coming from that room.

a9 Po you hear any female voice coming out of that
room’?
A Ha, sir, I do not.
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Q2 All right. Se, tell us what happened.

F. S0, I give my verbal commands, tell the individusl
that I can Hear to come out with his hands up. I get no
response. I have to repeat it multiple times.

o) Do you eventueally get a response?

& Ide. And —

Q What response do you get?

a The {irst response I get is that she stabbed
herself,

Q2 S5he stabbed herself?

A Yes.

Q Ckay.

A 30, it's at this time that I tell him, okay, T nead

¥ouw to come out with your hands up. We can give her help, but
I need you to come out of the room. The voice Lbecomes highly
agitated, and says, "Just get the fuck in here, getr the fuck
in hege."

e to the amcunt of blood that I see, znd the
overall demeancr of the voice that I'm hearing, T'm feeling
that the subject inside the reoom wants to bait us into coming
inte the room,

Q Why? Why did you get that impressiaon?
. It's agitated. It's not like they were locking out
for the welfare of the individual; that wasn't what I was

getting. Help, she needs -- please, come help her. T wasn't
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getting anything like that. It was, "get the fueck in here.*

It was highly --

Q Almest him giving you an order?
a Cerrect. Yeah. This wasn't pleading for me to come
in and save somebody. This was -- I was thinking that there

is somebody hiding behind the corner with a shotgun, getting
ready to kill me as saon as 1 come arcund that corner.

o S50, I was going to ask you, well, why don't you just
go in? I mean, are you concerned for your own safety?

& Yeah, I'm concerned for everybody.

L] All right. So, what happens?

A 1 continue my wverbal commands, I tell him, listen,
We want to help her. You need to come out, you need to put
your hands up. But we can't go in there, and we can't give
her the assistance that she needs until you come our.

o Is there any question in your mind you spelled that
out clearly for the defendant?

A Absolutely.

8] All right.

& Then, next thing you know, he goss, "She's dead.”
&dnd I said, well, listen, we still need you to come oubt of the
rocm. Yoy have to come out of the room with your hands up.
And it's — again, it's -— he goes back to mumbled talking,
agitated, yelling.

Never -- 1 ask him for his name multiple times; I
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never get his name. I &sk him what her name is. At one point
in time, he states Veronica is the name that I gave during my

reports. It's what I remember hearing.

o Veronica?

.| Correct.

Q Okay.

A 50, 1 keep up the verbal commands, keep vhem up.

I'm trying to get him to come gut of there., He says, she's
dead. Then, he switches and says, “She’'s alive." BAbaut rthat
time, Sergeant Newberry, along with his officers, comes inteo
the room.

o Who's Bergeant Newberry?

a Sergeant Newberry at the time was the problem
solving unit sergeant. They were & plain-clothed unit that
does basic investigations for patrol bureaus.

2 &ll righr,

A And --

Q 3o, it's 2 separate squad of police nfficers?

A Correct. And they tend to work plain-clathed
operations. They do actual investigations into burglaries,

rebberies, drug buys; that sort of thing.

o So, Bergeant Newberry shows up. o you know why?
a He was there just to give us a hand. And none of us
have -— we've put what we call a code red on the channel,

which means nobody's allowed tc talk until everybody is safe
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and accounted for. S0, nobody's allowed to get on the radio,
s he knows it's still an active scene when he shows up.

His officers, because they are plain clothes,
they're wsaring tactical vests that say "Pelice™ across them.
But they den't necessarily carry the amount of tools that we
carry as patrel officers. They don't have a big belt like we
do.

2 When you say teols, you're talking about things like
guns, pepper spray, batons; Lhings of that nature?

A Yes, sir.

o 211 right.

A So, ir was at this time that I reslized that one of
his officers probably should be on taser, that we pneed 2z less
than lethal optien. And sg, I hand my taser off to Officerx
Ballejos, who works for Sergeant Newberry.

Q What's a taser? I mean, we've all probably -- most
of us have heard about it on television. Cap you just explain
to the jury what a taser is, how it works?

A A tager is an electrenic control device. 1It's
capable of firing two probes at -- 21 feet is the maximum
distance, at which time, both ¢f those probes, when they
strike an individual, it delivers an electronic current,

That electronic current actually interrupls the
electrical currents that your brain makes to control biody

funcrion, That's why people tend to go rigid; they fall aver.
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And that alleows officers to be ablse to place them inte
custody, because the subject can no longer resist yona .

9] So., 1f you shoot somebody with a tazer, these two
prongs firg into the individual being shot?

A Correct.

Q They're given one heck of a jolt of electricity,
that basically puts them on the ground?

3 Yes, sir.

o Boesn't kill them?

A No, sir.

(] All right. And so, when you talk about less than

lethal eoptions, that's as opposed to going in with a gun,
where somebody might end up getting shot and killed?

A Correct,

o] All right. So, you thought that it was important
that somebody utilized a tasar, as oppased to just everybady
qoing in with guns?

A Correct,

C Ckay. So, what happened?

A Me and Sergeant Newherry started talking. He states
that he's going to do what we call a quick peek, which means
he's going te try to be as tactical as he can, look into the
room, and get us more observation., The enly thing that I can
see from my angle is basically a bloody bed, and & little bit

of a wall. That's all that my view allows me, So, I dan't
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know what's hiding behind that wal:l,
Qo All right.
. S0, Sergeant Nswberry tells me, listen, I'm going to

peek my head in. If anybody tries to kill me, drag me out,
save me, whatever you got to do. |

%} All right.

A 3o, he peeks, he looks in. He comes back. He goes,
listen, I can see the subject. He's laying on top of the
female. The knife is on the bed. Let's go. We all had
formed up basically an arrest team. Everybody stacked up
behind me, and put their hand on my shoulder. When I start to
move that way, everybody knows that we're moving as a cohesive
unite,

We immediately go into the room, at which time I'm
giving verbal cosmmands to Mr. O'Keefe. He is actvally laying
en the ground next to the deceased. He has his right hand
kind of cradling her head. His left hand is over the cop
pertion of her torso., She is naked from the waist dowrn,

There is a lot of blood.

a) Can I ask you this? You said Mr. 0'Keefe -- and you

referred -- you kind of looked over to my right. Do you see

the individual who you saw in the bedroom here in the

courtroom?
A ¥Yes, sir. He's --
Q Can you please point to him, and tell us what he's
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wearing today?
A He's wearing & yellow cie, kind of & green shirr,
brown sperts cocat. Has his hair back in a panytarl.
MR. LALLI: Y¥Your Honor, may the record reflect the
witness has identified the defendant?
THE COURT: Yes.
BY MR. LALLI:
L 30, the defendant is on the ground. He nas this
woman where?
A e is laying on his right side., His head is
parallel to hers. They're laying parallel together, His
right hand is up undernesath rhe back of her head. PEis left

hand is over the top partion of her torsn.

o] And ==

A We give him verbal commands, get up, get up.

o] You said that she was partlally dressed?

A Yes, sir. There's -~ I can remember just a blocdy

L=shirt. And then, I clearly remember that the lower

extremities of her were ccmpletely nude.

9] Completely naked?
A Yes.
Q Loes the defendant say anything to you when e¢fficers

come intp the room?
A AS soon as we're giving the verbal commands, he

ignores all the verbal commands we're giving him. He beccmes
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agitated, and he starts waving his left hand that's over her

torse, scrgaming, don't look at her, don't look at her.

Q2 Don't look at her?
A ¥Yeg, sir.
0 Is this -- can you describe the speed with which yeou

and other officers are coming into that room? Do you do it
kind of slowly and methedically; or is it like, hey, let's get

in there as guickly as we can? Qr --

A It's —-
e -— give us a sense of that,
A It's very fast. We're not running. This is very

controllied. We have to still clear the room, but this is by
ne means & slow walk. This is, T walk in at —- basically, if
you've ever seen a speed walker, that's azbout the pace I'm
geing. I'm moving as fast as I can go, withont it belng a
jeg. Still 2 walk so that my firearm is steady, And I need

Lo clear the portions of the room that I gee immediately as I

come in.
o How many cfficers go into that back bedroom?
9 I believe there's four total.
4] And you're dressed either as a police officer, or

those problem solving cfficers have --

A Tat. vests,
) Tac. vests on?
A ¥es, sir.
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2 And the defendant is concerned with you locking at
his naked girlfriend?

B Yes, sir.

o What happens next?

A AL this time, we continue the verbal commands.
We've ensured the room's clear. We give him the verbal
commands; he refuses to get off of her. He is becoming highly
agitated.

Q When you say highly agitated, what's he doing?

A He's yelling at us, and not --
Q Saying what?
A That's when he -- it's just continuing with the,

don't lpok at her, den't look at her.

L8] All right.

A There was nothing beyond that. Officer Ballejos
then fires his taser, striking Mr. O'Keefe. It incapacitates
him, at which time, I go to grab hands-on. I realize that Mr.
C'Keefe has a lot of blood on him, and I'm concerned about
contamination. I can't remember where we got the initial
information, but there was some sort of possibility for a
communicable disease when we were entering.

o] All right,

& Sc, I immediately go to get gloves out of a back
pouch that I keep on my belt, and I also hand them over to

Gean -- I'm trying to think of Sean's last name. I --
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o] Another —-- Sean is another police officer?

B ¥Yes, sir.

Q All right,

A I belleve it's Officer Thomas., Sean Thomas
iphonetic) --

Q Okay.

A -— if I'm net mistaken, I go to give him a palr of
gloves sc that we can get the handcuffs on Mr. O'Keefe,

Q What's Mr. O'Keefe doing as you're trving teo put him
in the handcuffs?

A Unfortunately, a taser operates on a five-second

cycle. At the end of that five-second cycle, the electricity
is no longer being provided to the subject. S0, Mr. O'Keefe
has the ability to regain a little bit of control after those
five seconds. His muscles go back to working just like they
did before,
S0, that flves seconds elapses during the time where

I'm trying to get gloves on, and so is Sean. So, Mr. O'Keefe
begins to struggle, at which time, we bring his hands
tegether. We get our gloves on; we get the handouffs op him.
I put one arm underneath Mr. Q'Keefe's armpit. Sean does the
same, and we immediately escort him ocut inte the living room.

o] All right. And there was a woman in that room.
Were you at all involved in rendering her any assistance?

A Once we got Mr. O'Keefe into the living room, wa
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immediately asked for the fire department -- medical perscnnel
that we had on scene, nhad already arrived. We tried ro clear
our as many people as we could immediately from -- my first
ocbservations, she did not zppear to be alive at the time. We
5till require medical personnel to make that call. So, 1
immediately brought them in, at which time, they announced to
us that she was deceazod.

#; Okay. What happens to the defendant once he's in

the living room?

-4 I xnow that he was escorted out of there, but not by
me,

o Somevne else did that?

A Yes, sir. Because cnge he goes inte the living
room, my goal was to -- basically, I was already convinced

that we had somebody that was deceased in there, and now it
was time to preserve evidence, I wanted to get sverybody out
there that I could, so that we wouldn't contaminate our scene.
Get one medical personnel staff to come in there,

check if she needed assistance: at which time, he saild that
she was net, and that she was deceased. And so, now, it was
time to get everybody cut so that we wouldn't contaminate it.

¥ When you went into the back bedroom to remove Mr.
O'Keefe, did you ever step on the woman's body?

Y I do not believe I ever stepped on her, no,

{2 Ckay. Did you step on her head, or on her face?
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A Mo, sir.
Q Is that something you would have remembered?
A Absalutely.

MR. LALLI: Thank you, Your Honor. That cancludes
direct examination.
THE COURT: All right. Cross-examinaticn, Mr.
C'Keefe?
MR. Q'KEEFE: Yes, Your Honor.
CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. O"EEEFE:

Q It's Mr. —— Qfficer Cann?
A Conn. Yes, air.
8] Officer Conn, I want to be real brief. Okay, sir?

When you did enter the apartment, and you were calling to me,

did T at any time tell you to get cut: get the F out?
. Mo, sir, you did not,
Q Thank you, sir. Did you guys realize that I was

extremely intoxicated?

A Ho, sir.

Q Okay. What is a 408, Qfficer, nlease?

A If you're referring to our codes that we use --
Q Yes, =air.

-1 -— that would be a drunk, sir.

4] Qkay. What if the 9-11 call immediately at the

beginning of the call —- if T could -~ I'll produce it if I
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have to. But i1f z say that it says axactly —-
MR. O'KEEFE: Mr. Maningo.
BY MR, D'KEEFE:
o The %-11 LVPD Cormmunication Center =ztates that, "“At

23:06, this person advised, subject who lives in apartment is
Brian. Extremely 408." MNot even three and-a-half minutes
after the call was made, Would you agree with that?

AR If that's in the details of the call, that's whar
they received. Yes, sir.

Q Okay. ©Now, so, didn't you say a code red, when
that's called, you guys clearly are listening, correct, sir?

A Six, there would ke no other traffic provided by
dispatchers over the air --

o Yes, sir,

A -~ because we call the code red. S5, there's no
further communications over that radig.

Q Yes, sir. 5o, my point being is, when that
extremely -- defendant was extremely 408, you guys all heard

it, withowt a doubt? That's what the --

e Mo, sir. I did not,

0 Gkay. How long did this event —- stand-off, as you
call it, or whatever, take, Your Hamar —- I medn, Officer,
Please?

A Unfortunately, time seems like it takes a very long

time when you're there. In reality, it was mere minutes.
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Q Thark you.

A Four to five minutes.

Q Thank you, Qfficer, I understand your position.
When a call is made, you're concerned for everyone, That's
the goal of a police officer. But you guys keep beating down
in prior testimenies that, we felt that the defendant -- and I
undegstand that, was baiting us, settring you up. I understand
that. You're in a lot of situvations sometimes. But
ulrimately, was I baiting you? Yes or no.

A At the time --

Q Yez or no, Qfficer.

A == I didn't know.

MR. G'EEEFE: Please, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: If you can't answer yes or no, ¥ou can
say, I can't ansvwer yes or no. So --

THE WMITNESS5: I can't --

THE COQURT: I mean, I can't force the =--

THE WITHNESS: I can't state what your mind set was
at that time. I'm sorry, I can't answer that.
BY MR. O'KEEFE:

o Ckay. But there has been plenty of prior testimony,
you all felt that the defendant possibly, or could have been
baiting us. You stated that, correct, Officer?

.} Yes, sic.

Q Okay. HNow, ultimately though, at the conclusion of
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everything when you apprehended me, ultimately though, was I
baiting you? It's simple; yas ar na?

A When you came in, you were not wairing for us, noc.

MR. D'KEEFE: Let me re-ask sne more time, Yaur
Honar.,
EY MR. Q'KEEFE:

2 Ultimately at thé conclusion, after you apprehendad
me and put me in handcuffs, you guys made 5 determipnation, the
quy wasn't baiting me: he didn't have 2 gun, he wasn't trying
to kill me or anything. So, answer the guestion yes or na,
Bltimately, was I baiting you?

a I can’'t honestly answer that, sir. I'm 50rry.

Q S¢, during this time, you're stating that you had no
clue I was intoxicated?

. I had no idea ar all.

o If there was prior testimony many times given that
you stermed a room, up to five officers in the same ar&a, and
you stormed in fast -- there was prior -- if there was prior
testimony given that somecne went over the bed, would you
disagres with that?

MR. LALLiI: 1 object, Your Honcr. That assumes
facts not in evidence.

THE COURT: Well, vyou cap ask him, did You see
someonse go over the bed? Ask him.

THE WITNESS: 1 did not see anyone going cver the
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bed. I was focused directly on you, and I was not looking
over my shoulder at what --

BY MR. G'KEEFE:

Q Okay.

.} -- my officers were doing.

G Would you agree that it was maybe very small spot,
trom the end of the bed, to the closet, to the wall? It --

& fes, it's a relatively small space.

Q Relatively understates it, I do believs, Officer.
But however, with the alleged victim on the ground with me
beside her, and with four or five afficers all around, you
could say without a doubt, nobody kicked us, stepped on us,
with all that going gn? Being re -- tased, and trying to
handcuff, and all that? You can say absolutely --

A I did not step on you, or her. That I can say.

Q You did not?

A That's all I can attest to, sir, is what 1 did.

Q And at any time, she was never bumped, even though
there's been prior testimony given that it possibly --
absolutely could have happened.

A I don't know if she was or not.

MR, LALLI: Your Heonor, I obiject toa references to
prior testimony. The question is, did this officer see it.
That misstates any evidence in the record. That evidence is

net in the record. And I think as the Court correctly pointed
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out before, he should just ask this officer what he 53w, or
what he didn't see.

THE COURT: Prier testimony —- 4if they're like --
you're alluding te two or three other witnesses, he doesn't
know what prior testimeony -- ha's tesrifying as to what he
krows. So, you just have ta limit it tao him.

MR. O'KEEFE: Okay.

THE CCURT: You know, he doesn't know wHat other
officers or other witnesses testified to, even if it's prior
testimony.

ME. O'REEFE: Yes, sir, Your Honor. And I'm --

THE COURT: 1If it's his prior testimony, then you

could show him his prier testimony, and impeach him on it.

But —
MR. Q'KZEFE: I'm going ito just make it easy and
pass -- go -- move on for Your Honor, for everyhody.

BY MR. O'KEEFE:

g CEficer, could you step up to the diagram a minute,
please?

A Sure.

Q Thank you, sir. Can you point to the jurcrs where

you were sfanding as a team when it was stated that You were

stacked along the wall?

A I would be the first position here. And then, the

resc of the pfficers --
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] Sp -~
A == were directly behind me.
g -- how many officers were there? Is it true there

was four, or there was five, sir, stantding —

A I believe that there was four, that actually
entered. We had Sergeant Wewberry hers. This iz -- he's
standing cn this corner when he tells me that he's going to
peek into the room. And then, I believe that I have Officer
Thomas and Gfficer Ballejos directly an my back as we're
gektting ready to make our arrest.

Q And you're all against the wall, getting ready to do
your stack if the code's clear to go?

A Not acrually against the wall. We would be at an
angle. This table here would prevent us from being up
directly against the wall.

L¥] tkay. Do you realize that we have & -- there's a
photograph here where there's a table all the way to the end
of the wall? That diagram's misprinted. Ses where the line
goes along the wall, where you put your red light?

P8 Right here?

Q There's no section there. That's -- see where the
table's at? Can you point it along the wall, the first table?

A Correct.

2 Move that table all the way to the end of the wall,

would you; wich your red light., will you move it back? Tharc's
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where the table's actually al in the bhotograph.
A Correct.
&} 3o, how could five officers be slong the wall there?
A Well, that's what I'm saying. There's three.

There's cne here. There's me, directly on the corner. And we
are not on the wall. They are stacked against me at an angle.
Our eyesight is just trying to continue this view into the
Toom.

o Okay, Officer. You can teke your seat. Thank you,
sir. But you clearly said that -- you didn't see any weapcon
in my hands?

A Ne, I did not.

o And I was laying beside her, is what I was gathering
frem your testimony that was given. 3he was on her back, and
I was on my side, cradling her head, and —-

Correct.
Okay. I wasn't on top of her?

Mo, sir,

o S B = -

Okay.
MR. O'KEEFE: No more guestions, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: Thank you, Mr. O'Keefe, Anything else,
MR. LALLI: Just very briefly,.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR, LALLI:
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With respect tfo the baiting that you had testified

Lo on direct examination, you said that you clearly gave the

defendant directions to come out, and he didn't even respond

at first?

the woman

you?

thans

A

Do 0 = Co R S« - T o

=

Correct.

And then, he told you te come in there?

"Get the fuck in there," is exactly what he =aid.
And it was an order?

Yes, sir.

He told you at one point that Victoria was alive, or
was alive, correct?

Correct,

And at another time, he told you she was dead?
Correct.

Seemed to you he might have been playing games with

It was not consistent, no.
Thank you.
MR. LALLI: Hothing else,

THE CQURT: All right. That completes the testimony

MR. O'KEEFE: Yes, sir. No further guestions.
THE COURT: Thank you, sir.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: Whe else do you have, Mr. Lalli?
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MR. LALLI: Your Honor, Dan Newherry.

THE MARSHAL: Officer Newberry., if you will remain
standing. Flease, sir, raise your right hand and face the
clerk.

DAN HEIWBERRY, STATE'S WITNESS, SWORN

THE MARSHAL: Please heve & seat, sir. And if Yo
would, please state and spell vour name for the recard,

THE WITNESS: My name is Can Newberry. D-a-o,
N-g-w-b~e-r-r-y,

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. LALLI:

Q Eir, how are you employed?

A I'm employed with the Las Vegas Mertropolitan Falice
Department as & sergeant in the K-§% section.

Q What is X-97
¥=D3 as in deg partners.
ALl righr,
I would go out and use degs to search for suspects.
How long have you been a K-9 sergeant?
I'm just two months shy of two years.

How leng have you been with Metro in total?

o0 ¥ oo ¥ o0 p

June 29th, it will be 17 years.
W And T want to direct your asttentien back to November
3th of 2008. What was your assignment back then?

A On that night, I was designated as =a sergeant with a
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preblem solving unit, alsoc referrad to as & PSU unit.
o F5U standing for problem selving unitc?
A Yes, sip.
o And we've had seme testimony already as to what a

problem solving unit does. But on that particular night, ac
approximately 11:00 o’clock in the evening, were you working?
A Yes, we were, We were goperating as a plain-clothes,
unmarked car, robbery suppression in the robbery corridors.
Q And as a sergeant, do you have supervisory

raesponsibilities?

A Yes, I do,
Q What are those?
2 At that time, they were to supervise a group of

police officers that were designated as problem =xlving
officers; essentially detectives that wark out of an area
command. And we would focus on street-level robberies,
narcotics transactions; little problem areas that would occur
within area commands.

Q You -- as -- are those -- is that cluster, or group
of ¢fficers referred to as a sguad?

. Yes, sirp, it is.

Q And then, you are the sergsant, or the supervisor of
that squad of officers?

B Yes, s5ir.

4] You said that you were doing robbery suppression.
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What is that?

- We would == we would loak at crime trends, crime
statistics, look for where robberies or crimes are occurcing.
We would try to flood that area with officers, both plain cars
and uniformed officers that would work in the areass. And from
there, hopefully be present to witness, and then stop
rabberies, or to be near locatiens that d&id gat rocbbed, to be
like a guick reaction forece in order to get people in custody.

Q All rignt. And depending on what Metro's pricrities
are in any given month, you might da robhery suppression; you
might do some other sort of project as a problem selving unit;
i=s that true?

A That is correct,

L9, Okay. 5o, on this particular evening, you and your
squad are in the process of robbery suppression. Does 3 call

come over the radic that you fee® the need to respond tao?

A Yes, there is,
O Can you tell us shout that?
A There was a call that came out.. It was Initially

started as a domestic dispute, It was cver off of El Parque.

Described a female that was kleeding heavily, with a male in

her room.
L8] Se, what happens upeon getting that call?
A We respond to the area. We knew it was right alang

the Decatur robbery corrider that we had just been working.
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We knew it was domestic related, bt rhere could have been a

Fossibility of it being other crime related.

Q And how serious of a call is this i the types of
¢rimes that you -- or calls that ¥you get during the course of
a day?

4 Domestic disturbances are routine, huz they can be

very serious. Espacially when you hear a term of, with &
female down and bleeding heavily, you know it's not exactly a
goad call te go to.

Q ¥You had referred to "we" 3a number of times in yaur
testimony. What other officers were you working with?

A That evening, we were working as a team. I had two
officers with me in o¢ne car. That was Officer Sean Taylor and

Gfficer Jeremizh Ballejos,

Q 50, what do you do upon receiving this call?

B We respond right to the apartmenL, and attempt to
help.

Q Do you actually make way teo unit gumber 3572

¥.| TYes, we da.

g Up on the diagram there in front of you for the jury

te s¢e is State's Exhibit number 1. pDoes that appear to be a
diagram of unit 357

A Yes, it is.

Q A}l right. The monitor is not working. So, is

there a laser pointer there in front of you? If you could
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jusc ==

MR. LALLI: Is it ckay if he comes down, and Jjust
kind of #escribes what he did in the apartment, Your Hoper?

THE CQURT: Yes, please.

MR, LALLI: Okay.

THE COURT: 1Is that the laser?

ME. LARLLI: Yes.

THE COURT: Ng, over here [inaudible].

THE WITNESS: Oh, just come over here?
BY MR, LAYLI:

Q Yes. So, if you could just come down, and Just
describe for the jury -- be cognizant nat to turn your back on
folks on this end. Just -- this end over here,

A Tnis end over there? Ckay.

o I mean -- yeah. If you could just explain for us,

Sergeant, what you did when you arrived in that dpartment,

- When we entered the apartment, Officer Todd Conn,
who was a upiformed officer that night, was positicned here,
trying te negotiate or cornverse with the male suspect, Mr.
O'Keefe, in the room. There were several uniformed officerg
in the kitchen and the living room ares right here. I came
in, and stogd next to Officer Cann, spoke with him for a few
minutes, where —- and listened to the conversation that wasg
goling on.

Q What did you hearc?
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A 1 don't recall much of the conversation that was
said. But it was fruitless. There was no —- it wasn't
proceeding. There was going te be na end to it any time soon
to where we could render aid to the female,

Q Bid you have concern —- any officar zaieTy COnCerns
with respect to how the conversation was progressing?

A I had concerns that Mr. Q'Keefe could he essentially
establishing, or had established an ambush for officers that
entersed the room. We wanted Mr. G'Keefe to come out to s,
and bring him out of his environment te us, where we could
take him into custody. He kept refusing, and would not come
aut,

4] All right. So, what happened?

A 1 moved from next to Officer Conn up to this wall,
At that wall, I did what they call & guick psek, which is
essentially a guick head movement, head and shoulders, where
you peek aroung the wall, and get an obssrvation, and come
back. When I looked into the room, I could see our female
victim, and I could see Mr. O'Keefe laying on her left side.

o S5o, you're indicating -- on our diagram, ycu're
indicating to the -- to an area above where the figurine would
be in the diagram there?

A Yes, siT.

A Ckay.

I rould sese him. There was light in the room. When
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I parned back, 1 could see large amounts of blocd. There was
blood an both our wictim, on Mr. ¢'Keefe, and there was a
large smount of blood on the bed, and some on the floor. I

2l30c saw what 1 thought was the handle of a knife on the hed.,

] Doe= that pose any particular concern for you, the
knife?
A It does. Large amount of blood and a knifs lets me

know that there could be some serious injuries, so we need to
get medical rapidly to her. B2and waiting a long time in order
to negotiate a surrender by Mr. O'Keefe would not be
productive for pur female victim,

o, 5o, do you formulate a plan?

b From the wall, I formulate what we call an arrest
team, an entry team. I turned back arcund te Officer Conn,
and I asked him to be lethal cover as we enter the raam.

What's lethal cowver?

A Lethal cover would be deadly force, if deadly force
iz needed due to some type of weapon, or our lives become in
jecpardy, or we need to defend somebody else's.

Q Is that a gun?

A It would be a gun, yes.

8] All wight.

A Mr. Conn was armed with his sidearm, his pistol. I
turned to my officer, Jeremiah Ballejosz, asked him to be less

than lethal cover, which would be a designated weapon: a

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

114748




LIV ]

10
11
1z
13
14
15
16
17
18
1%
20
21
22
23
24
25

249
baton, Laser. In this case, it was an ECD or a taser, to ke
usad &8s a2 less lethal device in case we needed to use it to
arrest the suspect. And then, I asked Officer Sean Taylor to
roll in with me as the arrest team.

Q All right. So, what happens?
A We rolil right inte the room, straight down the
hallway. There are orders and commands that are given. Mr,

O'Keefe does not obey. The taser is deployed onte Mr.

'Keefe.
4} Do you recall what those orders and commands were?
A I do not. It would be speculation on my part. I
Fust know --
G Ukay.
A == wWhat I would vell.

Q What would you typically yell in tHat scenaria?

A In that case --

o What sort of instructions would be given to an
individual that you wanted to remove and secure?

A I would want him te slide away from her, put his
hands where we could see them, put his hands out to his sides
where we could easily take and handcuff him; maybe craoss his
feet and pull him up to his butt, kind of like a felony
handeuffing position.

Q Were commands given?

A Commancs were given. I remember that.
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